A Member of the Teamsun Group

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
AHARKEEARAA

(Incorporated in Bermuda with Limited Liability)
(EBFREFME L Z2BRAE])

Stock Code B {255 : 771

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ##k

%

9 e

e
'Macau -
)/"‘ -

0 Thailand:: Slngapore Malay5|a
- I # - X% B Mo g, & - n -k 7 o
& G | - m?m & % 2 5, &:}’ : .f*?f'{ CORNE

N

Hohg Kong \ ainland China - United States - Euro_pe'-.TaivV_‘én

* For identification purpose only

R ~ “‘1 ﬁlr.ﬂ



Local Support - Global Delivery
AT B - BERARAY

.

.
.
.

eesecersrne

ssvune
I

ssseee

: Hong Kong
. Headquarters

. BRAR

.e
aeee
.

coee
.

esccssssssscs

cssccsssscsssccssssss




Contents

B &%

2
ASL at a Glance
EEIES e A

4
Quality Policy of ASL
BERRBE A

5

Customer Service Excellence with
Corporate Responsibility
BITHEST - NHEERP
RR 75

6

Corporate Information

ARER

8

Financial Calendar
BIRs H

9

Financial Summary

MBHE

10

Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

12

Chief Executive Officer's Statement

TR ARE RS

20
Activity Highlights
TRENTEER

22
Major Contracts Secured in the
Year

RENFFEZEREH

23

Profile of Directors and
Senior Management
EERSREBABBN

27

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

44

Environmental, Social and
Governance Report
RIE - g RERRE

54

Directors’ Report
EEgWmE

76
Independent Auditor’s Report

B BB

81
Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss

RAEER

82

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
frarEbE R

83
Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

AR R

85

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
SARSRPDE

87

Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows
RAEBHERER

88
Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

fRA MBS HRAR MR

207
Particulars of Investment
Properties

BREWEFS

208

Automated Systems Holdings
Limited — Information of Major
Subsidiaries, Associates and
Relevant Centers
BBESGEEBR AR - M
B BE R R AT OER



——— ASL at a Glance

g be \:v)b%ﬁ%mﬁ

CORPORATE OVERVIEW £E &)

e Information Technology (IT) services provider since 1973

e Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (SHSE Stock Code: 600410) becomes the
Company’s ultimate holding company in September 2009

e Dedicated to delivering innovative, industry-specific and one-stop IT solutions and
services to customers across the region with business operations in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, United States, Europe, Taiwan, Macau, Thailand, Singapore and
Malaysia, etc.

MAJOR BUSINESS = E %7

Innovative Solution Business

RIFTTEMRT RER BRARREEY
EMPOWER SECURE
R BE =2

==

"

Innovative, reliable cloud applications &

digital transformation
prevention

SIS A AL B BT  TRENOEE SR
YIS E AR AR

7] 5 B0 8 A K AR TS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Hﬁ%ﬁﬁ%

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HZE T — \F+-_A=+—HILFE

Intelligent Cybersecurity Business

==

"

Intelligent, mission-critical, cloud-ready
services in security blueprints; digital assets
protection & risk

B— Nt =F Rt E MR RS

I REBRRBHERNDBR AR (LEEHR M2 RN
600410) R =ZZNFNAKARR R HELIER AT
BORENEFRMHAIF TEARR —UAEMBHRERRA
RN - EBEBERES - PEAM - EE BN - 52 R
P9~ 2B - FnsE SRS i

Integrated Managed Service Business

—UXWERNBREREERBE R
MANAGE
B8

%

Integrated, end-to-end, cloud platform &
ITSM management
in entire IT lifecycle

@ T EfmBER RSN
s E - B F AR ITSM B2

Revenue Gross profit Net profit Basic earnings per share
0N el #R BREXEF
ws2,344.5 " ws492.6 =x” wsS4.3 5" 10.48% "

+22.3%

+43.1%

+60.4%

+39.9%

Net asset value
EEFE
ws1,212.9 5"

+10.5%

2 Annual Report 2018 G #f

Bank balances and cash

BROFRREE
HK$292 2M|Ihon

+1.9%

Orders newly secured

HEITE
ws2,376.3 5"

+20.2%



2018 OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS ¥&#H =

For the year ended 31st December 2018

ASL at a Glance

BIE—Z—)\F+-_A=+—HLFE

Empower R &

Orders newly secured recorded a significant double-digit growth, and accounted for
over 50% of the overall orders newly secured of the Group

Won advanced technology-related projects, including Smart City, artificial
intelligence, big data and face recognition

Reached a strategic cooperation agreement with the world’s leading digital
transformation expert, Alibaba Cloud, to further develop the Cloud market in Hong
Kong and Macau, and these services gradually recognized by customers, and has
successfully obtained its first order from the finance industry

Grid Dynamics recorded its revenue and gross profit a significant increase of 75.0%
and 68.4% respectively and opened its 6th research and development center in
Serbia and set up a new office in Texas to further strengthen the Group’s global
support and delivery capability

METERCBENEMHTER  HEERBEHE
BB 50%

BSEEMT - ATERE  KEEBERARBNS&HH
EHAERIE B
HPERELNBHHEE R B TERUBKAER
# o N SRRSRIDENEHENS - REEH
BEPHRE  WKNBSRASRENGETE

Grid Dynamics F9MA & EF 5 BlIE%15 75.0% 1 68.4%
CEERRREERETRSEENENHER LR
REREMAZTNEE  E—TEELREBMZ 2K
TR KA EE

Secure &&

Orders newly secured received remained stable, which accounted for approximately
double-digit of the overall orders newly secured of the Group

Obtained numerous security projects from several financial institutions

Introduced artificial intelligence at the Security Operation Center Plus to enhance the
capability of customer network protection

Ranked as one of the top three security service providers in Hong Kong

HMBFAETR  (HREBRENRIEOEUERT

BEZREESMBEBIRE T ZEL2EE

RLR2EEFL + 5IAATEEANRRER S @BHE
HIBES]

AEEEINBEE AL ERGHER 2 —

Manage B8

Recorded an approximately double-digit growth on orders newly secured, and
accounted for nearly 40% of the overall orders newly secured of the Group

By further successfully extending its traditional IT support services to offering
comprehensive daily operational support services

Successfully expanded into the insurance industry and wherein received long-term IT
managed service orders

MEFTEHE SRS EIENENFAE - BAEEEE
FERT BRI 40%

K EBERNEARB I ERS  MEARNBRERR
RU2EHN BB EEZIERRE
BIBRRBRITEZ ™S - RS ARZFHEMEHL
EERIGTE

2019 OUTLOOKS R

Continue to provide safe and reliable Cloud services in the above three major
businesses

Focus on providing high value-added services on the above three major business
continually

Plan to invest resources worth tens of millions of Hong Kong dollars in the coming
years on the enhancement of service platforms in omni-channel and Cloud services
Decided to inject a total of more than HK$50 million in 2018 and 2019 to facilitate
Grid Dynamics in the research and development, the transformation of commercial
application capabilities, as well as the cross-sector cross-border expansion of its
business territory

Continue to focus its business procedures, optimize and improve its structure and
enhance its talent resources

Continue to seek opportunities arising from the Belt and Road, and the Greater Bay
Area and accelerate the Group’s globalization footprint

Continue to closely cooperate with strategic partners to consolidate its business
locations in Greater China and Southeast Asia

Strive to assist customers in their frontend-to-backend digital transformation as well
as to provide diversified, one-stop innovative IT solutions and services to customers
from various industries

AEER LS REHREATREPRRR 2 AR
BT
BERSRED DL = KE 2 SR ER

FrEITEARRBFRMBTERETHER - AINERE
REREmRGERE FORBETE

BERERZZ— \RZZ-NFRHAHBBATE
S ITL AR AHES) Grid Dynamics 7 THES - P FEFARE
TEEAL - LA R PE1T 55 b5 A ZE 755 hiR I A £

BB EEBREWETABELIUE - BAA
TER
B [—5—58 | MAZERAHRAOEE - LR

B E
BEARBESERHERAE  BEEATERR
[EEESES S

AR P EITIERATH BRI S BE - 1T
EEPRMHZLE - WA REMMERR R KA
R

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & 8 Z %t B AR A &)
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——— Quality PoIicy of ASL
BERGNE

7¥K 244

We are committed to be the excellent IT services partner by providing
customers innovative, quality and integrated one-stop IT services and
solutions. We aim at satisfying our customers’ business needs through forging

¥oBER—

Perform work with best effort and the highest standard. Always looking
for ways to make further improvement.

“P" - Problem Solving

Solve problem with effective solutions in a timely manner and be able to
identify the core of the problems and provide workable solutions in an
honest manner.

> FRRERE -

“A"” — Accountable > RBCOHE -
Be accountable for one’s area of responsibilities whilst working towards the

goal of the company, be responsible for managing and following up with

the work until complete success.

“C" - Courage » EEEE -
To change and innovate — respond timely to change and to enable the

company to become efficient and competitive. Eager to invent new ideas

and new ways of work to advance in a leading position.

“T" — Teamwork > BEREED -

Work as part of the team, co-operate and contribute to team effort &

success. Willing to offer help, share ideas and knowledge.

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
BERGA(EE)BRLA

1ISO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 1505
Service Delivery
BRI AT

1SO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 5337
Sales Operation Division

SHEEEIFRD

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
BMMEMNRAERAA

1SO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 3268
Service Delivery
BRAS 3T

“ow _SGS.
ISO/IEC 27001 : 2013
Certificate No.: HK12/00068
Security Operation Center Plus
RREERO+

ISO/IEC 20000-1 : 2011
Certificate No.: CC 5406
IT Service Center

AR

Grid Dynamics International, Inc.

ISO/IEC 27001 : 2013
Certificate No.: S 321
Information Security Management System

BENRE2ERAR

BMRERSREFHNITRBEN  BREFRHEA
ARG B AR IR R BRI &
HIE BRI REEBEMAEBNZOEER BN

strategic alliance with our business partners and the core values of the Group  MEBFHEBHFE o
— “SPACT":
“S" — Strive for Excellence > IREH - USAHE W NEESONRETKT

fE IRTEES -

VA 2 I3 0% B B R OR FE R - BESIR
BEEBERE  UHBENEERK

WY AITRIERIRITER -

EEANBEGSEARECDE A%
@ EEMBHTEE  BEBEMERE
TAEEERRY -

BRAKE K BIFT - il iR E B LR
NAVRERFRE ) - BREIE - K
EHHTHESR  UIRFASEENEL
AT o

BEREBHN—0HT HKBEEHEA
15 BEIPTR - BEERBSIAEE
KT o BT REmRE) - SR
D F H

Capability Maturity Model®Integration (CMMI)
Version 1.3 - Maturity Level 3 Rating
Software development and support service organization

Capability Maturity Model®Integration (CMMI)
1.3k - E=MRETR
BAFRA B R X RAR AR

4
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Customer Service Excellence with Corporate Responsibility

BITERER  NBREBERTFPRK

ASL is committed to care for the community, the employees and the E@RAHNBEBERTETEHREZLE - ETHMR
environment by organizing various kinds of activities, including office 35 BEZHBESBMLE EBLT  LEZEH -
visit for students, green walk, charity car racing, football match, RIRLE - BETRBAEIETE - ESRY - BHRY
recognition and training programs for employees, summer party, HMEFHREBREE -

Christmas party and annual dinner, etc.

Sponsors the 32nd Annual Hong Kong Charity 24 Hour Pedal Tung Chung Family Walk 2018
Kart Grand Prix FUBEL1T 2018
B $E=1+"EEHE 24 NEESHRERBEEEAE ]

Staff Award of Excellence Christmas Party Annual Dinner Saratov Summer Party

HHE TRES ECE1 ) ETESH®RE ERIERE BIRE

Championship in the Veeam Cup 2018 SPB Sport Teams

25 Veeam EERLLE 2018 BE SPB EEIB R

L =2
Public Talk for University Girls Go Tech Mobile Classroom  Graduate Trainees

Students Girls Go Tech iBHZE EXERE
HBAREBENARIEE

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 Z 5B BR A7
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——— Corporate Information

ARER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WANG Weihang
WANG Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LI Wei (Chairman)
CUI Yong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

PAN Xinrong
DENG Jianxin
OR Siu Ching, Rerina

AUDIT COMMITTEE

DENG Jianxin (Chairman)
LI Wei

PAN Xinrong

OR Siu Ching, Rerina

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

PAN Xinrong (Chairman)
LI Wei
OR Siu Ching, Rerina

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

LI Wei (Chairman)
PAN Xinrong
DENG Jianxin

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

WANG Yueou (Chairman)
LI Wei
CUI Yong

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

WANG Weihang (Chairman)
WANG Yueou

PAN Xinrong

DENG lJianxin

COMPANY SECRETARY

NGAN Wai Hing
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

SOLICITORS

Jones Day
Woo Kwan Lee & Lo
Appleby

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 771

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Corporate Information
NEEHR

FERARIT

ER DSESRITERAT
BAERITARAT]

Em
BEABL R

AR R AT
BANERNE P

R ELE
HR (F5) REDEHHARAA

FTERNBFETRE

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited
Canon'’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

BEROBFETTE

HEEEBFERAA
BBERERER 1839
AR 2218

B Em
EBBAERZHFEIRAFA]
FRARER = 771

AfREE

Canon'’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HMNSEERTEEXEME
EHRYE

L 11 5R2EEES 1518
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——Financial Calendar
B % B

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

FERE

08/2018 . 03/2019

O
INTERIM ANNUAL
(for the six months ended 30th June 2018) (for the year ended 31st December 2018)
15th August 2018 20th March 2019
b £ FE
(B2 \FA=1THIEAER) (HE2=Z— ) \F+-A=1+—HILFE)
—E-NFNA+TER —EB-hF=A=+H

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

EERERMDBFER

05/2019

17th May 2019 to 22nd May 2019
ZE-AFRATEREZZE-NAFRA=-1+=H

O

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BRERBFEKRE

_.8

05/2019

22nd May 2019
—E-NFRAZ+Z=AH

Annual Report 2018 G #f



Financial Summary

I EE

RESULTS
E 35
For the year ended 31st December
BE+T-A=t—-HLEE
2018 2017 201 2015 2014
—E-N\§F | 2T tF F ZE-8%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET BT BT BT TET
Revenue WA 2,344,457 1,917,453 1,521,985 1,506,041 1,433,921
Profit before income tax FRETE A& A 127,335 69,748 38,978 27,578 29,589
Income tax expense FIEHRAX (43,002) (17,169) (10,181) (7,874) (1,125)
Profit for the year E PR 84,333 52,579 28,797 19,704 28,464
Profit for the year attributable to JRE R IEG
non-controlling interests FRHF - - - - 31
Profit for the year attributable to ARARAFERA
equity holders of the Company FEASEF PR 84,333 52,579 28,797 19,704 28,495

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEERER

At 31st December

2018 2017 2014

“E-N\§ | 22— tF T—; —ZE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FEr BT TEL THET

Total assets BEE 2,381,032 | 2,264,893 1,166,328  1,175121 1,152,323

Total liabilities BEE 1,168,155 | 1,167,075 447,295 491,771 489,486
Equity attributable to equity ARRBRAFFHEA

holders of the Company FEfh R 1,212,877 | 1,097,818 719,033 683,350 662,837

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB R EE R AR

9
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——— Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

The Group gets well prepared to capture
the opportunities arising from China’s Belt
and Road and the development of the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area, and continues to accelerate its
globalisation.

REBEZSR  BEPE %81 EZU

REBEREBR
BIR1EMF ©

LI Wei Chairman
=B EE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to
the shareholders the annual report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “ASL" or the “Group”).

2018 was another fruitful year for ASLs local and overseas core businesses. For the
year ended 31st December 2018, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$2,344.5
million, an increase of 22.3% compared to last year. Gross profit, profit before
tax and profit after tax were HK$492.6 million, HK$127.3 million and HK$84.3
million respectively, an increase of 43.1%, 82.6% and 60.4% compared to last
year respectively. The Group maintained a healthy financial position and recorded
an increase of 1.9% of its bank balances and cash as at 31st December 2018 to
approximately HK$292.2 million when compared to last year.

During the year, the Group continued to undergo digital transformation and
implemented a series of measures which included the optimisation of business
structure, the integration of businesses, the establishment of a talent pool, the
introduction of an efficient incentive mechanism and the deepening of market
penetration. With the implementation of various effective measures, the Group
achieved satisfactory performance for its Hong Kong and overseas core businesses,
especially in the aspect of service revenue, recording a significant increase of 30.0%.

Annual Report 2018 G #f

REBEREKE - HEMIR

AAERRESS(EFT ) ABRREREDERSE
EAERAR(TARA) REMBAR (SHEIASHHK
Bl HIAKE ] FH -

—E- \FRADRHEAMEEIMILEB S LK
FE -BE_E-N\F+-_A=1+—HIFE &&
BB A23445E8ET  WAFHEM223% -
EFN - BRANET EBRBREEF SR A4926 5 8B
T 1273EBBTKRSAIEERT  REEDHIHE
N43.1% ~ 82.6% }260.4% o 7~ 5= B 09 81 T A 0 44
BE R N\Ft-A=t+—BEBRTEHKL
BeH292 2 BEAETT  WEAFIEMN1.9% °

FA-AEBEBEETEER - WHT—RIE
it BRECEBER BAER BEATE #
TTRBBEES RINRITET S 28 - R &R

|8 EEAERBWASE - BEEFA30.0% -



The Group focused on the development of three major businesses during the
year: leading-edge Innovative Solutions, Intelligent Cybersecurity Services and next
generation one-stop information technology (“IT") Integrated Managed Services,
which earned recognition in the market and among our customers. The Group
also obtained and completed a host of large-scale innovative IT projects from and
in the government and the industries which the Group focused on. According to
the International Data Corporation (IDC) Asia/Pacific Semi Annual Services Tracker,
2H2017, the Group earned high reputation and was ranked one of the top three
security services providers in Hong Kong.

In respect of overseas business, Grid Dynamics International, Inc., a subsidiary of the
Group located at Silicon Valley, the United States, has kept its finger on the pulse of
the contemporary IT world and has kept abreast of the market's needs for leading
technologies (such as DevOps, Cloud applications, big data analytics and predictions),
through which it attained prosperous results. Its revenue and gross profit recorded a
remarkable increase of 75.0% and 68.4% respectively when compared to last year,
contributing significantly to the overall results of the Group.

Innovation is a dominant principle of the IT industry, therefore, during the year, the
Group strengthened its cooperation with numerous renowned leading suppliers in the
industry or those having leading technologies (such as artificial intelligence, machine
learning and Cloud) in order to enhance the competitiveness and service quality of
the Group. By dint of excellent services, the Group not only obtained awards from
numerous partners, but also was honoured the “Leaders of Innovation Awards 2019"
by CorpHub (a well-known integrated information digital platform), which recognised
the Group’s strength in providing innovative IT services as well as its achievement in
delivering better user experience to customers.

Public and private sectors are now actively engaging in the process of digital
transformation. As in the past, the Group will continue to give play to its strengths
and provide diversified one-stop international IT solutions and services for
customers around the world assisting customers in the frontend-to-backend digital
transformation. In addition, the Group gets well prepared to capture the opportunities
arising from China‘s Belt and Road and the development of the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, whereby strives to align with its development and
continues to accelerate its globalisation.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all of the

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

AEBFRNBRERB-ATZER: AIFWTE
fi2 3k 77 %2 (Innovative Solutions) & & 49 48 % & R 7
(Intelligent Cybersecurity Services) K& 1 — X — uh =
B &R ([ B R ) S5 E 12 AR 75 (Integrated
Managed Services) ' ¥EF M5 R E P HRA » WTE
BT R A R E T TP BRI R S E AR R
BT EMEHEIEE « BEBEE AR (DO R =F
—tFTLFTARLFREEHMBEER  AEE
ZHNBERE=ZARERGHER L —  FHBE -

EINER T E  AEE-HURERYAZHEA
&) Grid Dynamics International, Inc. 2 85 38 5 #) & &
RH t RAR IS - 298 T 5 B 1) % SKAY <8 58 Bl (40
DevOps * ZFTHEMA « RBURHITETER]) AEER
SEMES  HRAREFNREFSRERE75.0% &
68.4% 2 FRER R RASBEEEXFETRERT
& o

BIFTREMB R ANSEER - At AEBERFERNE
BHHEAELER R (IMALERE  #BEs  EiE
L) NITHEBELNNBHEREE - U AEED
BEORREEE - REELGRE  AEBTMERZ
EEIERHKERIE  NE—RERGAEMEBT
B CorpHub %85 [ BI¥T<B MK 482019) * & T &A%
EREAFEMBMBRENE N URARPIEHE
EFRAFEROMR -

RILEHIBIERRIRABISEA 2 )R - —20AE - K
SESREREED  MERFFPEE N - BE
A ZRALNEARR T RERY - BHESEFE
ITHE A B R om M BB R - Jboh > RREEFED T
#oEEFE—F B EEAREREBRNE
BATRRAEE - WEYBERSM - ZEMRER(L
s -

AARREEZE  BUHERRHEDEONMER

customers, shareholders and investors of ASL for the ongoing trust and support they  F ~ lRE REEEHRMBENETNLE - 52
have given us, for this has provided continuous motivation for the advancement of the — SSEHENEISHNIBE) 1 RS - EHRHL2EET
Group’s business. Meanwhile, | would also like to express my heartfelt appreciation to  {RIFBIFT/E N HZEER
all our employees for their contributions on maintaining dynamic and innovative.
Li Wei Y
Chairman E
Hong Kong, 20th March 2019 'R ZE-NF=A=+H
Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 Z 5B BR A7
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——— Chief Executive Officer's Statement

ITHRHERE

“EMPOWER", “SECURE” and “MANAGE"
are the three main core values being
brought to customers by the Group. We
will continue to assist customers in their

frontend-to-backend digital transformation.

(e [Z2 BB RAEEAEFS
R = RE/ME(E RSB B FIET
RERIR B R IRV BIR(LEE -

WANG Yueou Chief Executive Officer
FTE®BE THEE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Results

For the year ended 31st December 2018, total revenue of the Group was HK$2,344.5
million, representing a 22.3% increase from last year, among which, product sales
were increased by 10.1% to HK$818.6 million while service revenue was increased
by 30.0% to HK$1,525.8 million. For the year ended 31st December 2018, product
sales and service revenue contributed 34.9% and 65.1% to total revenue respectively.
The increase in revenue was mainly because (i) the group restructured the focus on
the three major information technology (“IT") businesses, which leads the business in
Hong Kong, Macau and Asia Pacific recorded a growth; and (ii) whole year result of
Grid Dynamics International, Inc. (“Grid Dynamics”, a subsidiary of the Company in
the United States (“US")) was consolidated into the consolidated financial statements,
compared to the last year, merely result for the period from 7th April 2017 to 31st
December 2017 was consolidated.

For the year ended 31st December 2018, commercial and public sector sales
contributed 62.7% and 37.3% to total revenue respectively, compared to 59.1% and
40.9% last year.

Annual Report 2018 G #f

-

HE-Z—)\F+ZA=+—HILEE  £A&EBE2 8
WAR23445FEETT  REFRBLEN22.3% -
HAERHEE E7H10.1% £818.6 A& E T M AR I
AR EFF300% & 1,525.8E&BIT - BEZZT—N
FHZA=Z+—HILFE  ERHEERERBRAD R
1E#EU A RI34.9% K% 65.1% ° WA EFHEBZHF)
REBEBE= AT ZEMBHR (BB #E5B0
BT LBEE O RPIRDAME 2 EBEEER
LA Ko (i A A &) 2 — 4 2 B B /&8 72 7] Grid Dynamics
International Inc. ([ Grid Dynamics]) 2 & & ¥4 i 47
Al BHmKR NG A AR - AL AT - Grid Dynamics
LEEER T HFNALAEZ—tE+A
=+ —BILEBRARER A IS ImENERE AR ©

HE-Z—)\E+-A=+—HBILEE  LERQE
MBS E D B AR A R 62.7% [ 37.3% * MEFR
HABI5 B A 59.1% 5 40.9% ©



Gross profit for the year ended 31st December 2018 was HK$492.6 million, an
increase of HK$148.5 million or 43.1% compared with last year. Gross profit margin
for the year also increased from 17.9% to 21.0%.

Even though there was approximately HK$19.9 million equity-settled share-based
payment expenses incurred for the grant of share options of Grid Dynamics during
the year ended 31st December 2018, the Group recorded a profit attributable to the
Company’s equity holders of HK$84.3 million, a rise of 60.4% compared to last year
of HK$52.6 million.

For the year ended 31st December 2018, orders newly secured by the Group
amounted to approximately HK$2,376.3 million, an increase of 20.2% from
HK$1,976.5 million of last year. As at 31st December 2018, the order book balance
of the Group was approximately HK$1,128.2 million. The Group’s cash stood at
approximately HK$292.2 million with a working capital ratio of 1.32:1. The Group
maintained a healthy financial position and outstanding borrowings amounted to
HK$481.7 million as at 31st December 2018.

Business Review

In 2018, the Group's local and overseas core businesses achieved satisfactory growth,
and the revenue, gross profit and profit for the year ended 31st December 2018
recorded significant increases of 22.3%, 43.1% and 60.4% respectively when
compared to last year. The Group’s core businesses in Hong Kong, Macau and Asia
Pacific grew steadily with revenue recorded an increase of 7.9% and gross profit
margin was continuously improving, reflecting the fruitful results from the Group’s
implementation of structural optimization and upgrade on its business in 2018.

During the year, the Group focused on customer centricity, the optimization of
business structure and the reduction of reliance on traditional reseller business as
well as placed emphasis on enhancing the capability of the service business, and
these factors led to a growth of 30.0% in the revenue of the service business when
compared to last year. During the year, the Group also focused on the demands of
customers from various industries, and successfully deepened its market penetration
within the industries by dint of accumulated professional knowledge and experience,
among which the banking and finance industry contributed enormously to the
commercial sector sales during the year.

During the year, in order to meet the market needs of digital transformation, the
Group reformed its business strategies and focused on three major IT businesses:
leading-edge Innovative Solutions, Intelligent Cybersecurity Services and next-
generation one-stop IT Integrated Managed Services. These three businesses grew
steadily during the year.

In respect of the leading-edge Innovative Solutions, it achieved strong performance
during the year. Overall orders newly secured from this business segment recorded
a significant double-digit growth, which included orders obtained from Hong Kong,
Macau, Asia Pacific as well as Grid Dynamics, and this business segment accounted for
over 50% of the overall orders newly secured of the Group. The Group was committed
to customer centricity, and it strived to and succeeded in offering tailor-made solutions

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 Z 5B BR A7

Chief Executive Officer's Statement

TTHRERE

HE-_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BHLEENENA
46 BEBTL REAFTRBEMI485FE B LK
43.1% ° FRMEFEH17.9% EAZE21.0% °

BER-Z—N\FE+-_A=Z+—ALEFEREERD
Grid Dynamics 2 f& i # i 2E 2 49 19.9 B 88 T AR
MAREWI N 2L - REBNBISABREREEA
EIEFRNET843AEBIT BREFRES2.6 BES
7T EF60.4% °

HE-ZT—)\F+-_A=+—ALEFE AE£@FHZH
RIEHA23763EEE L ’RAFREN1,97658
BABTEI202% R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—0"
NEBEFHEEHIEOE1,1282BBB T - AEE
MRS FEOAB2N225EB T MEEEALERA
1.32:1 « REEMPHBEHRRESRR R _F—\F
TZA=T—H  BEHRERISITEEST

5o R

REER T — N\FHRMRFIMZLEEEREE
B BFEHEE-_T- ) \F+-_A=+—BIEFEEZK
A BERREFNBREAFHEEE  5515223%
43.1% 2 60.4% © AREBRNE S  RFIRDAME 2
BLEBEREPEE  WAREFHET79% 218
& EMEBENE  REAEER - \FiH
ERETER M EC A RIEHKR -

AEBRNFRAZEUNTL BT L - BICEBRE - B
DRBESDHER - WENRTRF EBEES
EENRBEBRAREFILR30.0% - FA - KE
BENEIRITEEFPHMTE  BEMEENEEMH A
KE o FMEITETIS2BNREEE - ETRTEE
BMERFARLERIBHE T EELERNER -

FR - AYATEHEBENNER  AEEEEE
RS - BERSREEEMBER - AIFMITE
fi# 32 75 22 (Innovative Solutions) + 5 85 48 4% %2 2 IR 75
(Intelligent Cybersecurity Services) & ¥ — . — ALV E
FEHEEE K E AR 75 (Integrated Managed Services) °
ZREBRFNERIER o

BERRMALHTERATRER  RERNRTRR
G REEEBNNE EREHREEENEN
TR BERES ORM - D AME K Grid
Dynamics ER1S HIRT 8 - AN S BB BB EBH
50% ° AEBRFAUEL/FL - EHBBF K
SEFEENITERG S ENRATR - HENMb I

13 &——



—e 14

Chief Executive Officer's Statement
THETRE

suitable for the government and for the industries which the Group focused on as
well as assisting them in the process of frontend-to-backend digital transformation
during the year. One of the landmark projects included a new-type infrastructure
order received from the government on providing assistance to its construction of
Smart City and being responsible for the management and implementation of a data
platform for the Smart Lampposts. In addition, the Group continued to leverage
its strengths in areas such as DevOps, agile software development methodologies,
automated testing and Offshore Delivery Excellence Centre and took advantage of its
leading technologies including artificial intelligence and big data, and through which
it obtained numerous orders, among which included winning the award of projects
regarding big data consultancy services and application development on customer
service enhancement from a private medical institution and a well-known local airline
respectively. Moreover, the Group also introduced various innovative technologies (such
as face recognition) and successfully extended such services into Macau market, and
were well received by the local customers.

In respect of the Intelligent Cybersecurity Services, orders newly secured received
remained stable, which accounted for approximately double-digit of the overall
orders newly secured of the Group. Such business achieved satisfactory performance,
partly due to the fact that benefiting from the more stringent or new cybersecurity
regulations in the banking industry (such as the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s
“Cyber Resilience Assessment Framework” (C-RAF) and the Society for Worldwide
Interbank Financial Telecommunication (SWIFT)'s “Customer Security Programme”
(CSP)) during the year, the Group obtained numerous security projects from several
financial institutions, which led to an increase of the Group’s penetration rate in the
financial industry. Moreover, the Group also put its extensive systems integration
knowledge acquired from various Cloud platforms and suppliers to good account, by
which it successfully assisted a renowned multinational enterprise in transferring the
IT infrastructure from its headquarters in Hong Kong to Cloud platform, ensuring the
security of its data on different Cloud platforms. By virtue of the Group’s outstanding
data security solutions and managed security services, according to the International
Data Corporation (IDC) Asia/Pacific Semiannual Services Tracker, 2H 2017, the Group
was ranked one of the top three security service providers in Hong Kong, with it
playing a decisive role in the realm of cybersecurity.

In respect of the next-generation one-stop IT Integrated Managed Services, it achieved
considerable progress during the year, which recorded an approximately double-
digit growth, and accounted for nearly 40% of the overall orders newly secured of
the Group. Apart from continually achieving positive results in the IT support service
business, the Group also secured long-term one-stop managed service orders in
various industries with its extensive experience in the industry. By further strengthening
the cooperation with its customer in the traditional IT support services, the Group was
able to offer comprehensive daily operational support services to an existing customer
from the public sector. It is noteworthy that, the Group achieved a breakthrough in
its managed service business, successfully expanded into the insurance industry and
wherein received long-term IT managed service orders, hence allowing more room for
development in this business segment.
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In view of the increasing use of Cloud and digital transformation by enterprises, ASL
closely cooperated with the world’s leading digital transformation expert Alibaba
Cloud, and reached a strategic cooperation agreement in the first half of 2018. Such
scope of cooperation included Cloud security solutions and sales and marketing, with
an aim to further develop the Cloud market in Hong Kong and Macau regions. These
services were gradually recognized by customers, and the Group has successfully
obtained its first order from the finance industry.

As for the overseas business, Grid Dynamics recorded robust growth during the
year. Its revenue and gross profit recorded remarkable increases of 75.0% and
68.4% respectively when compared to last year. The revenue derived from existing
customers grew progressively, among which the business scale reached ten million
US dollars within customers from renowned multinational technology corporations.
Meanwhile, during the year, the Group also adopted the new equity incentive plan
of Grid Dynamics so as to encourage its employees to strive to enhance the value of
Grid Dynamics and to maintain its momentum of sustainable development. In order
to further cope with the business expansions, Grid Dynamics opened its 6th research
and development center in Serbia and set up a new office in Texas, the US during the
year, so as to further strengthen the Group’s support in different regions and its global
delivery capabilities to meet different customer needs in various regions.

Outlook and Prospects

In the era of Cloud Computing, our provision of safe and reliable Cloud services in
the above three major businesses in order to assist customers in optimizing its existing
IT resources, enhancing the efficiency and performance of its IT systems, expanding
its IT capability and technological innovation, as well as devising and exploring more
effective business models and business opportunities, will undoubtedly be our focus in
the next phase of development.

The Group has always been aware of the different needs of its customers, hence it
kept adding its own infrastructure to attain service improvement. Subsequent to the
introduction of artificial intelligence at the Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+) in
2018 to enhance the capability of customer network protection, the Group is planning
to invest resources worth tens of millions of Hong Kong dollars in the coming years
on the enhancement of service platforms in omni-channel and Cloud services, aiming
to gain potential for sustainable development and to deepen the cooperation with its
customers. Moreover, in respect of overseas business, the Group decided to inject a
total of more than HK$50 million in 2018 and 2019 to facilitate Grid Dynamics in the
research and development of leading-edge technology in areas of artificial intelligence
and machine learning, the transformation of commercial application capabilities, as
well as the cross-sector cross-border expansion of its business territory.

In terms of risks and challenges, as the Group expects that Cloud platforms and
Cloud services will be more widely used by enterprises around the world, it anticipates
that this will intensify the downward pressure on the Group’s traditional reseller
business, and especially under the impact of the general economic environment, the
Group foresees that the increase of its overall business pressure and risk will be more
perceptible in the second half of 2019. In view of the above, the Group has developed
a risk control system as a solution.
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Moreover, the Group will continue to focus its business procedures, optimize and
improve its structure and enhance its talent resources, with the aim to achieve
breakthroughs in new businesses areas, new technical fields and new customers from
various industries.

Looking forward, the Group believes that the Belt and Road and the development
of the Greater Bay Area will help facilitate the connections between Hong Kong and
mainland China, and the Group expects that such development will drive the future
demand for IT. The Group will also leverage on its position as an IT service provider
to promote mainland China’s advanced technology products to overseas market or
to draw international clients into China’s market. The Group will continue to closely
cooperate with strategic partners to consolidate its business locations in Greater
China and Southeast Asia and to seize global opportunities to accelerate its process of
globalization.

"EMPOWER", “SECURE"” and “MANAGE" are the three main core values being
brought to customers by the Group. By dint of the Group’s seven research and
development centers located worldwide, with over a thousand IT professionals
and with over forty years of industry experience in providing professional IT
services, we will continue to leverage our strengths to assist customers in their
frontend-to-backend digital transformation as well as to strive to provide diversified,
one-stop innovative IT solutions and services to customers from various industries.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st December 2018, the Group's total assets of HK$2,381.0 million were
financed by current liabilities of HK$834.3 million, non-current liabilities of HK$333.8
million and shareholders’ equity of HK$1,212.9 million. The Group had a working
capital ratio of approximately 1.32:1.

As at 31st December 2018, the Group had an aggregate composite banking facility
from banks of approximately HK$388.1 million (2017: HK$371.0 million). The Group
had pledged land and buildings of HK$280.7 million (2017: HK$272.0 million),
investment properties of HK$54.0 million (2017: HK$52.3 million ) and restricted bank
deposits HK$0.8 million (2017: HK$0.8 million) for banking facility and performance
bonds granted to the Group respectively. The performance bonds issued by the Group
to customers as security of contracts were approximately HK$68.5 million as at 31st
December 2018 (2017: HK$63.3 million). The Group’s gearing ratio (total borrowings
over total equity) was 39.7% as at 31st December 2018 (2017: 44.9%).

Material Acquisition or Disposal

During the year ended 31st December 2018, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had material acquisition or disposal.
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Fund Raising Activities

Adjustment and Transfer of Convertible Bonds

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 12th January 2017,
23rd February 2017, 8th March 2017, 21st March 2017, 8th June 2017, 25th August
2017, 8th June 2018 and 29th June 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 24th
February 2017 respectively, in relation to, among other matters, HKD denominated
zero coupon Convertible Bonds due on 21st March 2020 in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$350.0 million, with the conversion rights to convert the principal
amount thereof into 291,666,666 Conversion Shares at the initial Conversion Price of
HK$1.20 per Conversion Share (subject to adjustment). The Convertible Bonds with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$350.0 million, convertible into 291,666,666
conversion shares, have been successfully placed to two placees, namely Viewforth
Limited (“Viewforth”) and China Fortune Rich Private Equity Fund Limited (“China
Fortune”) on 21st March 2017.

On 25th August 2017, China Fortune has exercised the conversion rights to convert
the principal amount of HK$100.0 million at the adjusted conversion price of HK1.09
per share into 91,743,119 Shares. The aggregate outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds was HK$250.0 million as at 31st December 2018.

The conversion price of the Convertible Bonds and the number of conversion shares
falling to be allotted and issued upon conversion of the Convertible Bonds were
adjusted to HK$0.91 and 274,725,274 conversion shares respectively with effect from
30th May 2018 as a result of bonus issue of the Company approved at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 16th May 2018.

On 29th June 2018, Viewforth transferred the Convertible Bonds in a principal
amount of the HK$250.0 million which are convertible into 274,725,274 Conversion
Shares at the Adjusted Conversion Price of HK$0.91 per Conversion Share, to Triple
Wise Asset Holdings Ltd. (“Triple Wise"). Triple Wise has become the registered holder
of the Convertible Bonds in the total principal amount of HK$250.0 million, which
represented approximately 25.44% of the number of issued Shares as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the Conversion Shares.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, there was no conversion or redemption
of the Convertible Bonds.
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Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated resources and
credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available for the Group include trust
receipt loans, clean import loans, overdrafts and term loans. The interest rates of most
of them are fixed by reference to the respective countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The
bank deposits are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United
States dollars (“USD"). The bank borrowings are denominated in HKD.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and USD. Foreign exchange
exposure to USD of the Group will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to link HKD to USD
remains in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
and therefore no related hedging financial instrument was applied during the year
ended 31st December 2018 (2017: same).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2018, the Group had HK$0.8 million restricted bank deposits
held as security for performance bonds (2017: HK$0.8 million). As at 31st December
2018, performance bonds of approximately HK$68.5 million (2017: HK$63.3 million)
had been issued by the bank on behalf of the Group to customers as security of
contracts.

Capital Commitments

As at 31st December 2018, the Group had contracted capital commitments
amounting to approximately HK$11.5 million (2017: HK$11.6 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2018, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 26.9% and 7.0%,
respectively, of the Group’s revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 34.9% and 10.6%, respectively, of
the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2018 did a Director, their close
associate or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) has an
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2018, the Group, excluding its associates, employed 2,297
permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Macau,
Thailand, the United States, Russia, Poland, Ukraine and Serbia. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, working experience and the
prevailing market conditions. Bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other
employee benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance, medical coverage
and share option scheme.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR 2019
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on Wednesday,
22nd May 2019. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 17th May 2019 to Wednesday, 22nd May 2019, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 16th May 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2018, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited
annual results.

By Order of the Board

WANG Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20th March 2019
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ASL Macau Innovation

——— Activity Highlights
EEER

MAR = A

Informatica Partner

MAR = A

Girls Go Tech Mobile

MAR = A

Driving Digital

MAR = A

Microsoft Tech Summit

—e 20

Day Executive Dinner Classroom Transformation with a 2018
BB RFURFIEIRIE Informatica Girls Go Tech RE#H = Secure Digital Workspace &L AE
AEBHITBRAERE Seminar 2018
[ F %2 & /O 200 T 1
SRENERTSEA | E e
APR M@ A APR [ A APR [ A JUN < H AUG \ A
BYOD Network Set-up, The Hybrid Cloud for IT Alibaba Cloud and ASL ASL Solution Day ASL Webinar Series
Security and Solution Transformation Business Strategic Cooperation EEES Y= EEES N =]

Experience Day
BYOD #8## 52 - A%
ESESEAS

Luncheon
DCEAZE) IT &8 | 55

SR
23
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Signing Ceremony
[ o] 222 62 5 B AR A B
AtFl #EESX
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Activity Highlights
EBTER

v E
T e ‘
SERG—B—B ’

BRI . ‘

FERE AEAH AETRZEEES

SEP LA

Microsoft Al Summit

SEP LA

Citrix Synergy Direct

SEP LA

Informatica World

SEP LA

The Computing

SEP LA

Information Security

SEP LA

McAfee Device to

WE A EE Hong Kong Tour 2018 Conference in Summit 2018 Cloud and CASB
Citrix Synergy Direct  Informatica 2018 Hangzhou 2018 BRL=EE Solution for Office
5 HREHAE 2018MUM ¢ EEER 2018 365 Seminar
& [ McAfee Device to
Cloud and CASB
Solution for Office
365 FARE
OCT +A OCT +A OoCT +A NOV +—A NOV +—A DEC +=AH

The International
Conference on
Smart Mobility and

Accelerate Modern
Application
Architectures

Hong Kong
International
Computer

BMC Exchange
Hong Kong 2018
BMC Exchange &/&

Huawei Shenzhen
Headquarters Visit
2B B FRYBE

Wins the Leaders of
Innovation Awards
2019

Logistics in Future in Multi-Cloud Conference 2018 2018 mis [T Em AR
Cities Luncheon HEEREN SR 2019]
RAWTEBHT [EZERIREHR 2018
EYR R g REABRRZERE] T

gg
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RERFFEZEEZSH

CUSTOMER
5F

——Major Contracts Secured in the Year

SCOPE OF WORK
BREE

A famous Hong Kong-based airline

—HLIREBMEEMZEAT

A government authority

—BPRED

A government authority
—BRRRD
A leading testing services company

—ERBHRE A A

A Macau government department

—RFIBUTERFT

A multi-distribution insurance company in Hong Kong
—ABZHERBRRAR

A number of banks

ZMRTT

A professional airlines aviation training institution
—EENMZERITIH IS

A renowned bank

—HBIRT

A renowned multinational enterprise
—RABERPESE

A reputable financial institution
—ERREANTRIKE

A world’s leading air cargo terminal
—HRERNEE G,

An Australia’s leading provider of
telecommunications services

—EME LB BRI 47
One of the oldest universities in Hong Kong

BERESBIEAANEZ —

Annual Report 2018 G #f

Provision of big data integration and data analytics system development on
customer service and operation enhancement

REETERA B R IR R & E MR 2 REUBRES REIE ST ZatH %

A new-type infrastructure order on providing assistance to its construction of
Smart City and being responsible for the management and implementation of a
data platform for the Smart Lampposts
—RHBPEBREERMOMLERZRNE  AEEENERERE
Ed=0L¢ S

Offer comprehensive daily operational support services

Rt EN HBEEERS

Leverage Robotic Process Automation (RPA) tool to design, develop, deploy,
stabilize and optimize the enterprise’s testing report generation process
MAKSARZESETAER R EE - BF  ®ERELEEDN
BRI E DT

Provision of face-recognition technology system and implementation services
TR R BRI BT R 5t K B AR

Provision of long-term IT managed service

R AHZFHNEARHE R RS

Provision of high cybersecurity standard of services and solutions to comply the
new or more stringent cybersecurity regulations of related authorities, such as
C-RAF and CSP
REBARTDRENRBEIART R - RS AR 23288 BR e
HIRIEMR - 0 C-RAF J2 CSP

Provision of complete turnkey solutions and services including design, supply,
installation, wiring, testing, commissioning and warranties of the network
infrastructure

RESEHOAE RS RMRE - ESKERREHRT  BE &
5 ARBRER - BIH - ARARE

Application development and mobile development service to support client’s
mobile banking enhancement & roadmap

[EIE R B IR R B AR T PR R B IR M R R R B R )
Transfer the IT infrastructure from its headquarters in Hong Kong to Cloud
platform and ensure the security of its data on different Cloud platforms
BYERBENERENEMMBERREEERT A  BREEEBNRTE
BT AR

Provision of large-scale private Cloud services

REARRANTLA Z IR

Provision of large-scale IT outsourcing service

TRHRRLE ARHR SN AR TS

Provision of one-stop migration solutions and professional consulting services
R BRAT R REEEARE

Develop a complex Software Defined Network infrastructure for the school
campus and provide a large-scale deployment for up to 10,000 end-user devices
RREFREENR TR BREREE - WAZE 10,000 ExEERE
R BIREAI A E



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAEB/N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HTES

Mr. WANG Weihang
THMEE

Mr. Wang, aged 52, has been a Director of the Company since
2009 and was re-designated from a Non-Executive Director to an
Executive Director in May 2014. Mr. Wang is currently the chairman
and president, and a director of Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd.
("Teamsun”) and the sole director of Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited
("Hong Kong Teamsun”), the Company’s immediate holding company.
Hong Kong Teamsun is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Teamsun, the
Company’s ultimate holding company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600410.SH). Mr. Wang is currently a director of
certain subsidiaries of Teamsun. Prior to re-designation as the chairman
and president of Teamsun, Mr. Wang was the vice chairman and
general manager of the first board of directors of Teamsun, and the
vice chairman and president of the second, third and fourth board of
directors of Teamsun. Mr. Wang was also the president of the seventh
council of Beijing Software Industry Association. Mr. Wang holds an
Executive Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua
University in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and a Master’s
Degree in Semi-Conductor Materials and Microelectronic Technology
from the Information and Electronic Engineering Department of
Zhejiang University in the PRC. Mr. Wang was awarded as % B &£ {4
EE 4P %R (China Software Industry Qutstanding Entrepreneur
Laureate®) and A B & {4+ & 2 Th B A ¥ (China Software Industry
Prestige Award Laureate*) by China Software Industry Association in
2009. He was also awarded the “Innovation Outstanding Personality

of Chinese Brand Award” in 2011.

ThE BFRATZR BZTTNFRBRETAQRES WHRZF
—MERABEFNTEFACANTES - TEERARRAIRLE

RGFT T (BHASE : 600410.5H) Z A& A A4 RER K
&ﬂ&%ﬁﬁm“ﬂﬁi%iWDZ§$E% ERNES WAKN

NElZ EBRERARZEBREER (BB BR AR ([ EBEBRK])
M—EE BBEBAKNEBRARNEEZ 2 ERBWB LA
FERREBRKETHERARZES - RATAEBRKZEER
REHR  TAECIEBARFE —BESCRESRFBLEELE
*‘:&EF§$@@§$E%%ﬁ°I%Eﬁ“&tﬂ@ﬁﬁ%%
CFELEEFEER  cTAERBAPEARKME ([HE])EFEX
BRI EREEABTITREEBELIEMEFBINTIAZEE %%Iii
BEZBPRIMETFERTEN - TEAEN_STHERTREFITE
REREFERGELGELCERRPREEHEEEZNBAY - HBIFR
TE——FREE [P ERRA G A o

Mr. WANG Yueou
FTEBEE

Chief Executive Officer

TRAEER

Mr. Wang Yueou, aged 44, has been the Chief Executive Officer
and an Executive Director of the Company since September 2016
and September 2015 respectively. Mr. Wang joined the Group in
2011 and was the Financial Controller, the Chief Financial Officer
and the Joint Company Secretary of the Group. He is currently a
director of certain subsidiaries and associates of the Company (i.e.
the directorships of i-Sprint Holdings Limited and i-Sprint Innovations
Pte Ltd), and a supervisor of Victorysoft Technology Ltd, the joint
venture company of the Company in the PRC. He has been appointed
as a director of Teamsun since December 2017 and is currently the
chief financial officer and a director of Carnation Software Ltd., a
subsidiary of Teamsun. Mr. Wang was the chief financial officer and
a board secretary of Guangzhou Headway Technology Co., Ltd.
and the regional finance manager (China) of Wistron Information
Technology & Services Corporation. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in International Accounting from Jinan University in the PRC,
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University of Wales
in the United Kingdom and an Executive Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Research Institute of Tsinghua University in the
PRC.

TBEBSE  BEN+TEE - 9B E—"FLAKZZE—RFH
RERHERR R Z1TIHA ﬁ&iﬂﬁi% FRERZZ——FNAKR
El&ﬁzﬁ’ilzﬁﬁ%ﬁ%‘% - ISR EE R FE A R E o IR

BANEETHEB AR K& A5 2 &S (Bi-Sprint Holdings Limited
&l—Sprlnt Innovations Pte Ltd 2 Z %) * URARFRFEZEER
AL REBREERARZES - FE T —tF T+ ARETAE
BARKZ EEURRBEB RN WBRREBMNAT T E#ERGER
NEIZHBRERES - TRAESARNEGEREER AR Z M2
EREFEWE  UARBABUHERNER AT ZHEEMFEIE - £
FEREPEERMASRE CERST 220 - RERRETASE
B IWMEBELTEMN  URPBEIEERNSBHIARELE 2R REEA
ETRERBELTEM -
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREBEAEB/N

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FUTES

Mr. LI Wei
FERE

Chairman

EE

Mr. Li, aged 54, has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board
and a Non-Executive Director of the Company since September 2015.
He has been appointed as a director of Teamsun since March 2014.
Mr. Li is currently a director of certain subsidiaries of Teamsun. He
was the acting chief financial officer of Teamsun, an instructor of
Jinling Institute of Technology, the manager of Jiangsu East Securities
Brokerage Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huatai Securities
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Jiangsu Securities Co., Ltd.), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601688.SH), the
chairman assistant and the general manager of investment department
of Jiangsu Youfu Yuandong Group Co., Ltd., the general manager
of Nanjing Weizhong Technology Industrial Co., Ltd., the general
manager of Nanning Yinhe South Software Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Galaxy Biomedical Investment Co., Ltd. (formerly known
as Beihai Yinhe Industry Investment Co., Ltd.), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000806.57), a director of the
East China Representative Office of China Venture Capital Research
Institute and the general manager of Shanghai Business Department
of the International Division of China Potevio Co., Ltd., in the PRC. Mr.
Li holds a Bachelor’s Degree from East China Normal University in the
PRC, a Master’s Degree from Nanjing Normal University in the PRC and
an Executive Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in the PRC.

Fhd  BER+TNR A EZ—AFNARZTARRRESE T
ERIENTES - A - NE=Z RS TAEBRAR I ES - F
EERBEBRANETHEARZES  HNPE G TEBRRNAE
I HRE - SIERHT ST AR - DEBEFR ST MR RERESFR
MERAR (AIE  IEHEBEHFAR) (RO - 601688.5H) 2 2&
MBAR IHRIBHELATKIE IHEASRRETAARAAE
EROEFWEAHBLE HREPREEEBRARBKEE - 7
BEX S EMARLEGRTEMEZLERGBERAR (A4 4t
BHTEERERNOBRAT) (BRMHDAIR : 000806.52) 2 2 & i &
NEIFEBERAETRGARARALE - PRERIEERERERR
REFERPELE X ESEEROARAABBREERT DFEB
BISIE - TR AP HERMEASREE 2B +20 - PEIFERA
HABRBEELEN  URFBRRINERBE AREEABT
FE B2
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Mr. CUI Yong
ERXLE

Mr. Cui, aged 51, has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since September 2015. He joined Teamsun in March 2005. He has
been appointed as a director, the executive vice president and the
general manager of the system information product (plate) and
service (plate) division in Teamsun since December 2017, January
2017 and January 2015 respectively. During his tenure with Teamsun,
Mr. Cui was the general manager of various divisions, including
telecommunications industry, value-added storage business division
and system product business division. Mr. Cui holds an Executive
Master of Business Administration from Guanghua School of
Management in Peking University in the PRC.

BRE RFA+T—m B2 LFNAEZERARFENTE
E-RR_ZETRF=AMBEBRK - BROFBE_ZE—tF+=
A2 tF-ARSE-hAF-AREZEREBAKES B
TRIBE R F 5 E REMR (R) MARTS (RIB) B8 - ERENE
AR ERERE - QREZENPIRLE - HheEEMTE  FH
BESZLAMFREMRFFN - ELERFAPRILRAR L EEEE
Brifs s MEBAB IEEIBR LTS -



INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BUYFHTES

Mr. PAN Xinrong
B TE

Mr. Pan, aged 64, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since September 2015. He was an executive director
and the deputy chairman of Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock Code: 934) from 2004 to 2007 and was the
chief executive officer of Petro-Cyberworks Information Technology
Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2014. Mr. Pan also held financial positions
in various companies, including China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation (“SINOPEC"), China Petrochemical Corporation, China
Eastern United Petrochemical (Group) Company Limited and SINOPEC
Anging Company (formerly known as China Petrochemical Anging
Petrochemical Plate). Mr. Pan graduated from China Huazhong
University of Science and Technology with a profession in Quantitative
Economics. Mr. Pan was awarded the “Outstanding Management
Award"” by China Petroleum and Chemical Industries Integration of
Informatization and Industrialization in 2011 and the First Prize of
SINOPEC Technology Advancement in 2014.

EEE  BREARTEE - B —RFNABEZERARFE LI
TEF WER_ZENMFE-_TTHFARTERAIIMERLA]
TR ETRRFALEBEERAR QR (RMHESE  934) EERITE
ERBEEER -_ZERFE_T-NFNOEARMEERMERE
ERARETEFENTERML - BEENERPELBMETIRNARR
aA(HEAt]) PR TEERR  FERBO(CEEERE
ERREFEALCZED AR (514 : HEACRERMC TR %
SRRARHERBRA - BEERENPEEDHBRASHELESE
¥ BEER T —FEPEOBNETITEMERAMRE [ 4T
EER| LR E-FEREPEOENERATE S R 518 -

Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREBEAEB/N

Mpr. DENG Jianxin
WEF KL

Mr. Deng, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since September 2015. He is currently an executive
director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Capital Investment Management
Co., Ltd.* (RYITTEILERIEEERHIRAR]), an executive director
of Shenzhen Zhuoyi Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* (RJIT =
Iz EIREFABRAA]), an executive director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan
Enterprise Consultants Co., Ltd* CRYITT £ Icb 2R AR A A]), the
chairman of Shanghai Debimai Enterprise Management Consulting
Co., Ltd* (LBEMIRDEEIE LB MR AT, a director of Shandong
Bori Bioenergy Co., Ltd., a company listed on the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations System (the “New Third Board” ) in the
PRC (Stock Code: 871585.0C), the chairman of Shanghai 4Smart
Technology Co., Ltd. and the chairman of Hangzhou Zhuoyuan
Ledao Holding Co., Ltd.. Mr. Deng was a supervisor of Shanghai
Dobe Cultural & Creative Industry Development (Group) Co., Ltd., a
partner of Beijing JD Capital Co., Ltd., a partner of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Limited (“Deloitte”), a full-time member of the 7th and 8th
Stock Offering Approval Committee of China Securities Regulatory
Commission, an independent director of Guangbo Group Stock Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
002103.57) and a director of Suzhou Gardens Construction Industry
Corporation, a company listed on the New Third Board in the PRC
(Stock Code: 833209.0C). Mr. Deng was mainly responsible for
managing and auditing the listing of companies as well as the merger
and acquisition services in Deloitte. Mr. Deng holds a Bachelor Degree
in Accounting from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in the
PRC and an Executive Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in the PRC.

et BERATUR B2 RAFNAEZTAKRRRBIIEY
TEE - FHRARMETERREEBEERAFNTES  FIIm
BlIEEBERAERAFTNTES  FITETLEEM AR A AT
FE - DEBEVRCEEBEZABRARNESR  FREEEF /N
BEERGE((H =R EMARILURE NEDERRRO AR AR
(B ARSE - 871585.00) BE ~ HIBHEEERFARAREERENL
MMNETLBEIRERAFEER - HLELT HSBUULAIEE
¥BR(EE)BRAFNES LRARTNEREEEARAGIAE
A EHSHMEEA((EZHDEBA PHREESFECELE/E
REHTEZZECERETE  FIEEL S ETAREHEER
PAERAE (B HRER - 002103.52) B EEMFHT =R EH A aEM
BEMEEEERMER AR (BRHARSE : 833209.0C)F % - BEAR
EHFIZABPEITNEIRREZ  WABHEREER - Bi4
BEPRETEEEEREGH RSB NPERTIHERBEE
EREBEABTIREEBELTEM -
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEABRBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

BIYEHITESE o)

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina
ANE L+

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina, aged 49, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since April 2017. She has been
a director and president of Schneider Electric (Hong Kong) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric SE (collectively
with its subsidiaries “Schneider Electric”), a company listed on the
Euronext Paris Stock Exchange (Stock Code: SU) since 2015 and is
currently a director of certain subsidiaries of Schneider Electric. She
joined Schneider Electric in 1994 and held various positions with
Schneider Electric, including the vice president of global purchasing
of Schneider Electric between 2012 and 2014 and the president
of Schneider Electric Taiwan Co., Ltd. between 2008 and 2011.
Ms. Or has also been appointed as a member of Energy Advisory
Committee of Environment Bureau of The Government of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region since 2016. She has more than
20 years’ management experience in energy management and
automation industry. Ms. Or holds an Executive Master's Degree in
Business Administrative from the Kellogg School of Management at
Northwestern University in the United States of America and the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, and a Master’s degree of
Science in Management from ESSEC Graduate School of Management
in France.

f/NEZt - BEN+HAR BT —FHUABZER/RNRAEL
FEMITESE - KA T -RFREFERZBESFXSM LT AR
R E RN BR AR (RO - SU) CEREME AR - 5t [
MfEER]) 22 EMNB AR EREER(EE) ERATNES REL
BNREMEERETHEARZES - HR— W AmLFENAMEME
BREZEZERL  BER - —F2 -2 -NFHHRMEMNE
BEREHRBHBLHEN —_ZTN\FE_T——FHRABERM
BERARAREER - MZLFE T R"FEZERTEENTHR
BRERERDAAREERE - FREREELEBITERRERBB
THEERLR - MATHEERAILARIIERER SR REBT
BPABITHAEIRERBELTEM EESSLBEREERH b
(ESSEC) BRI+ 247 -

# For identification purpose only

Annual Report 2018 G #f

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SREEAS

Mr. NGAN Wai Hing
BEESE

Financial Controller and Company Secretary
B BRI R 1 &

Mr. Ngan, aged 47, has been the Financial Controller and the
Company Secretary of the Company since September 2016. Mr.
Ngan joined the Company in 2009 and was a financial controller
of a subsidiary of the Company. He was also the Joint Company
Secretary of the Company from September 2014 to August 2016.
Mr. Ngan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Financial Administration (major
in accounting) from University of New England in Australia and is a
certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a certified practicing accountant of CPA Australia.

BA  MFM+T+Hr - B -Z—R"FHLARBERARRMBEELE
RRARME - BEER _ZETNFNEARRT R G BEAR R —HEH
BRARZHISHBLIE - FHET—NFNAAZZT—R"EN\AHT
RABZBFERARWE - BAERERMAERBARZ HBERS
TR (EEEFHER)  WITRBE ST A S a M &5t
CIFN-EE -
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERHRE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance to the
Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying and
formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). During the year
ended 31st December 2018, the Company has complied with all the code provisions,
save and except for code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2, details of which are explained
below. The Company regularly monitors and reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure these continue to meet the increasing stringent regulatory
requirements and to improve its corporate governance practices.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of Directors (the “Board”)
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and transparency and
accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted the written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a view to
enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the Company are
delegated to the management.

The Board reserves its decisions for all major matters of the Company, including
the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes to capital and overall
corporate structure, risk management and internal control systems, material
transactions (in particular those which may involve conflicts of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services from the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals have to be obtained
from the Board prior to entering into any significant transactions by the above-
mentioned officers.

The Board has the full support from the Chief Executive Officer and senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.
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ARTRRAG 2 AR EAURABRER 2 EE
P BREIEES S  WERRHEDS EEBEE
2 REEARR -

ARBIZLEERERDNEREEHARIMBERA
Bl ([BERFT]) & %5 Em R AN ([ EARA]) Mgk 14 A
o EEERFRTAD ((FADD) A 2 R A &
STAHEmHIE - BHEZTE—N\F+-A=1+—81
FE - ARABETHATRIEX - EREET R
FACTERBEN2EZHATE  AEFEBRNTX
Wi o ARRTHIER LB EMEEATR - U
REBERETHRENEEATRRSHLEEART
o

ARRRFAEESFE((EF ) EZER2AG B
ARRREAMEL RIES - WHERMTA ETE RS
HEAERMEN -

ARBZ TBCEERRUNERMMLT

EEE

BE
ARABERHERFRANEHRELE D 2 BiERE
& REERATRARETEREORE -

BEEgRBERAEACKEURBBE R - KR

SRR ERNARRZAEEE MHERES

EXeRBYARFAMEERFTHIRERE - BIEH
ERERBRRERE BAREROXERABET  Ek
ERNAMERERS  BEARS (FHIRM LS EA
wnBHR2zRXS) HBEHN BEEETwREMEEY
BREEERE -

2REFYAEHNMFIS—BRBEER - ULES
RAWEZBER MR  BUBREZSRERFL
P& B AR A SR PIRSEE -

REEBERT  FEF-RAUMNESSRLER - A
MAARRZ ABERABELIEXEER -

ARBZAFER  THREETEDRIRT1THRAR
BLSREERE - ZIRBEE R TIESEMima Lt
BRBENETENERARZANAFERSEESH
e

ERERRSTRARRSREREENXE - BT
HIBHE -

27 o——



—e 28

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of two Executive Directors,
two Non-Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
number of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents more than one-third of the
Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Board currently comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Weihang
Mr. Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Pan Xinrong

Mr. Deng Jianxin

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina

None of the members of the Board has any financial, business, family or other material
relationships with each other.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 23 to 26 of this annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules and is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through active participation in Board meetings and affairs of the Company,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflicts of interests and serving
in Board committees, all Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures for the
appointment of Directors.

The Company has adopted the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company. These procedures are available and accessible
on the Company’s website at http://www.asl.com.hk.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
are as set out in the Bye-laws of the Company. The Board established a Nomination
Committee to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually, identify suitable candidates for the Board, and to make recommendations
on any matters in relation to the appointment and re-appointment of members of the
Board. Appointment of new Directors is reserved for the Board'’s approval.

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Board comprises members with a diverse
range of skills and experience with the appropriate knowledge necessary to oversee
the business development, strategies, operations, challenges and opportunities of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Nomination Committee takes that
person’s skills, qualifications and expected contributions to the Company into account
before making any recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment or
re-appointment of members of the Board.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process,
with the advice provided by the Nomination Committee, by making reference to the
proposed candidates’ skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments as well as the needs of the Company and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to
carry out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM") one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as additional Director shall be subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors is appointed under a specific term and they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company.

The Company has formal letters of appointment for all Non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors) or service contracts for Executive
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment and the terms
of references have set out the work scope of the Board committees and delegation
were made by the Board in respect of the responsibilities of the Non-Executive
Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors) in such Board Committees.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Wang Yueou, Mr. Pan Xinrong
and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 Z 5B BR A7

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

BEES )
EECEAREHRE

AAREREFZ2EME  BUER  KFEZERA
BREZIER

RABIERARRIBEANERERNRREENERT -
IHE 12 Fp Al B AN A B 485 http://www.asl.com.hk 2 B
RAFE

ARAZ AEMRFHARE  BEMEREFENERF
LIH EFRCRURFZZEQELEFRNES
SR - AR ARKEKEZ T MEAEAR
MAEEG LR EMABEZENENREEEGNKE
MEFRMREBEZS TEENZIAFESZSH
;3

REZEeMRESFSNEABBEZMYENREER
ERIMEEAH  AEBARRRAMBAR (A%
B ) EBERE R 2E UEREE-ERE
FEREZENENZEEST SR E RIEFHEEEE
Al IRRZBE®EEZAATHRGE - BE MIAHY
ARRMELER

HWEESHRER EFGH2EHRELZE SRS
BEEREANTE - &8 BXENE - AABRERT
B - ARANFEREMBREE 2K BRI
ML ZEE o B VR HEFEINRIENRIE - AT
TRES SRy o

RIEARABZ AR RNE—RAARRIAF K
B(BRRAFAGDABEER=D2—Z2EF &
HBBEWF=sk =2 &% AIsEO 2 BB EIDR
SR —ZEBRRATRIE MBNEFRELE=F
WERE—IR - MERTINERHGRR ZREERITIE
EREZEMHESANEZER 2 BERRAEG Lk
REREE -

BUIFNTESIRBR EIRETHERT - B#EF
REARBZ AFHAARBRBEEFRE LRESER
[EIREE -

ARREAEEANERZERNTERIFNTESR(E
BB TER)IRBERTHITES - EPAT
AREZENIZEHERREN - TESSCOREEHE
WTER (BIEBIFATES) fIERESE - 29
HEEFGRE TR N TIFEENBE -

RBARFZARMA - ETEEELE  BREEER
AN EZTEREERFRFAS LRESE I
BERKEREREE -

29 o——



—e 30

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these Directors standing for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company'’s circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming AGM contains
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company. Each newly-appointed
Director receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for its
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and the
business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for Directors are arranged where necessary.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, a training session was organised by the
Company in November 2018 titled “The Establishment and Operation of Mergers
& Acquisition Funds by Listed Companies” and provided Directors with relevant
training materials. The training session was conducted by a professional institute with
a presentation and briefing materials. All Directors have provided the Company with
records of the trainings during the Year. According to the training records maintained
by the Company, the types of trainings received by each of the Directors during the
Year are summarised as follows:
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Types of Training
EHIE R
Attending seminar(s)/
conference and/or
forums conducted
by external parties

Receiving updates and
briefings from the
Company/self-study

WEHA AR HE B IMBEE

RENEFERR BRNTEE
Name of Director BENSG [PV =k SRR RwE
Executive Directors BITES
Wang Weihang FHEMm v
Wang Yueou TER v/
Non-executive Directors FHITESR
Li Wei FE v
Cui Yong BB /
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Pan Xinrong ERER v
Deng Jianxin B2 v/
Or Siu Ching, Rerina NE v/
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Insurance Cover for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors to comply with the requirement of the Code.

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee members

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board has at least four regular meetings a year and holds additional meetings on

other occasions as needed.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, the Board held four Board meetings.
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The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings, meetings of
Board committees and/or the general meetings of the Company held during the year

ended 31st December 2018 are set out below:

BEEREE-T
MANREFERAETZEESNEERIREKR

—NF+ A=+ —ALEFERT

&2 ARt fE s E T

Attendance/Number of Meetings held during the tenure of directorship
RESHEHALE CETEERY

Special
Remuneration Audit  Nomination Management  Investment 2018 AGM General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee “B-N\F Meeting
Name of Directors ESfg EZg HMZRE€ BRZEE REZEE EEZEE REZEE RRBEFAE RREAE
Executive Directors HiTES
Wang Weihang T 44 N/A N/A N/A N/A 17 11 0/1
@A @A @A @A
Wang Yueou BR 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 444 10 10 10
@A @A @A
Non-Executive Directors ~ JFH{TES
Li Wei' R 24 17 24 17 24 N/A 01 0N
TiEA
Cui Yong ER 2/4 N/A N/A N/A 2/4 N/A 0/1 0/1
TEm TEm TERm TER
Independent Non- BUHTES
Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong EME 44 22 44 1 N/A 17 17 0/1
NER
Deng Jianxin ilfesil 444 N/A 44 17 N/A 17 17 0/
@A @A
Or Siu Ching, Rerina & 444 20 444 N/A N/A N/A 17 17
&R TER TER
Note: &
1. Mr. Li Wei was present in person in two of the four Management Committee meetings, 1. ZFEILAWRMAERZESeRTHRAELFERL - E&p

and the remaining two Management Committee meetings were attended and voted on his

behalf by Mr. Wang Weihang during his business trips.

Save as disclosed above, none of the meetings set out above was attended by any

alternate Director.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with

the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors)

without the presence of Executive Directors during the year ended 31st December

2018.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum attendance of
the Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board meetings and Board committees meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days (or such other period as agreed)
before each Board meeting or Board committees meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The management has provided all members of the Board with monthly updates giving
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings
and Board committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered by the Board
and dealt with by a physical board meeting rather than a written resolution. The
Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of power and authority.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Li Wei and Mr.
Wang Yueou respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set
out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning of
the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the support
of the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-
day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the Board'’s approval.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective since 30th August 2013. All
board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
based on objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors. One of them is
female. Three of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, professional
background and skills.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy effective since 31st December 2018. This
policy aims to set out guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are
to be declared and paid, and the level of dividend to be paid to the shareholders
of the Company. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board should also take into account, inter alia,
the following factors:—

(@) the actual and expected financial results of the Group;

(b) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the Group;

(c) the Group's business strategies, including future cash commitments and
investment needs to sustain the long-term growth aspect of the business;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders;

(e) the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital requirements of
the Group; and

(f) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Subject to the laws of Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the Company and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations, dividends may be paid in cash or be satisfied wholly
or partly in the form of allotment of shares of the Company. The Board may also
consider the issuance of bonus shares on a basis permitted by the applicable laws
and regulations. The dividend shall include scrip dividends, distributions in specie or in
kind, capital distributions and capitalisation issues.

The Board may from time to time determine and pay to the Company’s shareholders
interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the position of the
Company. The Board may recommend the payment of final dividends which are
required to be approved by shareholders of the Company in general meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five committees, namely Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Management Committee and Investment
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange and/or are available to shareholders upon request.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from time to time to
facilitate the Company’s operations.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Pan Xinrong and
Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina. Mr. Pan Xinrong is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management and share
options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual remuneration
packages of all Directors and the senior management and other related matters. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2018. At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the
Directors’ remuneration packages (including their service agreements) and bonuses
payable and matters concerning share options, and determined, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the code provision B.1.5, the annual
remuneration of a member of the senior management by band for the year ended

31st December 2018 is set out below:
Remuneration band Number of Individual

HKD1,500,001 - HKD2,000,000 1
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Pan Xinrong, Mr. Deng
Jianxin and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina, among them one Independent Non-Executive
Director possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Mr. Deng Jianxin is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the management, internal auditor or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditor with reference to the work
performed by the auditor, its independence, fees and terms of engagement, and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor;

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems and associated procedures;
and

(d) to report the findings and make recommendations to the Board for improvements
or implementations in relation to the above matters.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st December 2018.
At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the following:

(@) the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures;

(b) the reports from the external auditor, management letters and management
response;

(c) the corporate governance matters;

(d) the matters in relation to the risk management and internal control systems as
well as internal audit function; and

(e) the re-appointment of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice during the year ended 31st
December 2018.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st December 2018 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director and two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Pan Xinrong and Mr.
Deng Jianxin. Mr. Li Wei is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

(c) to access the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman of
the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31st December
2018. At the meeting, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the following:

(a) the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;
(b) the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

(c) to make recommendation to the Board about the proposed re-election of
Directors who were due to retire at the AGM; and

(d) the time spent by Non-Executive Directors to fulfill their duties.

A set of nomination procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of the
Company has been adopted by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

A nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”) has been adopted by
the Board on 31st December 2018. The key nomination criteria and principles of the
Company for the nomination of Directors constitute the Nomination Policy as set out
below:

(a) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

(©) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive;

(d) before recommending an appointment, to evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity on the Board, and, in the light of this
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for a
particular appointment. In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall:

(i) use such method or methods to facilitate the search as it may deem
appropriate;

(i) consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds; and

(iiiy consider candidates on merit and against objective criteria and with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, taking care that candidates
have enough time available to devote to the position; and

(e) to ensure that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive
a formal letter of appointment setting out clearly what is expected of them in
terms of time commitment, committee service and involvement outside Board
meetings, where appropriate.

Management Committee

The Management Committee currently comprises one Executive Director and two
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Yueou, Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Cui Yong. Mr.
Wang Yueou is the chairman of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and reviewing
the Company’'s day-to-day operations and financial reporting, and making
recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies of the Group. The
Management Committee meets as appropriate and when required to discuss the
related issues.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Wang Yueou,
Mr. Pan Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the
Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee is primarily responsible for identifying and evaluating
existing and potential investment opportunities for the Company, and making
recommendations to the Board. The Investment Committee meets as and when
required to discuss the related issues.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
December 2018.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has delegated the duties and responsibilities in performing its corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is responsible for
corporate governance functions with the following duties:

(a) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2018.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of
the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The Board has received from the management explanation and relevant information
which enable the Board to make an informed assessment for approving the financial
statements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of external auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
76 to 80 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION (Continued)

The auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 31st December 2018 amounted to
HK$5,082,000, of which HK$1,675,000 and HK$444,000 were paid or payable to
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, the current external auditor, by the Company for
audit and non-audit services respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The main features of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists of the
Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the senior management. The Board
has evaluated and determined the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and has overseen the senior management
in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in providing direction
in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis,
the senior management identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of
the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to a
set of standardised criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners are then established
for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to assist the
Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of internal control systems
of the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal controls are
identified and recommendations are proposed for improvement. Significant internal
control deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely
basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.

Risk management report and internal control report which covered financial,
operational and compliance control for the year ended 31st December 2018, has
submitted for the Audit Committee’s and the Board’s reviews. The Group has an
internal audit function in place to provide an independent appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
in accordance with the Code. The Board had performed an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems during
the year, including but not limited to the change, since the last annual review, in
nature and extent of significant risk, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and external environment; the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risk management and internal control systems; the extent and
frequency of communication with the Board in relation to monitoring result of risk and
internal control review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rules compliance. The Board considers the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate. The Board in particular considers
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures Ordinance (“SFO")
and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours
as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that
the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the information
to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear
and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other general
meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors,
Independent Non-Executive Directors, and the Chairmen of all Board committees or
their delegate(s) will make themselves available at each AGM to meet shareholders
and answer their enquiries.

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy setting out the
Company’s procedures in providing the shareholders with clear communication and
easy access to information about the Company.

The 2018 AGM was held on 16th May 2018 (the “2018 AGM"). The notice of 2018
AGM was sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the 2018 AGM.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the view of shareholders. Two Non-Executive Directors did not
attend the 2018 AGM due to other commitments; and two Non-Executive Directors
and two Independent Non-Executive Directors did not attend a special general
meeting of the Company (the “SGM") held on 21st December 2018 due to other
commitments.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board should attend the
annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Wei, was unable to
attend the 2018 AGM due to other commitments. However, the chairmen of the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management
Committee and Investment Committee and/or their delegate, and the Company’s
external auditor have attended the 2018 AGM to answer questions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
http://www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationships with its
investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws. An updated version of the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed
for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors. Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote
at the general meetings of the Company (other than procedural matters) are taken
by poll and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange after the general meetings.

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Under Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”), shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
may convene a SGM by written requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned, must state
the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses incurred in
giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under Section 74 of the
Companies Act once a valid requisition is received.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders (Continued)

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The Companies Act allows certain shareholders to make requisition to the Company
to give notice to the shareholders in respect of any resolution which is intended to be
moved at AGM of the Company or circulate a statement in respect of any proposed
resolution or business to be considered at a general meeting of the Company.

The number of shareholders necessary to put forward such proposal for consideration
at a general meeting of the Company shall be:

(@) either any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting; or

(b) not less than 100 shareholders.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders concerned and
together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company.
The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and unless the Company otherwise resolves, the shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as follows:

Contact Details

The Company Secretary

Automated Systems Holdings Limited

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2608 6585

Email: ir@asl.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board (Continued)
Contact Details (Continued)

For avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Ngan Wai Hing (“Mr. Ngan”), a full time employee of
the Company, who is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman of the
Board on governance matters and facilitates induction and professional development
of Directors. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure
that Board procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules since Mr. Ngan has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
ended 31st December 2018.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20th March 2019
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report, complying with the
“comply or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “ESG Guide"), provides our stakeholders with an annual update of the Group's
corporate social responsibility performance and gives them a better understanding of
it. Unless otherwise stated, the scope of the ESG report covers issues of environmental
and social aspects in relation to the Group’s core business operations in Hong Kong
headquarters for the year ended 31st December 2018. The ESG report should be
read in conjunction with the Company’s annual report, in particular the Corporate
Governance Report contained therein.

BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

The Group is dedicated to offering professional and trustworthy information
technology (“IT"”) services to corporate clients around the world which include
solutions consultancy services, application development services, productized solutions,
security consultancy services, 24x7 real-time holistic IT security protection, basic
infrastructure services, IT operation outsourcing services, corporate-level application
outsourcing services and industry applications of Software as a Service (Saa$).

BOARD MANAGEMENT & RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is committed to good corporate governance, which promotes the
long-term interests of shareholders and the healthy growth of the Company. The
Company'’s identifying significant risks related to ESG matters relies on evaluation
of management of the Company. The Board has overseen the senior management
on their ESG governance and compliance effort. The Company’s risk management
measures, which include ESG, consider annually whether the Company’s policies and
programs adequately identify and respond to the material ESG risks that it faces.
The Company’s risk management and internal control systems are important to the
sustainable development of the Company since they help ensuring protection of
the Company's stakeholders, for examples, a series of well-established employment
policies to protect the rights of employees, regular trainings to employees for
providing of high-quality products and services to customers to maintain sustainable
business growth, and the compliance with applicable laws and regulations to maintain
a healthy growth of the Company and strengthen the confidence of shareholders and
investors in the Company.

The ESG report has been reviewed and approved by the Board.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group's Environmental Policy stresses carbon reduction and waste reduction
with the principle of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” to promote better utilization of
environmental resources. To further encourage stakeholder engagement in protecting
the environment, the Group is committed to promoting an environmental-friendly
ambience among its employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In the long run, the Company will enhance its energy saving management in
minimizing the usage of lighting, air-conditioning and electronic appliances and track
its energy consumption regularly in the coming years.

In the following sections, unless otherwise specified, the environmental data covers
the Group's business operations in overseas are excluded from scope as scale of
each of them are insignificant as compared to the Group’s operation in Hong Kong
headquarters. The total floor area coverage and the total employees of the Group’s
operation in Hong Kong headquarters are 7970 m? and 600 respectively.

A.1 Emissions’

Our main business being IT services, our environmental impact, on the whole, is
relatively low. Our emissions, energy consumption and water consumption mainly
come from the use of resources in our offices in Hong Kong. During the year, there
was no material non-compliance with applicable legislation or regulations.

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions

During the year, the total GHG emissions in two respective scopes:

e Scope 1: Direct emissions in terms of fuel consumed by corporate vehicles
e Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity

The total GHG emissions and intensity in Hong Kong headquarters in 2018 and 2017
are as follows:

Rk - HERERME
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BEBEIAR - \FR B FAEREBNEH
MEREEZIT

Issue 2018 2017
s —B-N\F —T—+fF
Fuel consumed by corporate vehicles Total (litre) 2,174 2,111
NSIEETDEPEF oy #e (A7)

Purchased Electricity Total (kWh) 1,996,265 1,853,292
BEE e (FRE)

GHG emissions? for Scope 1 and 2 Total (tonnes) 1023.23 1,172.56
BREE 1 REE2 R EREHENR wae (Mg)

GHG emissions for Scope 1 and 2 per floor area Total (tonnes/m?) 0.1284 0.1289
Y REEEEANBNEHE 1 REE2REREEN e (M FHK)

GHG emissions for Scope 1 and 2 per employee Total (tonnes/employee) 1.7054 2.0216
BHREIREHE1 KEE2 ARRERIEHEN weE(E, BT

Notes: Bff3E

1. Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Group are the GHG emissions,
arising mainly from the use of electricity and fuels derived from fossil fuels.

2. GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and was based on the
reporting requirements of the “Guideline to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes)”
issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and the Environmental
Protection Department in Hong Kong.
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Waste Management

For the business operations of the Group’s major subsidiaries, a standard policy and
procedures for handling damaged components and materials have been established
to ensure all damaged components and materials are properly identified and handled.
For handling hazardous waste produced in Hong Kong, the Company has registered
as a Chemical Waste Producer under the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General)
Regulation and sent the waste to specialists for recycling. The newly released scheme
named The Producer Responsibility Scheme on waste electrical and electronic
equipment implemented by Environmental Protection Department (EPD) is also
integrated into our Quality Management System (QMS) and deployed successfully
through sufficient briefings and appropriate operational change demonstrated in
corresponding procedures and internal audit. The impact and effectiveness of QMS
will be reviewed by the management of the Company annually to ensure its continual
suitability and alignment with the business strategic direction and related external
issues surroundings. Besides, our subsidiaries, Grid Dynamics International, Inc. (“Grid
Dynamics”) and its subsidiaries (“Grid Dynamics Group”), have implemented a policy
for collection of hazardous waste for further utilization. There was no material non-
compliance with applicable legislation or regulations during the year.

The total hazardous waste and total non-hazardous waste produced in Hong Kong
headquarters in 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

BERYEE

HRAEEFENBARNEBEERS - A2AIE
i E BRI 1R B R MR VRSB S AZ - DARRIR
TERE R % B3R FT A 1B R SR AR o BRER IR
EREENAEEEDNE  ARARIEREB(EYE
BEUCEEY) (—R)BONELRACBEYEES -
WG EE X = E PSR - IRFRES (EPD) T E
MBEAEERETEREEEEMTEOEEST
BPNEEEEEZR(QMS) R » WiBEBIE D MR
BEEEYENEEREF AR R MK HE
o ARAINERERSFEREETEERNTE
BB - LAREIR E 3548 M 3 R M 30 B 2 75 50 G
) A AERE ) S B0 P RE IR 4R — B0 AT © LEAh - AR A
2 Mf B A7) - Grid Dynamics International, Inc. ([ Grid
Dynamics]) & E Kt 5§ 22 5 (T Grid Dynamics & & 1) B
FHBORAE — S B AIREN B EEEY - FAT
R EE REFARER SR -

ERABN T \FR T FREENBERE
BEMHBERBZEREMEENT

Issue 2018 2017
£1| —E-N\F —E—+F
Hazardous waste (i.e. used computers and server batteries) Total (tonnes) 3.2 3.5
BEEEY(AESK R FRREEMD) = (mg)

Non-hazardous waste (i.e. used computers and components) Total (tonnes) 71 85

mEREREY (ANEEME R EPHF) e (W)
A.2 Use of Resources
Energy Consumption

The total energy consumption, total energy consumption per floor area, total energy
consumption per employee and direct energy consumption in terms of electricity in
Hong Kong headquarters in 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

A2 EREH

RERIH3E

ERRERN T - N\FR-T-LFHRRERR
2 SFFKEERERRERES  FRESR
HFEEELAETENERERBRENT

Issue 2018 2017
£1B —Z2-N\F e
Energy consumption Total (kWh) 1,996,265 1,853,292
BEIREFE HBE (TR

Energy consumption per floor area Total (kWh/m?) 250.47 203.66
Y HAREEEERRERE BET (FRETFHK)

Energy consumption per employee Total (kWh/employee) 3,327.11 3,195.33

BRREERER
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Water Consumption

The total water consumption and total water consumption per floor area in Hong
Kong headquarters in 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

R - g RERERS

FEK

ERRAN - N\FR-_E—LFNERKELET
FIORBHEBEERKENT

Issue 2018 2017
B8 —E-N\F —T 4
Water consumption Total (m?3) 431 432
FEKE #BEt (SL7K)

Water consumption per floor area Total (m3/m?) 0.0541 0.0475
B REEEERKE #Er (277K FK)

Water management is not a material area for the Group. Much of our water
consumption is for basic cleaning and sanitation, as well as certain catering facilities in
our offices. The Company encourages all staff to save water.

Since the Group is principally engaged in the delivery of comprehensive one-stop IT
services, no significant levels of pollutants were discharged into the air or water and
no substantial amount of packaging materials was used during the reporting period.
Therefore, disclosures relating to these aspects, as set forth in the ESG Guide, are not
applicable to the Group and so have not been made.

During the year, the Company adopted the following procedures in its office to
minimizing carbon emission and waste generation:

e Use energy saving light across all office areas

e Utilize electronic communication where applicable such as e-form system, e-leave,
e-memo and e-cards for festival greetings

e Use high performance and quality all-in-one “multi-function printers” that
incorporate printer, scanner and copier functions into a single device. This can be
shared among teams in order to reduce a large number of devices with different
functions so as to minimize power consumption and carbon footprint as well as
follow-up maintenance

e Send used toner cartridges to specialists for further recycling when feasible

e Redeploy usable and suitable office furniture within the Company to reduce the
amount of material going to landfills

e Redeploy usable and suitable computers or notebooks within the Company

e Reuse or recycle computer parts by selection from a team of engineers; for those
parts and materials cannot be reused by the Company will be further sent to
specialist for further recycling

e Send spent batteries to specialists for recycling

e Minimise waste wherever feasible
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A.3The Environment and Natural Resources

Although the core business of the Group has a minimal impact on the environment
and natural resources, we recognize the corporate social responsibility in minimizing
the negative environmental impact of our business operations and investment
portfolio as our ongoing commitment, in order to achieve a sustainable development
for generating long-term values to our stakeholders and community as a whole.
We regularly assess the environmental risks of our business, and adopt preventive
measures, where necessary, to reduce the risks and ensure the compliance of relevant
laws and regulations.

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS
Employment and Labour Practices

The Group values its human capital with a belief that its employees are pivotal to its
success in the IT industry. The Group has established a series of policies and measures
regarding employment policy, health and safety, development and training, labour
standards and workplace quality to provide its employees with a fair and comfortable
working environment.

B.1 Employment Policy

The Group ensures our employees in different locations are protected by the law of
employment in such jurisdictions and has implemented its comprehensive Employment
Policy which comprises recruitment, change of employment in relation to promotion
and transfer, working hours, annual leave entitlement, maternity and paternity leave,
annual salary review through annual performance appraisal, job-related allowances,
insurance schemes, compensation and termination of employment. The Group stresses
equal opportunities in relation to recruitment or promotion of an individual, without
discrimination against their age, gender, race, family status, sexual orientation,
disability, nationality or region. There was no material non-compliance with the
Employment Ordinance and other applicable legislation or regulations during the year.

B.2 Health and Safety

Being committed to maintaining a safe and healthy working environment for its
employees, the Company has established a safety and health policy and complied with
applicable laws regarding safety in the workplace in Hong Kong. For safety measures,
the Administrative Department of the Company is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the safety and security management from time to time and performing
regular checking in the entire office to ensure furniture, fixtures and fittings are well-
maintained and replaced when necessary to avoid unnecessary physical injuries. For
health measures, smoking is prohibited in the entire office premises including enclosed
offices, conference rooms and other open areas while maintaining proper lighting
and ventilation to safeguard employees’ health. In addition, first aid kits are available
at an easily-accessible location on every floor of the entire office. Meanwhile, Grid
Dynamics has its safety and health policy regarding workplace bullying, violence in the
workplace and smoke-free workplace. Policies are also set up to cover the prevention
of injuries and illnesses and workplace violence. There was no non-compliance with
legislation or regulations related to occupational safety and health during the year.
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B.3 Development and Training

The Group understands that training and development are indispensable for its staff
to keep abreast of the latest trend in the IT industry and the dynamic pace in the
current domestic market. In light of this, the Group provides employees with regular
training, development programmes and training sponsorship. For the development of
IT staff in Hong Kong, the Company promotes an e-Learning platform to hone their
hard and soft skills. For the development of non-IT staff, the Company encourages
department heads to work closely in assessing areas of training and development
for their subordinates to improve their capabilities and ability in career advancement.
Sponsorships are available to employees who have met certain conditions set by the
Company.

Within Grid Dynamics Group, there is an internal educational platform which delivers
employee trainings, certifications and seminars as a part of knowledge management
and career development. Learning paths, comprising target role, duration and covered
skills and technologies, are clearly set to assist employees’ career development.
Meanwhile, employees are encouraged to declare their skills in a system to enhance
personal and corporate development. Grid Dynamics also set up a web application
which provides electronic catalogue of books, articles, presentations and videos that
are available to employees and creates an environment in which employees can share,
collaborate and recommend their favorite content to promote self-learning.

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$1.6 million and US$0.2 million
on staff training in Hong Kong’s subsidiaries and Grid Dynamics Group, respectively,
and most of them were spent on strengthening staff's competence and aiding them in
obtaining qualifications.

B.4 Labour Standard

There was no child nor forced labour in the Group’s operations in the reporting period.
Meanwhile, each candidate’s personal particulars are confirmed during recruitment
processes. The Group also ensures a fair recruitment process and working environment
without any coercive acts. There was no non-compliance with legislation or regulations
related to child labour or forced labour during the year.

Workplace Quality

The Group is concerned about its employees’ quality of life and promotes a positive
work-life balance. During the year, the Group has organised around hundred of
large and small events to enhance work-life balance and to strengthen employee
relations. Some of the large events were ASL Annual Dinner, ASL Christmas BBQ Party,
Grid Dynamics Christmas Party and Grid Dynamics New Year Party. Meanwhile, the
Company and Grid Dynamics Group provide employees with various facilities, such
as recreation area/room, gym room, shower room and massage chair, etc. The Group
always makes its best endeavours to develop a happy and caring working environment
for its employees.
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Moreover, the Group is committed to building a family-friendly environment so
as to allow its staff to achieve their full potential. During the year, the Group has
implemented a series of measures to promote a balance between work and family. In
Hong Kong, the Company provides its employees with marriage leave, compassionate
leave and welcome red packets to its employees’ newborn babies. The Company is
also proud of having set up a nursing room with comprehensive facilities and strict
privacy in its office to support its breastfeeding employees.

Operating Practices

The Group believes that monitoring and evaluation of the vendors are important
management tools to track the business progress and facilitate decision making and,
in return, the Group could serve the customers towards their satisfaction through the
products and services with the best quality. The Group will continue to maintain the
vendor management policy and proactively seek room for improvement.

B.5 Supply Chain Management

The Company’s two major Hong Kong subsidiaries, Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
("ASLHK") and ELM Computer Technologies Limited (“ELM"), are committed to
complying with a vendor management policy established for ensuring the quality of
services offered. The policy covers the control of vendors, including nomination and
evaluation, selection, monitoring, suspension and blacklisting when necessary. A list
of approved vendors has been created and updated on an ongoing basis according to
procedures clearly stated in the policy. The Company’s another major subsidiary, Grid
Dynamics, has implemented and complied with policies on third party information
security. The policies include a set of information security and related requirements as
prerequisites to become Grid Dynamics’s vendors.

ASLHK demonstrates our commitment to high standards of quality in provision of
supply chain management services in accordance with ISO 9001:2015 from Hong
Kong Quality Assurance Agency.

During the year, the Group evaluated the top 15 product vendors for our two major
Hong Kong subsidiaries in 2018 in terms of the purchase amount which equal to 71%
of the total product purchase amount. For service vendors, the Group particularly got
the relevant service delivery team(s) involved in selecting, monitoring and performance
evaluation of service vendors to ensure the quality of services provided to customers.

In view of increasing environmental concerns in society, the Company is aware of the
importance in managing environmental and social risks of its supply chain. The top
10 IT product brands from which ASLHK purchased during the year demonstrated
excellent environmental awareness. The IT product brands took initiatives in
minimizing their negative operational impacts on the environment and society. The
Company will continue to monitor its supply chain in accordance with environmental
and social standards.

B.6 Product (Service) Responsibility

Customers’ support has been of paramount importance to the Group. The Group
therefore put strong emphasis on assuring the quality and reliability of its services.
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The Group has implemented its IT Security Policy on the major subsidiaries in Hong
Kong over a decade, the policy ensures the confidentiality, integrity and availability
of internal and customers’ security systems, which addresses security considerations
in physical security, access control security, data security, security on application
systems, network & communication security, security risk assessment & auditing and
security incident management. For Grid Dynamics, the policy provides regulations in
relation to all types and forms of information processing, transmission and storage,
telecommuter and remote computer use security, acceptable use, and developing
and maintaining software within the Grid Dynamics Group. The Group’s relevant staff
must comply with regulations in relation to physical security, access control security,
data security and network and communication security, which are all covered in the
IT Security Policy, to protect the customers’ privacy. For redressing security incidents,
such as network or systems software malfunctions, the Company has adopted a set
of reporting and handling procedures, which are executed by the relevant staff and
a Customer Care Unit (the "Unit”). There was no non-compliance with legislation or
regulations related to the services provided by the Group during the year.

In addition, the Group has long established a policy with a set of procedures to handle
customers’ feedbacks or complaints in a professional manner. The Unit reviews the
feedbacks or complaints and coordinates relevant teams to address the concerns.
The Unit will also escalate the feedbacks or complaints to appropriate level(s) of
management if necessary.

Intellectual Property Rights

Regarding intellectual property rights, employees of the Group are reminded that the
Group has exclusive ownership of its intellectual property while all materials made or
compiled by them in the course of employment is the property of the Group, details
of which are set out in Business and Ethical Code of Conduct of the Group or relevant
guidelines of its subsidiaries.

Personal Data Protection

In relation to the customers’ data protection, the Group requires its staff to handle
customers’ data in a strictly confidential manner to prevent data leakage, details of
which are set out in our IT Security Policy. The staff shall observe and comply with
the non-disclosure agreements made with the Group and the agreements entered
into between the Group and customers from time to time. Besides, the Group may
collect personal data from different parties through the enquiry box on the Company’s
website, from candidates or employees through recruitment or employment during
the year. A privacy policy statement and the relevant personal information collection
statements have been set out and uploaded on the Company’s website so that
relevant parties were timely informed before giving their personal information. During
the year, the Company follows the six general principles relating to data protection
as set down by the Hong Kong Privacy Commission. During the year, there was no
confirmed case or non-compliance with any rules and regulation of the Group as
regards the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.486) and Personal Data (Privacy)
(Amendment) Ordinance, as well as any applicable rules and regulations in the United
States.
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Quality Assurance

For quality assurance, the quality office of the Group has performed quality reviews
and internal audit functions monitoring the effectiveness of the corrective actions
taken and advised any risk mitigation plans can be taken for years. The Company'’s
three major subsidiaries, ASLHK, ELM and Grid Dynamics, have been confident in their
quality management systems, IT service management system and information security

management system.

In recent years, our major subsidiaries have been recognised with the following quality

achievements:

Major Subsidiaries

Quality Achievement

mERE

EERRL

Type of Service Provision

MRERENS @ 2FR AEBEREHMIENTE
BV E R A AP E R 6L B P ERERA IE 5 5 A0 A R0
BETRANTRRRTHETE - ARB =2
BRRIBEEBBES
BRMERBEERGRERLEEER
BITRED

#k K Grid Dynamics LB &

EF - RPN EEMBARCERATRERR

Awarding Bodies

TEWE AT =04 RAIRHE 5 RIS
ASLHK ISO 9001:2015 Quality Enterprise Information Technology Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Services
B EEEY ISO 9001:2015 MEERE  (EEARHLRE ik D RE R
ISO 9001:2015 Quality Supply Chain Management Services on Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Computer-related Products
ISO9001:2015 mEETE  EMMMEREmMNMHEREIRIRY EEMERER
ISO 20000-1:2011 Service Desk Operation, Hosting Services, Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
IT Service Infrastructure Hardware & System
Management System Maintenance Services
ISO 20000-1:2011 R &RME - FEERY  ERFRmENt BERERER
BAREREER RS REAGEERS
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Information Security Monitoring Service.  SGS Hong Kong Limited
Information Security
Management System
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 EME2ERRG ERBRRARERRAA
B2 BERL
Capability Maturity Maturity Level 3 Rating Software CMMI Institute
Model® Integration Development and Support Services
(CMMI) Version 1.3 Organization
Capability Maturity B = TR B R SR RIS AR A CMMITFZEFR
Model® Integration
(CMMI) 1.3 R
ELM ISO 9001:2015 Quality IT System Integration, Software Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Development, Installation and
Maintenance Support Services
AR ISO9001:2015MEEE AmMBMKEREA - TIFFHE HEMERER

Grid Dynamics

Grid Dynamics
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B.7 Anti-corruption

The Company has established an anti-corruption policy included in Business and
Ethical Code of Conduct of the Group. Employees must not solicit or accept an
advantage as a reward or inducement for doing any act or showing favour to any
person or corporate without the permission of the Company. Any gifts or souvenirs
offered or received shall be reported and passed to the Company. Besides the anti-
bribery policy, employees are encouraged to report without fear of reprisal any
business malpractices including questionable accounting and auditing matters. In line
with the Group’s commitment to anti-corruption, a whistle-blower policy is also placed
to allow employees to report any malpractice and misconduct to the Legal Manager of
the Company with completed confidentiality. During the year, there was no confirmed
case of corruption or non-compliance with any rules and regulation of the Group as
regards anti-corruption such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, as well as any
applicable rules and regulations in the United States.

A competition compliance policy has also been adopted in the Company’s subsidiaries
involving business conducted in Hong Kong, of which to prohibit any conduct that
prevents, restricts or distorts competition in Hong Kong. Online training workshop is
available on the Company’s intranet to help employees understand the competition
compliance policy and the Competition Ordinance. Any employees in doubt about
the legality of any business activity may consult the Legal Manager of the Company.
Employees are also encouraged to make a complaint or disclose any potential
violations of such policy in accordance with the Company’s whistle-blower policy and
procedure. During the year, there was no confirmed case or non-compliance with any
rules and regulation of the Group as regards the Competition Ordinance, as well as
any applicable rules and regulations in the United States.

Community

B.8 Community investment

The Group, as a corporate citizen, makes every effort in giving back to the community
through helping the social vulnerable groups. This is the third consecutive year for
the Group to become a Gold Sponsor of the Annual Hong Kong 24 Hour Pedal Kart
Grand Prix through charitable donations, which contributed to a variety of charities,
primarily in Hong Kong but also in other places in need across Asia.

Apart from taking the social vulnerable groups into consideration, the Group is
dedicated to developing a social responsibility culture among its employees. Our core
subsidiary, ASLHK, has long been recognised by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service with “Caring Company Award” under Caring Company Scheme for nine
consecutive years. The Group joined Tung Chung Family Walk 2018 and continued in
building up its volunteer team during the year.
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———DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EFEWE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31st December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate management
services. The principal activities of its major subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 47 and 22, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2018 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 81 and 82 of the annual report respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31st December 2018 (2017: 1.0 HK cent per share).

2019 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on Wednesday,
22nd May 2019. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 17th May 2019 to Wednesday, 22nd May 2019, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 16th May 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2018 and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business as required by schedule 5 of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Chief
Executive Officer's Statement” and Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements
on pages 10 to 11, 12 to 19 and 206 of the annual report, respectively. For the
financial key performance indicators for an understanding of the development,
performance or position of the Group’s business, it can also be found under the same
sections and the financial summary on page 9 of the annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have significant impact on the Company are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 44 to 53 respectively.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

To achieve the Company'’s vision of becoming the most competitive entity in
Asia information technology (“IT") sector, strengthening business practices in
environmental protection and corporate social responsibilities are always an integral
part of the Group’s corporate business strategy.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31st December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 85 to 86 of
the annual report.

As at 31st December 2018, the Group’s special reserve and retained earnings totalled
approximately HK$484,223,000 (2017: HK$419,972,000).

The Company’s reserves are available for distribution to the shareholders as at 31st
December 2018 included special reserve and retained earnings totaling approximately
HK$96,587,000 (2017: HK$103,745,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31st December 2018, the Group spent approximately
HK$16,390,000 (2017: HK$10,603,000) on property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year ended 31st December 2018 in
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of the Group's purchases and sales attributable to major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

During the year ended 31st December 2018, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 26.9% and 7.0% of the
Group's revenue respectively. The five largest suppliers and single largest supplier of
the Group accounted for approximately 34.9% and 10.6% of the Group’s purchases
respectively.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2018 did a Director, an associate of
a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year ended 31st December 2018 in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31st December 2018 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Wang Weihang
Wang Yueou

Non-Executive Directors
Li Wei
Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong

Deng Jianxin

Or Siu Ching, Rerina

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company, Mr. Wang Yueou, Mr. Pan Xinrong
and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, be eligible, offer themselves for election.

As at the date of this report, each of the Directors has entered into either a service
contract or a letter of appointment with the Company. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
Directors of the Company are set out below:

Details of changes

Mr. Li Wei entered into a renewed secondment agreement with the Company for
extending term of one year with effect from 1st July 2018. The annual director’s fee
payable to Mr. Li is HK$55,000 for serving on the Board, HK$22,000 for serving as the
Chairman of the Board and HK$480,000 for secondment of monitoring the Group’s
operation temporarily, which is determined with reference to Mr. Li's duties and
responsibilities.

Mr. Deng lJianxin resigned as a supervisor of Shanghai Dobe Cultural & Creative
Industry Development (Group) Co., Ltd. in September 2018 and was appointed as an
executive director of Shenzhen Zhuoyi Management Consulting Co., Ltd.*(RYIIT &
Iz EIREFABR AR in January 2018, the chairman of Hangzhou Zhuoyuan Ledao
Holding Co., Ltd.* (AN F L8 E1E AR B R A F]) in March 2018 and the chairman of
Shanghai 4Smart Technology Co., Ltd.* (L /E15E B eERHEBRAR]) in April 2018.

* For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Related Party Transactions”
below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Company or his or her connected entity had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended
31st December 2018 or at any time during the year ended 31st December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31st December
2018, the following Directors were considered to have interests in the businesses
which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, particulars of which are set out below:
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Name of the entities which were
considered to compete or likely
to compete with the businesses

Description of businesses of the
entities which were considered to
compete or likely to compete with

of the Group the businesses of the Group Nature of Director's
Name of Director BRARKEEERBRR BRREREEERERR A4 interest in the entities
EEpg AHRERGTE ERAE BT EE 2B ESpNZSER EEME
Wang Weihang Teamsun IT product service, application Chairman and president,
software development, value-added director and substantial shareholder
distribution and system integration
T#Mm ERBRK BARBRERRY - EREARMRE - EERFEY  EERFERR
BEHHERFRES
Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited Window company of Teamsun in Sole director
(“Hong Kong Teamsun”) Hong Kong and mainly provides
administrative support to the clients of
Teamsun in the PRC and Hong Kong
ERBRABH (BB BRAR EBXRGTEEREAR  FERERAR  HE—ES
(BBEBERK]) ZEPRFBEREBREITHXE
Certain subsidiaries of Teamsun T related Director
ERREZETHEBLA TR MR =
Wang Yueou Teamsun IT product service, application Director
software development, value-added
distribution and system integration
TERE ERBRK BARMRERRY - EREARMARE EE=
BEDERERES
Carnation Software Ltd. IT related Director
(a subsidiary of Teamsun)
BMAN T EREABRAR TERE MR S

(EBRKZMBAR)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS EENHRFEK2HER @)

(Continued)

Name of the entities which were
considered to compete or likely
to compete with the businesses

Description of businesses of the
entities which were considered to
compete or likely to compete with

of the Group the businesses of the Group Nature of Director's
Name of Director BRAREREEERBRR BRAREREEEBBRS A6 interest in the entities
EEpE AHBRHRE AR EH BRHET 2 EREBHT EERRSHBCERNE
Li Wei Teamsun IT product service, application Director
software development, value-added
distribution and system integration
& e ERBARK BARRERRS - BRRASTRE EE
BESHEIERES
Certain subsidiaries and T related Director
associates of Teamsun
EBRR2ETHBAR IR E AR EF
&N
Cui Yong Teamsun IT product service, application Director, executive vice president
software development, value-added and general manager of
distribution and system integration the system information
product (plate) division
ER EPNd BRI ERMRT - R AR EE  YORIBELERER
BEDERERES Em (R %) 55
Deng Jianxin Shanghai 4Smart Technology Co., Ltd. Cloud computation and cloud services Chairman
Bz HERERRRBERAR EHERERB EER

—e 58

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid companies,
and as none of the above Directors controls the Board, the Group is capable of
carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
the aforesaid companies.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2018, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange (“Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERRSTHAEZRH KEE

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued) MRAp 2 R ()
(a) Shares () R 12
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
NEER s AL FhER PG At &t RESNEA
The Company Li Wei 412,500 - - - 412,500 0.05%
VNG 2k
Teamsun, the ultimate holding Wang Weihang 92,069,358 - - 41,170,975 133,240,333 12.09%
company of the Company Thf
EBRN - AREZ Li Wei 602,520 - - - 602,520 0.05%
et UNG %8
Cui Yong 640,000 - - - 640,000 0.06%
ER
(b) Underlying shares ()RRG5
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
NEER s AN FhER NEEE Hit @zt RESQEAL
The Company Wang Yueou 4,620,000° - - - 4,620,000 0.57%
YN IEg
Li Wei 907,500° - - - 907,500 0.11%
*f
Cui Yong 1,320,000° - - - 1,320,000 0.16%
EB
Teamsun Li Wei 250,000 - - - 250,000 0.02%
EBRN 2k
Cui Yong 500,000¢ - - - 500,000 0.05%
ER
Grid Dynamics International, Inc. Wang Yueou 90,000° - - - 90,000 0.75%
("Grid Dynamics") TEg
Notes: Yt -

1. Mr Li Wei exercised his share option to subscribe for 412,500 shares of the Company on 1. FEEER-Z—NF+ A+ BITEEBRIEURE

12th July 2018 and 412,500 shares of the Company were allotted on 19th July 2018. 412,500 R AR AR - 412,500 R AR BIRHKR =F
—N\FtA+NBEE -

2. 41,170,975 shares of Teamsun were directly held by a trust scheme, of which a company 2. 41,170,975 BRZEEBS R R (9 BB — EEsEat B EE A -
with 51% equity interest holding by Mr. Wang Weihang, Beijing Jianzheng Investment FHRMEEFBS1%RENA AL RBEEREGRA
Limited* (L R EEIERE AR AR, is one of the founders, which has 100% voting rights RlRaZlsstatBlaISI A2 —  WEBEFEET BT AE
of the shares of Teamsun held by the trust scheme. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Wang BERAARLD 100% KA - IRIBEFFRAGKD - T4
Weihang, being a beneficiary of the trust scheme, is deemed to be interested in 41,170,975 ML BzlErtat 2l Em AR AR 41,170,975 %
shares of Teamsun. FERB R R o

3. Share options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company under a share option scheme 3. RIZZ—+tHF=F+=BRMZERETEIE TREBLR
adopted on 13th March 2017, further details of which are set out in section headed “Share n Ttﬁﬂﬁzﬁﬁﬂﬁé BEZE—PHBENTXE
Option Schemes” below. The Company adjusted the number of outstanding share options R E] —8 - RZZ—NFARNANB » RRFITHK
after the completion of the bonus issue on 8th June 2018. ilﬂx?*ﬁ?é%‘fﬁ*ﬁﬁfzggﬂxﬁi%( BETHE -

* For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

4.

Restricted shares of Teamsun may be unlocked and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
after unlocking conditions are met pursuant to Teamsun’s second phase of equity incentive
plan and Teamsun’s 2017 restricted share incentive scheme. Details of Teamsun’s second
phase of equity incentive plan were disclosed in Teamsun’s announcements dated 27th May
2015, 14th July 2015 and 7th August 2018; and details of Teamsun’s 2017 restricted share
incentive scheme were disclosed in Teamsun’'s announcements dated 14th October 2017,
23rd November 2017, 15th December 2017 and 8th December 2018.

Share options to subscribe for shares of common stock of Grid Dynamics (“GDI Share(s)")
under a share option scheme of Grid Dynamics adopted on 21st December 2018, further
details of which are set out in section headed “Share Option Schemes” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2018, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying

Shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme

—e 60

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”) on 8th August 2002. The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on
7th August 2012. As a result, the Company can no longer grant any further
share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. However, all share options
granted prior to 7th August 2012 will remain in full force and effect. A summary
of the 2002 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

The purpose of 2002 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and rewards
to any employee and/or Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
2002 Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. As
at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares of the Company
available to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding options under the 2002
Share Option Scheme is 727,328, representing 0.09% of total number of issued
shares of the Company as at that date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general requirement
that an option must be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised
but the directors of the Company are empowered to impose at its discretion any
such minimum period at the time of grant of any particular option. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the directors of
the Company at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board and shall not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share of
the Company. Details of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 37(i)
to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year:
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Number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

WMIEBRERARTZRE
Adjusted At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 31st
Date Exercise January during during during during during December
of grant Exercise Price 2018 the year the year the year the year the year 2018
Participants RiLE Period i RIB-N\F REE REE REE REE REE RIB-N\F
SEE RERH T8 e -B-H AR Aty d REX R n#EE  t-A=t-H
HKS
BT
Other Employees  19.3.2012 193201310 0.704' 464,253 - - - - 92,847 557,100
HitfER 1832022
252012 252013t0 & 0.728' 141,857 - - - - 28371 170,228
1.5.2022
Total 606,110 - - - - 121,218 727,328
CES
Notes: FffsE

1. The number of outstanding share options and exercise price under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme were adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of the Company on 8th
June 2018, the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated
8th June 2018.

2. All of the above share options were vested equally on each of the first, second and
third anniversaries of the date of grant.

3. No Director held any share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the
year ended 31st December 2018.

4. The weighted average closing price of the share of the Company immediately before
the date on which the share options were exercised was not applicable.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
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2017 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2017 Share Option
Scheme”) on 13th March 2017. The 2017 Share Option Scheme will expire on
12th March 2027. A summary of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

The purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Company and/or the Subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary shares of
par value HK$0.10 each of the Company. The eligible participants include any
employee, executive or officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors of each of the
abovementioned companies).

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (if any) shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 13th March 2017,
the date of approval of the adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme. The
maximum number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares of the Company available for issue under the
2017 Share Option Scheme is 52,618,335, representing 10% and 6.53% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme and as at the date of this annual
report, respectively. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company may be issued upon exercise of options which available
to be granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme is 19,642,335, representing
2.44% of total number of issued shares of the Company as at that date.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board may at its absolute
discretion impose any minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must be achieved by
the eligible participant before the option can be exercised. The period during
which an option may be exercised will be determined by the Directors at its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years
after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the higher of
(a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date an offer is made; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date an offer is made; and (c) the nominal value
of a share of the Company. Details of the 2017 Share Option Scheme are set out
in Note 37(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options under

the 2017 Share Option Scheme during the year:
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Number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RMIEEREBARITZRE
Vesting Period At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 31st
Date of and Exercise January during during during during during December
Participants grant Period Exercise 2018 the year the year the year the year the year 2018
RHE HEY Price R=ZF-N% REE REE REE REE REE R=Z-N\%
5% RERH RATES e -B-H AR R REX R n#EE  t-A=t-H
HKS
B
Directors
£
Wang Yueou 31.3.2017 (Note 2) 0.970' 3,850,000 - - - - 770,000! 4,620,000
TER (F&E2)
Li Wei 31.3.2017 (Note 2) 0.970' 1,100,000 - (412,500) - - 220,000! 907,500
ZE (ME2)
Cui Yong 31.3.2017 (Note 2) 0.970' 1,100,000 - - - - 220,000! 1,320,000
£8 (F&E2)
Other Employees ~ 31.3.2017 (Note 2) 0.970' 14,784,000 B (132,000) (522,500 - 2,885,300' 17,014,800
LftEE (Mx2)
2842017 (Note 2) 0.909' 6,050,000 B = B B 1,210,000 7,260,000
(Mt2)
13.12.2017 (Note 2) 0.867' 1,388,000 B = B B 277,600 1,665,600
(Mt2)
Total 28,272,000 - (544,500 (522,500) - 5,582,900 32,787,900
CES
Notes: B &E

1.

The number and exercise price of outstanding share options under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme were adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of shares of the Company
on 8th June 2018, the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 8th June 2018.

On 31st March 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of
19,140,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.28. The share options
are divided into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share
options and is associated with performance targets within a specific financial period,
the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 31st March
2017.

On 28th April 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible participants
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 6,500,000 shares of
the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.20. The share options are divided into four
tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share options and is associated
with performance targets within a specific financial period, the details of which are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28th April 2017.

On 13th December 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 1,388,000
shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.04. The share options are divided
into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share options and is
associated with performance targets within a specific financial period, the details of
which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 13th December 2017.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
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Notes: (Continued)

2. (Continued)

The vesting period and exercise period of each tranche of the share options granted
on 31st March 2017, 28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017, respectively, are as

follows:

BB ERT &l )
B. —ZE—tFHBERETE (B
MEE : (48)

2. (&

PRR_E—+F=ZA=+—H ZZT—+FMN
AZ+N\BERZE—+tF+-A+=AREZE

R BEARITEHOT

Percentage of options
of each tranche shall
be exercisable

Date of grant  Tranches Vesting Period Exercise Periods HHEEIRE
B AH #ER HEH 768 AFTEZEDL
31.3.2017 First tranche 31.3.2017 to & 1.4.2019 31.3.2017 to & 30.3.2027 50%
E—it 1.4.2018 to = 30.3.2027 25%
1.4.2019 to £ 30.3.2027 25%
Second tranche 28.3.2018 to & 1.4.2020 28.3.2018 to & 30.3.2027 50%
£t 1.4.2019 to = 30.3.2027 25%
1.4.2020 to £ 30.3.2027 25%
Third tranche 20.3.2019 to & 1.4.2021 20.3.2019 to & 30.3.2027 50%
F=it 1.4.2020 to = 30.3.2027 25%
1.4.2021 to 2 30.3.2027 25%
Fourth tranche Date of publication of the annual results Date of 2019 Results 50%
announcement of the Company for Announcement to
the financial year ending 30.3.2027
31st December 2019 (the “Date of 2019 1.4.2021 to & 30.3.2027 25%
Results Announcement”) to 1.4.2022 1.4.2022 to & 30.3.2027 25%
ESutking HEARRABIE=FT-NF+=_A=+—8
IFFEZEFREENEER
(ZE-NEFEERNEAH]) T 1.4.2022
28.4.2017 First tranche 1.6.2018 to & 1.6.2020 1.6.2018 to & 27.4.2027 50%
E—it 1.6.2019 to & 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2020 to & 27.4.2027 25%
Second tranche 1.6.2019to & 1.6.2021 1.6.2019 to & 27.4.2027 50%
Eik 1.6.2020 to = 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027 25%
Third tranche 1.6.2020 to & 1.6.2022 1.6.2020 to & 27.4.2027 50%
E=4t 1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2022 to & 27.4.2027 25%
Fourth tranche 1.6.2021 to & 1.6.2023 1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027 50%
it 1.6.2022 to & 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2023 to & 27.4.2027 25%
13.12.2017 First tranche 1.4.2019to & 1.4.2021 1.4.2019 to & 12.12.2027 50%
E—it 1.4.2020 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027 25%
Second tranche 1.4.2020 to & 1.4.2022 1.4.2020 to & 12.12.2027 50%
Eik 1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027 25%
Third tranche 1.4.2021 to & 1.4.2023 1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027 50%
=4t 1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2023 to & 12.12.2027 25%
Fourth tranche 1.4.2022 to & 1.4.2024 1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027 50%
it 1.4.2023 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2024 to & 12.12.2027 25%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

B.

2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

3. The offer for a total number of 6,500,000 options was made to eligible participants,
in which an offer of 1,000,000 options was not accepted by an eligible participant,
pursuant to the 2017 Share Option Scheme, the offer of these options was
automatically lapsed and became null and void.

4. The closing prices of the shares of the Company immediately before 31st March 2017,
28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017 on which the share options were granted
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme were HK$1.25, HK$1.08 and HK$0.90 per share
of the Company, respectively.

5. The weighted average closing price of the share of the Company immediately before
the dates on which the share options were exercised was HK$1.27.

Share Option Scheme of a subsidiary of the Company

Grid Dynamics, an indirect subsidiary of the Company, adopted a share option
scheme (the “GDI Share Option Scheme”) on 21st December 2018. The GDI
Share Option Scheme will be expired on 20th December 2028. A summary of the
GDI Share Option Scheme is as follows:

The purpose GDI Share Option Scheme is to advance the interests of Grid
Dynamics and its shareholders by providing an incentive to attract, retain and
reward persons performing services for Grid Dynamics, its parent companies or
subsidiaries (the “Participating Company Group”) and by motivating such persons
to contribute to the growth and profitability of Grid Dynamics. The participants
include employees, consultants and directors of the Participating Company
Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the GDI Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of Grid Dynamics which, unless otherwise permitted under the Listing
Rules, must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of GDI Shares
in issue as at 21st December 2018, the date of approval of the adoption of the
GDI Share Option Scheme. Grid Dynamics may seek approval by its shareholders
and the shareholders of the Company in general meeting to refresh the 10%
limit such that the total number of the GDI Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Options to be granted under the GDI Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of Grid Dynamics under the limit as “refreshed”
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of the GDI Shares in issue as at the
date of approval to refresh such limit. Grid Dynamics may seek separate approval
by its shareholders and the shareholders of the Company in general meeting
for granting options beyond the 10% limit above, provided that the Options in
excess of such limit are granted only to participants specifically identified by Grid
Dynamics and the Company before such approval is sought. As at the date of
this annual report, the total number of GDI Shares available to be issued upon
exercise of the outstanding options under the GDI Share Option Scheme is
2,250,000, representing 18.75% of total number of issued GDI Shares as at that
date.
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Share Option Scheme of a subsidiary of the Company
(Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the aggregate number of
GDI Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the GDI Shares in issue (the “Single Participant
Limit"”).

Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the participants
and to have taken effect when the duplicate of the stock option agreement
comprising acceptance of the offer has been duly signed by the participants
within 28 days. No payment is required to accept an offer.

The board of directors of Grid Dynamics (the “GDI Board”) shall have the full and
final power and authority, in its discretion, to determine any minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised and/or any performance
targets which must be achieved before an option can be exercised.

The options will be exercisable until the expiration of ten (10) years after
the effective date of grant of such option, or such other applicable date (i.e.
no incentive stock option granted to a person who, at the time an option is
granted to such person, owns stock possessing more than ten percent (10%)
of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Participating
Company Group, shall be exercisable after the expiration of five (5) years after
the effective date of grant of such option, and with the exception of (i) an option
granted to an officer, a director of the Participating Company Group (the “GDI
Scheme Director”) or a consultant, a person engaged to provide consulting or
advisory services (other than as an employee or a GDI Scheme Director) to the
Participating Company Group and (ii) an option that is exercisable based on
the accomplishment of specific performance-based milestones, no option shall
become exercisable at a rate less than twenty percent (20%) per year over a
period of five (5) years from the effective date of grant of such option, subject to
the participant’s continued service).

The exercise price for each option will be determined by the GDI Board and
shall be not less than the fair market value of a GDI Share, as determined by an
independent third party valuation company engaged by GDI, on the effective
date of grant of the Option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an option may be
granted with an exercise price lower than the minimum exercise price set forth
above if such option is granted pursuant to an assumption or substitution for
another option in a manner qualifying under the provisions of Section 424(a)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. However, the exercise price of options
to be granted after the Company has resolved to seek a separate listing of Grid
Dynamics on any stock exchange and up to the listing date of Grid Dynamics
must be not lower than the new issue price (if any).

Details of the GDI Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 37(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) R E
C. Share Option Scheme of a subsidiary of the Company C. AAT—REMEBARZERETS @

(Continued)

The following table discloses movements in the share options under the GDI GDIfEIRREETEITE T 2 AR N B R 2 B Ehn

Share Option Scheme during the year: N

Number of GDI Shares to be issued upon exercise of share options
TFEBRERSRT2GDIRAEE
Vesting Period At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 31st
and Exercise January during during during during during December
Participants Date of grant  Period Exercise 2018 the year the year the year the year the year 2018
SEAHA Pice  R-B-N\F RER RER RER RER RER RoB-N§
S8% B¥RH TR RER -B-8 BF i B B #% {+=A=t-H
Us§
e
Director of the
Company
ATES
Wang Yueou 21.12.2018 (Note 1) 754 - 90,000 - - - - 90,000
Tag (FizE1)
Excess Single
Participant Limit
BHERNSRER
Leonard LivschitzZ2 ~ 21.12.2018 (Note 1) 7.54 - 937,500 - - - - 937,500
(FzE1)
Victoria Livschitz? 21.12.2018 (Note 1) 7.54 - 300,000 - - - - 300,000
(FzE1)
Yury Gryzlov? 21.12.2018 (Note 1) 7.54 - 150,000 - - - - 150,000
(FzE1)
Others 21.12.2018 (Note 1) 7.54 - 772,500 - - - - 772,500
Hfty (WizE1)
Total - 2,250,000 - - - - 2,250,000
oy

Notes: B 5T -

1. On 12th November 2018 (Pacific Time), GDI Board proposed to granted shares 1. RIE-N\F+—-A+ZH(KFFEM) - GDIE
options to 57 participants under the GDI Share Option Scheme to subscribe for up to EYRAIRECGDIEREFEmS7 B2 RERT
2,250,000 GDI Shares at the exercise price of US$7.54 per share (the “Exercise Price”). BREUITEESR74ET(TEE]) RER
The grant of share options exceeding the Scheme Mandate Limit was approved by the % 225,000,000 % GDIfR 7 © 5 H #8 i@ 5T E =R
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held on 21st December EHEREEHARARRN -_ZE-N\F+=A
2018 (the “SGM"). Among the abovementioned Options: (i) Options to subscribe for Z+—BRIZEIRRRG (RRFHNAE])
2,127,500 GDI Shares were granted to 16 grantees who are directors of Grid Dynamics RO Pt 2 EERRAEE S (1) BEE 2,127,500
or senior management of Participating Company Group and are so granted in such fRGDIR D MR EFE T16 B ARA - BEF
capacity (the “GDI Senior Management Grant"); and (ii) Options to subscribe for GDIEFHZHANFEENSRERRE - WAZ
122,500 GDI Shares were granted to 41 grantees who were so to be granted in their EHHERTERE(GDIEAERERE ]
capacity as employees and/or officers of the Participating Company Group (the “GDI K2 (if) 7288 122,500 % GDI AR 1) &9 B8 A% 35 % F 41
Employees Grant”). Options of the above Grants are divided into four tranches. There EARBEAN BELEQAFEENEE R SHITH
will be no performance target which much be achieved before the unvested options AR WAZEF D ER T (TGDIE R &%
may be exercised, the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcements B o FMREAERES SN o REBER
dated 21st December 2018 and 18th March 2019, respectively. R FATEAN B EAAER I RBEE - 511E

BERBHSNA-ZE-—N\ET_A=-+T—HRK
TE-NF=RTNBZARRRE °

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 Z 5B BR A7 67 o——



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

C. Share Option Scheme of a subsidiary of the Company
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
1. (Continued)

The vesting period and exercise period of the share options granted on 21st December
2018 under the GDI Senior Management Grant are as follows:

BB ERT &l )
C. RRA—HEBATZERESTE ()

BisE - (48)
1. (8

RIZEGDImABEEEREBE TR =_S—\F+=A
ZH—BERERERE BB RITERET

Percentage of options
of each tranche
shall be exercisable

Date of grant Tranches Vesting Period Exercise Period SHBREZ
#FHEH #R BEH 1T ATEAESL
21.12.2018 First tranche 12.11.2018 12.11.2018 to & 11.11.2028 25%
FE—H#t
Second tranche 1.1.2019 1.1.2019to & 11.11.2028 25%
4t
Third tranche 1.1.2020 1.1.2020 to & 11.11.2028 25%
=4t
Fourth tranche 1.1.2021 1.1.2021 to & 11.11.2028 25%
ESLutking

Immediately prior to the consummation of a change in control of Grid Dynamics
(including Ownership Change Event as defined in the appendix to the Company’s
Circular dated 3rd December 2018 or the liquidation or dissolution of Grid Dynamics),
all the unvested options shall automatically vest in full.

The vesting period and exercise period of the share options granted on 21st December
2018 under the GDI Employees Grant are as follows:

ST GDIE IR R (BEARN T —/\F
ToAZHBHZBRMEMAE CEAEEE
EMSRERMEEGD) AT - B RGERERER
PERE -

BIEGDHEERTE TR 22— \E+-/A—-+—
AEHMERE BB RITEHNAT -

Percentage of options
of each tranche
shall be exercisable

Date of grant Tranches Vesting Period Exercise Period SHERE
BFEHY #R SR 1T6EH ATEZADL
21.12.2018 First tranche 12.11.2018 12.11.2018 to & 11.11.2028 25%
E—H#
Second tranche 12.11.2019 12.11.2019 to & 11.11.2028 25%
FHt
Third tranche 12.11.2020 12.11.2020 to & 11.11.2028 25%
E=Ht
Fourth tranche 12.11.2021 12.11.2021 to & 11.11.2028 25%
Emit

Immediately prior to the consummation of a change in control of Grid Dynamics
(including Ownership Change Event as defined in the appendix to the Company’s
Circular dated 3rd December 2018 or the liquidation or dissolution of Grid Dynamics),
the vesting of options shall accelerate by an additional 12 months.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

C. Share Option Scheme of a subsidiary of the Company
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
1. (Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing vesting schedules, certain options may be exercised
by the participants for issuance of both vested and unvested GDI Shares. In the event
a participant elects to exercise the unvested options, the unvested GDI Shares issued
thereunder shall be treated as restricted stock are entitled to the same rights as vested
GDI Shares, including rights to receive dividends or other distributions to shareholders
of Grid Dynamics as well as the right to vote the shares, save that, the holder shall not
transfer, assign or dispose of any interest in the unvested GDI Shares, which is subject
to a right of repurchase in favor of Grid Dynamics in the event the participant (i) ceases
to provide services to Grid Dynamics or (i) attempts to dispose of such restricted stock
which are issued pursuant to the exercise of unvested options. The restricted shares
will continue to vest in accordance with the above vesting schedule and the transfer
restriction and Grid Dynamics’s right of repurchase shall lapse in accordance with the
above vesting schedule.

2. At the SGM, the shareholders of the Company approved the grant of options to
Leonard Livschitz, Victoria Livschitz and Yury Gryzlov exceeding the Single Participant
Limit to subscribe for up to 937,500 GDI Shares, 300,000 GDI Shares, and 150,000
GDI Shares, respectively, under the GDI Share Option Scheme which represent
approximately 7.81%, 2.50%, and 1.25%, respectively, of the total GDI shares in issue
as at that date. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 21st
December 2018.

In respect of the options granted during the year, details of the estimated fair
values of the share options on the dates of grant are set out in Note 37(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year ended 31st December 2018 was the Company, or any of its
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company or their connected entities to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On 26th October 2018, the Company and Teamsun entered into a supply agreement
in relation to the sale and purchase of products between the Group and Teamsun
and its subsidiaries (“Teamsun Group”) and the provision or sharing of services (the
“Supply Agreement”). The term of the transactions contemplated under the Supply
Agreement shall commence on 26th October 2018 and shall end on 31st December
2020 (both days inclusive), unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Supply Agreement. Teamsun is a controlling shareholder and
a connected person of the Company, thus the transactions contemplate under the
Supply Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company. The
transactions contemplate under the Supply Agreement and the relevant annual caps
are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement.

Both the Group and Teamsun Group are reputable IT infrastructure, solution and
services providers, and have well established distribution channels and networks
in Hong Kong, Southeast Asia, Europe, United States and the PRC, respectively.
The entering into of the Supply Agreement will enhance the efficiency and sales
capabilities of ASH Group’s existing distribution channels and networks by sharing
the business know-how between the Group and Teamsun Group. In addition, the
Directors believe that the cooperation between the Group and Teamsun Group would
allow the realisation of substantial synergies in terms of, among others, convenience,
support and marketing of the Group Products and services.

Set out below are the relevant annual caps and actual transaction amounts of the
continuing connected transactions which occurred during the period from 26th
October 2018 to 31st December 2018 pursuant to the Supply Agreement:

BENRBEALRS
RZZE-NF+AZ+TARE  KRBEEBRAKE L
I # - NEA AR EEE SRS HIE QR
([FEBREEE ) 2 HEEER RIS TR -
HEBERT 2P EREE T NF+HZTRX
BRBYER_ZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—RH(BEER
A &L - HERER R 2 R R R R R L
BIRRSN o FERSRAAR DR ERMEEAL -
SRR HIE R IE T HEETT 2 R BB AR BIROR
EREERS - HEBER TRETZRS MARE
FLER AETLETRULVATEBR T ZHR O
SRFEENZRE  BERLETEIBRIER

==

E °

REBREBRIEBG /AL EAMKERE - R
HEMRGHER BCOMNESDE  RED: - B
M ZBERPERETRFDHRE LB - 5T HE
B EAEE NEBRNEE LAY ZEBEER
- MR AREIRE D HRB RABK 2 ME K
EEE - UbAN BRI ARBEFEBIARERZ
Mz B ERAIR (AT B KRBz Em kR 2 E
M XEREETEEREAN BRSNS -

AT RRBHREREN-_Z-N\FT+AZ+REE=
Z-N\F+ZA=+BEHRBEZFERERZ SN
HEFLRLAERERS SR -

Actual annual

transaction

Annual cap of amount for
the transactions the year ended

for the year ended 31st December 2018

31st December 2018 BE-ZE—N\F
BE-Z-N\F +=A=+—H
Name of company Description of the transactions +=A=+—H 2 FER
AEEHE REFHE LE2FERS LR REeH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Teamsun Amount payable by the Group in respect of the 10,000 -
purchase of products from Teamsun Group
FEBRK AEERBEEBF RN EEEREN SRR
Amount receivable by the Group in respect of the 10,000 -
supply of products of the Group to Teasum Group
ANER B R B RS OR Pk S5 (B (1L B N 5 [ 2 JE MR
Amount payable by the Group in respect of the services 25,000 244
provided by Teamsun
REE T EBRKIRMH RIS BN S
Amount receivable by the Group in respect of the 25,000 -

provision of services to Teamsun

2552 [t e 3 s R P PR 1 AR TS B W RO
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised), “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740, “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with
Rule14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The auditor of the Company has also confirmed to
the Board in writing that the above continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31st December 2018:

(i) have received the approval of the Board,;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant pricing policies of the
Group;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps.

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31st December 2018, none of the
related party transactions entered into by the Group set out in the section headed
“Related Party Transactions” in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements
constitutes connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which is
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors and chief executives
of the Company, the following person (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

FERER@®

(a) Shares (a) it
Number of
ordinary Percentage
shares of the of issued
Company held share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity Nature BEAXAT HERT
KRR EH BE L= EERZROEE BAEZBDE
Hong Kong Teamsun Beneficial owner Long Position 455,268,915 56.54%
BBEBRK ZEA ey}
Teamsun Interest of controlled corporation Long Position 455,268,915 56.54%
FERBRK R EE RS R
Beijing International Trust Trustee Long Position 107,841,7422 13.39%
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Trust") ZFEA R
I RBEBREFERRAR
(MEx{E7ED)
(b) Underlying shares (b) #EEAR 12
Number of
underlying Percentage of
shares of the issued
Company held share capital
Name Capacity Nature BEXATZ HE BT
REREH BE 3= HERDEE BRAZEDH
China Construction Bank Interest of controlled corporation Long Position 274,725,274° 34.12%
Corporation (“CCBC") YL E RS LS=)
B RIRITIRBR A A
(MBI 7))
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation Long Position 274,725,274% 34.12%

("Central Huijin")
HARESREBRIDA
(T RES )

Note:

EEEE RS

WA

1. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Teamsun and
was therefore deemed to be interested in the 455,268,915 shares in which Hong Kong

Teamsun was interested.

2. Beijing Trust held 107,841,742 shares, being the trustee of a unit trust of BOC — BJITIC

Overseas Market Financing 016.

3. CCBC was interested in 274,725,274 underlying shares through a controlled
corporation, Triple Wise Asset Holdings Ltd. (“Triple Wise”), to be derived from the
convertible bonds of a principal amount of HK$250,000,000 issued by the Company
on 21st March 2017 (the “Convertible Bonds”) at the adjusted conversion price of

HK$0.91 per share.
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455,268,915 &t {n P A = -

b RAEFEIE A 107,841,742 AR R + B—1E
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SR FHEA

AR A R AR 1T Y H 24T K @ Triple Wise Asset
Holdings Ltd. ([Triple Wise |) ¥ & #9274,725,274
AR P A ZSERDBITEEAR
ARAR-ZE—+F=A-+—BBT2ALHE
250,000,000 77T 2 R4S IR E AR 0.91 87T
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
(b) Underlying shares (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

4. Triple Wise was wholly owned by CCB International Overseas (Cayman) Limited (“CCB
Cayman”), a company wholly owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited (“CCB
Holdings"”). CCB Holdings was wholly owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited (“CCB
Financial”), a company wholly owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited
("CCB Group”). CCB Group was wholly owned by CCBC, 57.11% of total ordinary
shares issued of which was owned by Central Huijin. Therefore, CCB Cayman, CCB
Holdings, CCB Financial, CCB Group, CCBC and Central Huijin are deemed to be
interested in the 274,725,274 underlying shares of the Company in which Triple Wise
was interested.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st December 2018, there was no other person
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in
the register of interest required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds are set out in the “Chief Executive Officer’s
Statement” on page 17 of the annual report and Note 35(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2018, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the Company, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.
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4. Triple Wise B3 CCB International Overseas (Cayman)
Limited ([ CCB Cayman]) —2 8 CCB International
(Holdings) Limited ([ CCB Holdings|) & & # &
A A]) & & A - CCB Holdings 8 CCB Financial
Holdings Limited ([CCB Financial|) — % 1 CCB
International Group Holdings Limited ([ CCB
Group]) 2 &AM AR 2 &R - CCB Group
HPBEZRRITEEER  PRESNFEER
RITHAS7. 1% N EETEBRARN - Bt
CCB Cayman ~ CCB Holdings * CCB Financial »
CCB Group * FEIEFZRRITRARES T BHER
R Triple Wise ¥ B #E & 89 274,725,274 IR A A A48
R EA R -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st December
2018, except as noted below:

(@) with respect to Code provision A.6.7, (i) two Non-Executive Directors did not
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 16th May 2018 (the
"2018 AGM") due to other commitments; and (i) two Non-Executive Directors
and two Independent Non-Executive Directors did not attend the SGM.

(b)  with respect to Code provision E.1.2, Mr. Li Wei, the Chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend the 2018 AGM due to other commitments.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31st December 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31st December 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

As permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company, a director of the Company may be
indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any liability incurred by the director,
to the extent permitted by Bermuda law. Such permitted indemnity provision has been
in force during the year and is currently in force at the time of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance during the year, which provides appropriate cover for certain legal actions
brought against its directors and officers.

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong
Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director or a former director of the Hong Kong
Subsidiaries may be indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries’ assets against any
liability incurred by the director to a person other than the Hong Kong Subsidiaries or
an associated company of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent permitted by law.
Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force at the time of approval of this
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended 31st December
2018. During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group including the review of the
annual results and interim results, and discussed various auditing, financial reporting
and risk management and internal control system matters.
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DONATION

During the year ended 31st December 2018, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to HK$13,000.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as Auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20th March 2019
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——Independent Auditor’s Report

B RN S

o Grant Thornton
3]

To the members of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BBRGEEERRAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated Systems
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 81 to 206, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st December 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR E

FRRELSE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most ~ BA$REIZFHERER MW FEEFIE - RALAEHH
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.  4RE SRRV ERZRAEENEIE - XS FEREE
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial ~ F I ZEELRA M EHRE LEARMAOE RRFEST
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a ~ BE#) - ERM I SHZEFTERELFENER -

separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters
BRERSER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets arising

from the acquisition of the Grid Dynamics Group

Y2 #8 Grid Dynamics R B E 4 NEE R BN EE 2 BEfh

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements — Goodwill
and Intangible Assets

BRI BEREN T 21 - BEREEEE

As at 31st December 2018, the Group had goodwill and intangible
assets (including technical know-how and customer relationship)
of approximately HK$771,173,000 and HK$110,463,000
respectively, which were arose from the acquisition of Grid Dynamics
International, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Grid Dynamics Group”).
RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—HB EXEBELREVEE(BLE
BT mE R =P REFR) 58 A% 771,173,000 7T & 110,463,000
T H Ty B 48 B Grid Dynamics International, Inc & E Fff & 2 7]
([ Grid Dynamics &£ /8 |) &4 »

Goodwill and intangible assets have been allocated to the cash
generating units (“CGU") of Grid Dynamics Group under the
IT Services operating segment. The management assessed the
recoverable amount of the CGU with reference to an independent
valuation prepared by a firm of external valuers and concluded that
no impairment on goodwill and intangible assets is required.
HMEREREELHEEZEMEHIRIEEE D3 T Grid Dynamics
SEHRSELBM([REELEM]) - £2EH—HINEHER
AAREZBYGE  ERECHEREELEML ZAIKEIS YT
REBENEVEEYEFTERNE -

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets as a key audit matter due to the calculation of recoverable
amount involves significant estimate and judgement about future
market conditions, including the revenue growth rate and discount
rate applied in the calculation.

HPSEE MBI EE ZRENGE R —EEREREER  ILH
Rt E AW Bl & 55 R EARRTN 2 EAMET RAE - BFETEE
AR RRE -

How the Key Audit Matters were addressed in our audit

BMNEROTEERAREREE

Our audit procedures on impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets included the following:

B E R B EE CREMGETNERIEFBRA TSR

e evaluated the independent external valuer’'s competence,
capabilities, objectivity and independence;

AHESNERIE L AT E B 2 BeBE ~ BED - BEBIERIBSIIE

e assessed the appropriateness and reasonableness of the
methodology and the key assumptions adopted by the independent
external valuer in calculating the recoverable amount;

FHE NI LA ERDEET E AT UL B & BERF IR AN 2 T7 05 R BB IR AR
ZEEE AT

e checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and reliance of the input
data used; and

WEREREARER 2 ERIERATSELE R

e checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the
recoverable amount.

R Rl S RRAT B 2 R o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the 2018 annual report of the Company, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

20th March 2019

Lam Yau Hing
Practising Certificate No.: P06622
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEELE

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HZE =

—N\F+ZRA=+—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Revenue PN 7 2,344,457 1,917,453
Cost of goods sold SHERA (716,939) (648,321)
Cost of services rendered HRALARTS 2 AR (1,134,891) (924,968)
Other income E A A 8 7,979 5,686
Other loss, net HAhFEE 9 (15,686) (8,216)
Fair value gain on revaluation of BEREMEZ
investment properties ’“’ﬂﬁfﬁﬂﬂlm 20 1,700 1,700
Selling expenses HEEH (114,083) (103,056)
Administrative expenses THER (217,307) (146,584)
Finance income RN 10 259 370
Finance costs BTSN 11 (22,726) (17,205)
Share of results of associates i faN AN e 22 (5.428) (7,111)
Profit before income tax FRATSBLAT SR 12 127,335 69,748
Income tax expense FriS i sz 16 (43,002) (17,169)
Profit for the year attributable to AR REFE AL
equity holders of the Company FriaRl 84,333 52,579
HK cents HK cents
4l il
(Restated)
(5 &%)
Earnings per share BREF 18
Basic E- N 10.48 7.49
Diluted f 5] 8.93 6.47

The notes on pages 88 to 206 are an integral part of these consolidated financial =% 88 25 206 B 2 M sH iR 4r & M5k 2 A
statements. R ER
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e EWES

For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE —T—\F+_A=+—HILtFE

—e 382

2018 2017
—E-NF —F—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Profit for the year FREF 84,333 52,579
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hth2mEWE (FE)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently HG G T ERET DL B m &
to profit or loss: HIEH -
Revaluation surplus of land and buildings T RIEFE B 19 17,969 18,056
Deferred taxation arising from revaluation T RIEFE GBS
surplus of land and buildings EAEZIRERTE 36 (2,965) (2,979)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to B Al se i B 7 2
profit or loss: B FKaEA -
Exchange differences on translation of REBIEH EREZR
overseas operations (778) 6,049
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income FERE S AR EM R E
of associates (E18)  Wax 22 (431) 1,004
Total comprehensive income for the year AARREEE ABLEER
attributable to equity holders 2HRBARE
of the Company 98,128 74,709

The notes on pages 88 to 206 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R

As at 31st December 2018 A=

—NE+=A=+—8

2018 2017
—E-NF —F—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W -~ BE KK 19 304,495 291,055
Investment properties TEME 20 54,000 52,300
Intangible assets EREE 21 118,053 119,323
Goodwill [ 21 771,173 769,499
Interests in associates /N 22 27,662 46,948
Equity investment PRIEIRE 23 598 598
Finance lease receivables FEY Bl & AE &R IE 27 1,128 3,325
Prepayments iﬁﬁ?ﬂlﬁ 28 - 340
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSTHIEE 36 5,384 4,017
1,282,493 1,287,405
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 25 178,595 128,081
Trade receivables FEWE 5 FRIA 26 315,007 275,952
Finance lease receivables FEN RS RS FIE 27 3,346 3,592
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H U IE - ke RIEAFIE 28 44,596 32,946
Amounts due from customers contract work BHTRREREFHIE 29 - 204,644
Contract assets BREE 29 260,462 -
Tax recoverable AT EIFEIE 3,588 41,334
Restricted bank deposits ZRHIERITFER 30 762 4,168
Bank balances and cash RITER RS 30 292,183 286,771
1,098,539 977,488
Total assets HEE 2,381,032 2,264,893
Equity attributable to equity holders ADBREFE AELER
of the Company
Share capital [N 31 80,522 67,054
Share premium A& 10 e (B AR 377,146 376,464
Reserves (G 755,209 654,300
Total equity BtEs 1,212,877 1,097,818

The notes on pages 88 to 206 are an integral part of these consolidated financial =% 88 25 206 B 2 M sH iR 4r & M5k 2 A
statements. HIRED S ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma BRI R

As at 31st December 2018 R=F—\F+=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAxT

Non-current liabilities ESi =R
Borrowings - 35 257,425 245,182
Contingent consideration payable FESSARE 6(d) - 67,262
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMGHAasE 36 76,420 74,723
333,845 387,167

Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERTE 55038 32 258,940 175,802
Other payables and accruals E b R RIE R IEET & A 33 139,415 153,904
Contingent consideration payable FERT S AR(E 6(d) 69,565 69,429
Receipts in advance TR = 34 132,017 126,711
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS B B & 10,083 6,262
Borrowings BE 35 224,290 247,800
834,310 779,908
Total liabilities meE 1,168,155 1,167,075
Total equity and liabilities BRERREE 2,381,032 2,264,893
Net current assets REBEEFH 264,229 197,580
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARE 1,546,722 1,484,985
LI Wei WANG Yueou
=g TER
Director Director
EZE EE

The notes on pages 88 to 206 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
N =y T E

MV_.R

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HZE =

—N\F+ZRA=+—HLFE

Share-
based
Special Property Convertible payment
reserve revaluation bonds reserve
Share Share (Note (i) reserve  Translation reserve VAR Retained Total
capital premium 3l MES reseve  AHARES earnings equity
A 3 (F=E () G [ S & RERR i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL FHT T FET BT AT AL
At 1st January 2017 R=Z—tF-A-H 35,079 114,497 34,350 205,580 (8,904) - 126 338,305 719,033
Comprehensive income: 2Kz :
Profit for the year FREH - - - - - - - 52,579 52,579
Other comprehensive ~ Hft 2K/ (F8) :
income/(loss):
Revaluation surplusof ~ THRIEFE(ERM
land and buildings — - - 18,056 - - - - 18,056
Deferred taxation arising ~ Tii FEFE - B
from revaluation surplus ~ E4 ZELFIE
of land and buildings - - - (2,979) - - - - (2,979)
Exchange differenceson  BREBINEBZERZR
translation of overseas
operations - - - - 6,049 - - - 6,049
Share of other
comprehensive income Fﬂﬁ BEARAMEE
of associates (Note 22) = (fiEE22) - - - - 1,004 - - - 1,004
Total comprehensive ~ FAZHEKGEEE
income for the year - - - 15,077 7,053 - - 52,579 74,709
Transactions with owners: BEEAZRX 5 :
Issue of ordinary shares on % 2472 i@k
rights issue (Note 31(i))  (Bi&E31(ii) 17,539 171,579 - - - - - - 189,118
Issue of ordinary shares on  BATALRR 8472 LA
bonus issue (Note 31(ii))  (Fft&E 31(iii)) 5,262 = = = = = = (5,262) =
Recognition of R A
equity-settled By 7%
share-based payments - - - - - - 4,299 - 4,299
Equity component of ARRESERDD
convertible bonds (BfaE 35i))
(Note 35(ii) - - - - - 15,536 - - 15,536
Issue of ordinary shares  AJ R EHE AT
upon conversion of ZEBR (HFE310v) &
convertible bonds 35(i))
(Notes 31(iv) & 35(ii)) 9,174 90,388 = - - (4,439) - - 95,123
Total transactions REFAZRZEHE
with owners 31,975 261,967 - - - 11,097 4,299 (5,262) 304,076
At 31st December 2017 R=Z—tF+=-HA=1+—H 67,054 376,464 34,350 220,657 (1,851) 11,097 4,425 385,622 1,097,818
The notes on pages 88 to 206 are an integral part of these consolidated financial =% 88 25 206 B 2 M sH iR 4r & M5k 2 A
statements. HERED D
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERZSER

For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE —T—\F+_A=+—HILtFE

Share-
based
N eE Property Convertible payment
reserve  revaluation bonds reserve
Share Share (Note (i) reserve  Translation reserve SR 43 Retained Total
capital premium KEIRE WEEH reserve AR RER earnings equity
BRE  ROEEER (GEAO) 1] B fRE BHRE X% REEF BiRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEr TEx FEr TER TER TEr TEr TER
At 1st January 2018 R=Z-NF-A-H 67,054 376,464 34,350 220,657 (1,851) 11,097 4,425 385,622 1,097,818
Comprehensive income: 2K
Profit for the year FREH - - - - - - - 84,333 84,333
Other comprehensive ~ Htt2EK#E / (F8) :
income/(loss):
Revaluation surplusof T3 REFEHERH
land and buildings - - - 17,969 - - - - 17,969
Deferred taxation arising ~ Tit RIEFEHRR
from revaluation surplus ~ EA ZIEERE
of land and buildings - - - (2,965) - - - - (2,965)
Exchange differenceson  BREENEBZEHZ2
translation of overseas
operations - - - - (778) - - - (778)
Share of other EEBERAREMEE
comprehensive lossof 518 (Fif#E22)
associates (Note 22) - - - - (431) - - - (431)
Total comprehensive ~ FRZARZEE
income for the year - - - 15,004 (1,209) - - 84,333 98,128
Transactions with owners: BEBAZR 5
Final dividend for the REHZE-T—tF
year ended +=ZA=+-H
315t December 2017 IEFEZRERE
(Note 17) (K=£17) - - - - - - - (6,707) (6.707)
Issue of ordinary shares  fT{ERE IR BT 2 HRAR
upon exercise of
share options 54 682 - - - - (183) - 553
Issue of ordinary shares on  BE{TALIR N &172
bonus issue (Note 31(v))  E3BAR (£ 31(v)) 13,414 - - - - - - (13,414) -
Forfeiture of unclaimed ~ JRURERE
dividend - - - - - - - 2 2
Recognition of HRLARD A
equity-settled ERZzRAE
share-based payment - - - - - - 23,083 - 23,083
Lapse of share options ~ EEERBEF|Z
transferred to retained ~ KRIREEMHE
earnings - - - - - - (37) 37 -
Total transactions BEFAZRZEE
with owners 13,468 682 - - - - 22,863 (20,082) 16,931
At 31st December 2018  R=F—\F+=-A=+—H| 80,522 377,146 34,350 235,661 (3,060) 11,097 27,288 449,873 1,212,877

M) - BBEREBERIB(ARAF ) REWEAR (4
W AKE]) 2SHREEBER - AN EFAR R
3 EHAETEMEAR - RKBEZHBAREH
T2 EE - B ZREMETHAR RS Z
HE MEZRZER -

Note () The special reserve of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company’s shares in 1997.

The notes on pages 88 to 206 are an integral part of these consolidated financial =% 88 25 206 B 2 M sHiEK AR & M 5K 2 A
statements. HIRED S ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
.\/T/\IEEIJILE’%‘:Z

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HHE —ZE— \F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FHIT

Operating activities REEK
Cash generated from operations KEEB R 2BA 40(a) 185,491 111,220
Tax paid BERHIE
— Hong Kong profits tax - BANEH (8,910) (15,563)
— Overseas profits tax - BYNTE (19,939) (20,698)
Tax refund REFHIE
— Overseas profits tax - BHINETE 24,905 1
Net cash from operating activities REEKHSWAFE 181,547 74,960
Investing activities REEE
Cash outflow in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries ﬁﬁﬁ”ﬂlﬁﬁwgﬂﬁziﬁﬁﬁﬂj 38 (111,224) (771,334)
Transaction costs paid for acquisition of subsidiaries BT A R SR A - (11,783)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEDE - lﬁﬁ%&aﬂﬁ (16,390) (10,603)
Additions to intangible assets ER AR ZIZN (9,582) (57)
Proceeds from disposal of partial interest in B N A Eb D

an associate Fr{S 308 336 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE RREHSRIE

plant and equipment 53 42
Investment in equity instrument BmTHZIRE - (598)
Interest received R GRS 8 785 137
Dividends received from an associate B SR RUER Z A S 22 485 484
Net cash used in investing activities REEFH2RSXHEHE (135,537) (793,712)
Financing activities mEEE
Net proceeds from bank borrowings HRITIE BTSSRI S5 - 246,546
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (25,000) (10,000)
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BTSRRI FEE 553 189,118
Interest paid [EEREESS (9,044) (5,911)
Dividend paid BERIARE (6,707) -
Net proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds BT EF PSSR IS5 - 345,947
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities BMETBHRS (ZH) WARE (40,198) 765,700
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re RIS EEBY 2L INFHE 5,812 46,948
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FHIzHReRREEED

the year 286,771 237,755
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNREPE R BB 2 2 (400) 2,068
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRZReRIREEEY 292,183 286,771

The notes on pages 88 to 206 are an integral part of these consolidated financial =% 88 25 206 B 2 M sH iR 4r & M5k 2 A
statements. R ER

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B #) Z#t 5B G R AR 87 e——



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—_ZT—\F+_-_A=+—BILtFE

1.

— 388

GENERAL INFORMATION

Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At 31st
December 2018, its immediate holding company is Teamsun Technology (HK)
Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its
ultimate holding company is Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”),
a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") and its
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda, and 15th Floor, Topsail
Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of its major
associates and subsidiaries are set out in Notes 22 and 47 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) on 20th March 2019.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are summarised in Note 3. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except that the land and buildings, investment properties, equity
investment classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income and contingent consideration payable are stated at fair values.

Annual Report 2018 & %R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. RBEE )

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with RETE B BMISIME LR 2 76 TSR EK
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires FRETHERSER - ENEREEEREAR
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s NEB 2 ST BRI TEEAE - PR EHE
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or SRR M S MR A SRR M E BER 2B
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the BRAEE - HERMIE 4B -

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The impacts of the adoption of the new and amended HKFRSs are discussed PR REMERT BB 5 S 2R 2 2 BHt
below: NN
(a) New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for the (@) RA=ZE-NF—-—A—BRHBZHH
annual periods beginning on 1st January 2018: FEHBERZHITREEBITER
MR EER
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the following RAFE - ANEEHXEA T EEESE
new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to MAgEM HEAEELSERETNR_-F
the Group’s operations and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial —N\F—A—BRBZHBFEEAEE 2
statements for the annual period beginning on 1st January 2018: A HRERER 2] REEFT BB
RS 2ER -
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BEVBHRE 2HITA
ZERIZE 95
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and BEVBRE EFAAMAREE
the related Amendments ZERZE 15 5% CEIEN
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of BEEMBHRE UROBERZNAXS
Share-based Payment Transactions RIS 2 5% ARG E
CCHEN)
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with BEVBRE  EBBYBHREER
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts HERZE 455 FASRE A —F
CHEN) JEFHH) & BRI R
EAIEIH TR
Amendments to HKFRS 1 As part of Annual Improvements to BRUMBRE HH—FHEER
and HKAS 28 HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle HAF1HM = F—AFHE
BEGEN BB BHREER
22857 FREIE
CHES)
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property BEEGEN REYEEE
FE 4055
(fB2TA)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance B (BRI  IMEXZRAETE
Consideration WMERE
ZE®)-2%E
SE225%
Other than as noted below, the adoption of these new and amended BRTSIFRPIE SN - B2 3R] RISIEETHE
HKFRSs has no material impact on how the results and financial position BRI R SRS AR S B AR K FHIE
of the Group for the current and prior periods have been prepared and RATH ZEE R R I EER B A
presented. 2o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—_ZT—\F+_-_A=+—BILtFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a) New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for the

—e 90

annual periods beginning on 1st January 2018: (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. It makes major changes to the previous guidance on the
classification and measurement of financial assets and introduces an “ECL
model” for the impairment of financial assets.

When adopting HKFRS 9, the Group has applied the standard retrospectively
to items that existed at 1st January 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirement and also applied transitional relief and opted not to restate
prior periods. Differences arising from the adoption of HKFRS 9 in relation
to classification, measurement, and impairment are recognised in retained
earnings.

The adoption has not had a significant effect on the Group’s accounting
policies related to financial liabilities. The impact of HKFRS 9 on the
classification and measurement of financial assets are set out below.

Reclassification from available-for-sale financial asset to financial asset at fair
value through other comprehensive income

The Group has an unlisted equity investment and was classified as available-
for-sale financial assets measured at cost less impairment under previous
standard HKAS 39. With the adoption of HKFRS 9, this investment is
classified as financial asset measured at fair value. The Group has made
an irrecoverable election to present any changes in the fair value in other
comprehensive income as the investment is held as long-term strategic
investments that are not expected to be sold in the short to medium term.

As a result, the above investment has been stated at fair value and there
was no significant difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount of the investment as at 1st January 2018, therefore no adjustment
was recorded to opening equity.

Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the ECL model.
The ECL model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk associated
with a financial asset and therefore recognises ECL earlier than under the
“incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including trade receivables, other receivables and deposits,
finance lease receivables and restricted bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) and contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15.

Annual Report 2018 & %R
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a) New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE

2. RREE &)
(a) R=ZE—N\F—F—BHRB 2T

annual periods beginning on 1st January 2018: (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group applies a simplified model of recognising lifetime ECL for
contract assets arising from HKFRS 15, trade receivables and finance lease
receivables. For other financial assets, the Group applies a “three-stage
model” of recognising ECL.

The Group has concluded that the impact of ECL on financial assets is
insignificant as at 1st January 2018 and therefore no adjustment was
recorded to opening equity.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and the related
amendments

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and the related
“Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(hereinafter referred to as “HKFRS 15”) replace HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction contracts” and several revenue-related interpretations.

Summary of nature and effect of the changes on previous accounting
policies are set out below:

(i) Timing of revenue recognition

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
control of the promised good or service in the contract. This may be at a
single point in time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies the following three
situations in which control of the promised good or service is regarded
as being transferred over time:

(@) When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance, as the entity
performs;

(b) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example work in progress) that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

(c) When the entity’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—_ZT—\F+_-_A=+—BILtFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a) New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for the
annual periods beginning on 1st January 2018: (Continued)

—e 92

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and the related

amendments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any of
these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
for the sale of that good or service at a single point in time, being
when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is
only one of the indicators that is considered in determining when the
transfer of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant impact on when
the Group recognises revenue.

Presentation of contract assets and contract liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group has
an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group recognises the
related revenue (Note 3(u)) before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration for the promised goods and services in the contract, then
the entitlement to consideration is classified as a contract asset. Similarly,
a contract liability is recognised when a customer pays consideration, or
is contractually required to pay consideration and the amount is already
due, before the Group recognises the related revenue.

To reflect these changes in presentation as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 15, the Group has reclassified “Amounts due from customers
for contract work” to “Contract assets” while contract liabilities is
presented as “Receipts in advance” as at 1st January 2018.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant impact on
presentation of contract assets and contract liabilities.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect transition method. The

Group concluded that there is no significant impact on the initial application,

therefore no adjustment has been made to the opening balance of retained

earnings as at 1st January 2018. Comparative information has not been

restated and continues to be reported under HKASs 11 and 18. As allowed

by HKFRS 15, the Group has applied the new requirements only to contracts

that were not completed as at 1st January 2018.
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2. RREE &)

(b) BHREERERNE B HREE
a -

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs:

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements,
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but are not yet
effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Definition of Material?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Definition of a Business®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2021

4 Effective date not yet determined
> Effective for business combination and asset acquisition for which the acquisition

date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after

1st January 2020

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be adopted
in the Group's accounting policy for the first period beginning after the
effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new and amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the Group’s accounting policies
is provided below. Other new and amended HKFRSs are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

—e 94

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs: (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 “Leases” will replace HKAS 17 and three related Interpretations.

As disclosed in Note 3(y), currently the Group classifies leases into finance
leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the lease. The Group enters
into some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors
account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS
16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases and
operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will account
for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease, the lessee will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the
lessee would recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient,
the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases
(i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of leases of
office premises, staff quarter and computer equipment which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new accounting model
is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact
on the timing of the expense recognition in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss over the period of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to use the practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the
new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into
on or after the date of initial application.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs: (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective approach for
the adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1st January 2019 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at 1st January 2019. Comparative information will not
be restated. In addition, the Group plans to elect the practical expedient
for not applying the new accounting model to short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets and not to perform a full review of existing leases and
apply HKFRS 16 only to new contracts. Furthermore, the Group plans to use
the practical expedient to account for leases for which the lease term ends
within 12 months from the date of initial application as short-term lease.
As disclosed in Note 41, as at 31st December 2018, the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount to
HK$22,020,000 for office premises, staff quarter and computer equipment,
the majority of which is payable either within one year after the reporting
date or between one to five years.

Upon the initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group plans to measure the
rights-of-use assets as if HKFRS 16 had always been applied by using the
incremental borrowing rate at initial application date and the opening
balances of lease liabilities and the corresponding right-of-use assets will be
adjusted accordingly, after taking account the effects of discounting, as at
1st January 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, the
Group expects that the transition adjustments to be made upon the initial
adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the expected changes
in accounting policies as described above could have a material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements from 2019 onwards.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power over the entity, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

—e 96

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Where
certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted
to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable. All dividends whether received out of
the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(b) EHE B

(b) Business combination

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value on the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as bargain purchase gain.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date. Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date. The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounting
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as a financial
liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value with
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity before the
acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains
control over the acquiree.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

—o 98

(b) Business combination (Continued)

(9]

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period,
or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that
date.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but
not control or joint control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss or consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(9]

Interests in associates (Continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

(d) Segment reporting

(e)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
Board that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HKD or HK$), which is the Company’s functional currency and
the Group’s presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement
of profit or loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses), net.
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(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(ii)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified
as fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss presented
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii

=

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
translation reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(f) Property, plant and equipment f) ¥% - BRERRE

Land and buildings are stated at fair value. Property, plant and equipment,
other than land and buildings, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Land and buildings are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair values at the reporting
date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings is
credited to the property revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously recognised
as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt
with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Land and buildings Over the remaining term of the lease or

50 years, whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures 10% — 33'3%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computer and office equipment  162/3% — 50%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in
other reserves are transferred to retained earnings.
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(g) Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment properties. Investment property is
measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment property.

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting date
by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(h) Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the
date that control is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as
the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually for impairment as
described below in Note 3(j).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of gain or loss on
disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (i) BELEE (BEBR)

Technical know-how and customer relationship

Technical know-how and customer relationships acquired in business
combination are recognised initially at fair value at the acquisition date.
After initial recognition, those have finite useful lives and are subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation for technical know-how and customer relationships is provided
on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 3 years and 15
years, respectively.

Intangible assets, with finite and indefinite useful lives, are tested for
impairment as described below in Note 3(j).

Research and development expenditure

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as incurred. Costs that are directly attributable
to development activities are recognised as intangible assets provided they
meet the following recognition requirements:

(a) demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective product for
internal use or sale;

(b) there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

(c) the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is demonstrated;

(d) the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through
internal use or sale;

(e) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available for
completion; and

(f) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be reliably
measured.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is
the sum of the direct costs incurred from the date when the intangible asset
first meets the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Direct costs include employee
costs incurred on development activities along with an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using straight-line method over the estimated
useful life of 3 years.

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.
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(Continued)

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:
e Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries

e Other intangible assets;

e Property, plant and equipment;

e Interests in associates

e The Company’s investments in subsidiaries

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful life or those
not yet available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
for impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions
less costs of disposal, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies of
the related business combination and represent the lowest level within the
Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose
and not be larger than an operating segment.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which goodwill
has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the
cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(k)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. In

respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a

favourable change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable

amount and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not

exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of

depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed

only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

Financial assets and liabilities

0]

Financial assets
Policy applicable from 1st January 2018
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o debt instruments to be measured at amortised cost; and

o equity instrument to be measured subsequently at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For debt instruments, the classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and its contractual cash flows
characteristics. For investment in equity instrument, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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(i)  Financial assets (Continued)
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Policy applicable from 1st January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses) together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.

The Group's financial assets are amortised cost comprise “trade
receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”, “finance lease
receivables”, “restricted bank deposits” and “bank balances and cash”
as set out in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investment at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive dividend
payments is established. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

k) EREEREE )
(i) Financial assets (Continued) () =HEEGE

(k) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Policy applicable before 1st January 2018

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected not
to restate comparative information. As a result, the comparative
information provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with
the Group's previous accounting policy.

The Group classifies its financial assets depending on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired at initial recognition and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each reporting
date.

The Group classifies its financial assets into loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for the amounts that have
maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date which are
classified as non-current assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, they
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses.

noon

The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade receivables”, “other
receivables and deposits”, “finance lease receivables”, “restricted bank
deposits” and “bank balances and cash” as set out in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for inclusion in any
of the other categories of financial assets are classified as available-for-
sale financial assets. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12
months after the reporting date.

For available-for-sale investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at each reporting date
subsequent to initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—_ZT—\F+_-_A=+—BILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEETBE =

(Continued)

(k) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

—= 108

Policy applicable before 1st January 2018 (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

(i) Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include “trade payables”, “other
payables and accruals”, “contingent consideration payable”, “liability
component of convertible bonds” and “bank borrowings”. They are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position as trade
payables, other payables and accruals, contingent consideration

payable and borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. All interest
related charges are recognised in accordance with the Group'’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note 3(w)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Trade payables and other payables and accruals

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)
k) eREEREE®)

(i) Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) =FEEGE

(k) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

They are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Contingent consideration payable

Contingent consideration payable is classified as financial liability and
is subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would be
issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that would
be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain a liability component, a derivative
component and an equity component.

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both financial
liability and equity components are classified separately into respective
liability, derivative and equity components on initial recognition. On
initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
debts. The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the call option for conversion of the convertible bonds into
equity, is included in equity as convertible bonds reserve.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component will remain in
equity until conversion or redemption of the bond.

When the convertible bond is converted, the equity component of
convertible bond and the carrying value of the liability component at the
time of conversion are transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, the
convertible bonds reserve is released directly to retained earnings.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—_ZT—\F+_-_A=+—BILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(iii) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

(I) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

— 110

Policy applicable from 1st January 2018

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
("ECL") associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
contract assets as recognised and measured under HKFRS 15 (see Note
3(m)).

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 6(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, contract assets and finance lease receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

For all other financial assets, the Group adopted a “three-stage” model for
impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as
summarised below:

e The receivables with low credit risk on initial recognition is classified in
“Stage 1" and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Group;

e If asignificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified,
the receivables is moved to “Stage 2" but is not yet deemed to be credit
impaired,;

e |If the receivables is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then
moved to “Stage 3".

Receivables in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the
portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events possible within the
next 12 months. Instruments in Stage 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based
on ECL on a lifetime basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

() EMEERSNEEZRE®)

(I) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)

Policy applicable from 1st January 2018 (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

When estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

e 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

e Jifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the expected lives of the items to which the
ECL model applies.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables, contract assets,
finance lease receivables and other financial assets measured at amortised
cost are set out in Note 6(b).

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets, other than those
at fair value through profit or loss, is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—_ZT—\F+_-_A=+—BILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEETBE =

(Continued)

() Impairment of financial assets and contract assets () tRMEERESNEEZRE®)
(Continued)
Policy applicable before 1st January 2018 (Continued) B-Z—-N\F—F—BBERAZBX (&
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a BEDRAIEE— B —ABRA RS
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or AEITEREE - BASCRAEERTEHAS
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will BEK AR E ST R B EAE - A
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable RAERBREBER LT AR RR R E NI
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future AT =R - BlAR RSB FEhzk IR EE
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate AVMERAEY A ERR, ©

with defaults.

For loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, the amount of the loss RS ARSI BR 2 B R EWGRTE - RS
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the BRAERDSEEGTTRRASRECHE
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses BZEZEAE2(TEREREEZRKEES
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original B)MZRENZEREERE BEEFRAL
effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the Hite - EEZRESBESWRED - BES
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. TR IBR AR ©

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases HEHEZHE  OREEEZ 2R - &
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after RS R RS AERREREE S
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s 18R (PIanER A EEFRBNE) - Al2
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is RIFERR < R EE1E 2 BB g e = R o

recognised in profit or loss.

For unlisted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured PRSI R IE ETERFAEME © RE
as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and EEEAeREENREEENEUSRE
the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of EEHYE B T 3% O] ¥R R AL IR (40 SRALIR & 156K
return for a similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. BANTE) WA RRREREZHNE
Impairment losses for equity securities carried at cost are not reversed. AT E o RKAIRA R B HFARERE
Al o
(m) Contract assets and contract liabilities (mENEEREHNEARE

Policy applicable from 1st January 2018 BE-ZE-N\F—A—HEEAZBER

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue (see IRER BT A R AR IR S A0 P 1 R AR
Note 3(u)) before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under ZRERTHERW S (RHEE3(u) RERE L
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for BE - GRAAERBW () &R E
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in Note 3(l) and are reclassified to HE BB - WERERERKAEGRYE
receivables when the right to the consideration has become unconditional BESH S EEEBGRIE (RKEE3K) °

(see Note 3(k)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration AEEBERABUER - GHBEERES
before the Group recognises the related revenue (see Note 3(u)). A contract AR ERER (R 3W) - WAEEE
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to FE (G 81 PR 7N 62 [ B 3R A B it BT LKTER AR
receive consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In B BlGHaETSEER - REBERT -
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see Note TEFE Y IB NS R (R 3(K) °
3(k)).
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(m) Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Policy applicable from 1st January 2018 (Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

In the comparative period, contract balances were recorded for contracts at
the net amount of costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses
and progress billings. These net balances were presented as the “Amount
due from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the “Receipts in
advance” (as a liability), as applicable, respectively on a contract-by-contract
basis. Progress billings not yet paid by the customer were included under
"Receipts in advance”.

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending for
customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that
is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 26 for further information about the Group's accounting for
trade receivables and Note 3(I) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—_ZT—\F+_-_A=+—BILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

—e 114

(q) Share capital

(r)

(s)

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly attributable
to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction, net
of tax, from the proceed.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
and other payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the places/
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(s) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the average tax
rates that are expected to apply to the taxable income of the periods in
which the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an estimation of (1)
when the existing temporary differences will reverse and (2) the amount
of future taxable profit in those years. The estimate of future taxable
profit includes:

— income or loss excluding reversals of temporary differences; and

— reversals of existing temporary differences
Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial
guarantee contract

0]

(ii)

(ii)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer (or
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(1) B%F  IREBERMBERELD

(t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial

guarantee contract (Continued)

(iii) Financial guarantee contract (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income
is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
if and when it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will
call upon the Group under the guarantee and the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the current carrying amount i.e.,
the amount initially recognised less accumulated amortisation, where
appropriate.

(u) Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of IT products and contracts for the IT
services.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows a 5-step
process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. ldentifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst the
various performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts collected
on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the
Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised goods
or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition policies

are as follows:

0

(ii)

Sales of goods and rendering of services

Revenue from the sale of goods for a fixed fee is recognised when (or
as) the Group transfers control of the assets to the customer.

For stand-alone sales of goods that are neither customised by the
Group nor subject to significant integration services, control transfers at
the point in time when the customer takes undisputed delivery of the
goods.

When such items are either customised or sold together with significant
integration services, the goods and services represent a single combined
performance obligation over which control is considered to transfer
over time. This is because the combined product is unique to each
customer (has no alternative use) and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for the work completed to date. Revenue for these
performance obligations is recognised over time as the customisation
or integration work is performed, using the cost-to-cost method to
estimate progress towards completion. As costs are generally incurred
uniformly as the work progresses and are considered to be proportionate
to the entity’s performance, the cost-to-cost method provides a faithful
depiction of the transfer of goods and services to the customer.

Installation service

For sales of goods together with installation service, where the
installation is simple and does not include an integration service and
could be performed by another party, such installation is accounted
for as a separate performance obligation. In this case, the transaction
price will be allocated to each performance obligation based on the
stand-alone selling prices. Where these are not directly observable,
they are estimated based on expected cost plus margin. For sales of
goods, control transfers at the point in time when the customer takes
undisputed delivery of the goods. Where the installation is complex
and goods or services are highly interdependent or interrelated (i.e. the
sales of goods are significantly affected by the successful installation
services in the contract), the installation and goods or services are not
separately identifiable and revenue is recognised upon completion of
the installation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(i) Maintenance service

The Group enters into fixed price maintenance contracts with its
customers. Customers are required to pay in advance and the relevant
payment due dates are specified in each contract. Revenue is recognised
over time based on the maintenance service period.

(iv) Rental income

Rental income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

(v) Finance income

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as interest income
over the period of the lease so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of return of the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period.

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all
qualifying employees. The MPF Scheme is established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group’s contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit
plans.

In addition, the Group offers a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under section 401(k) of the Inland Revenue Code of the United States
for substantially all of its United States based employees who are eligible
to participate in. The scheme is a qualified profit-sharing plan that allows
employees to contribute a portion of their wages to individual accounts up
to 60% of their eligible compensation, subject to the maximum allowed by
Internal Revenue Service. The Group is not required to make contributions
to the plan but can make discretionary contributions.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5B Z 5B BR A 7

(u) WEER (@)

(v)

(i) (REHRT

AEEHEEEEITETERRESH -
BEEFRANR  MESEAGLFTHETE

HENHREER - WARRRERSH
Bafs e i i R

(iv) Hz WA

B W AZEREMAERERGE R
R AR

() BEHERA

BREMEWRAR 2P RAZEHER
BMBWA - UL EGFFERREF
#h 2 FHEIRE MO R ARBHER -

(vi) FLEHA

FBU AR AR SR THER ©
EAREREA
AEBEMESERES LN —THRRESH
gl [ (aEesEl]) REMRERFTE -
BREEFE IR ST TFE+—BREM
HERBESIEHIRL - |EIREEEAT S
ZR—EDLEE  WRRERESHEIZ
HABSMERGE BRRTHR - 8fES
Rk EMR TR E 2 EERETAL
FlzEeREFE  BAKEEESFATR - &
EEMRES T B R E MR ERF R B
% R HERESME °

LA - AR EIRSE BKE#E DS 401(K) 5
REBARID A ERSEINEEERNE
SREFEHFTRNENE - &t ERE
BRuENDZE - AFHERRESERIE
B 5% % 60% 2 3 & tb Pl R B A R P A 1T
B ZERBEEEBRBERIAE - K&
B AR ZET IR AT BB R -

119 &——



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VAN
7 N =]

B RS Rk Byt

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—_ZT—\F+_-_A=+—BILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

(x)

(y)

— 120

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned on the
temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are complete.

Share-based payment

The fair value of services received were determined by reference to the fair
value of shares and share options granted at the grant date and expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the shares and share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).

At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
shares and share options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share-based payment reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
After vesting date, when the shares or share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Annual Report 2018 & %R

3. TEEFHE®

(w) fEERA

(x)

(y)

SR  EEREEECMNAEREEMEL
ZEERA (MR EFRERE 2 ERRER
B2 EARERA)  RERRERBEER
ABREEREMBHRNERES - RERE
EETE T BRI A B ERUE g
HENEE - AEBEKRARELRH

BEEELMRY  BERAELERFEER
ABRBERGRHEN S BN ENERTIE
ETE - EERATBRREAMERAERE
ERAZED - EREEREERARRTE
R HEm s BUENBARD EFBTIE
TERE - (EERAAF ERTER -

R RER 2 7R

FrEW RS 2 A A BETISERE N B M
Rk RBEREZ AR BEMEE - LE
BERFBIRSHE - RWR L 2B kB
BeresIBNER g - RIR R B EIEBGTEE © I
WA s ET AN FE BN (AR (D R 2R S )
1) e

REHRE - AREETEEBHERRE
&2 Bt MBS B 2 fhat - BETEER
PR (A ZHERGRRRARMER - I
HABD BEM A FHEIEHEERE -

BRI TR - BENBAERAT R
ZHREBEEERMAEER - ERBREZ
B SR AR R H AR BOR S E R
HEIARTTEE - BB ER ARG RAERE ST
FEEERZ RSB ERE RN -

HE

A REEEHR AR HFRK— RIS
FHARNZFREERIEERZHEER
BTESF AR L FAHE - DAMRERA FREk— &3
N AZBALRBEREE—HEE-F
RAEE TEDAHEZ AL N EEANR &
X - MAwZ AL R LREEHENER
iz



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I ERARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(y) Leases (Continued)

0]

(ir)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property is classified as investment
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a finance
lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term except where the
property is classified as an investment property.

(iii) Assets leased out under finance leases as the lessor

When assets are leased out under finance leases, the risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred out to customers. When assets are leased
out under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments is
recognised as a receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)

(z) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in the year
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or

directors, where appropriate.

(aa)Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

—N\F+tZRA=+—HLLFE

3. TEETEHE®

(z2) REDIK

AR B BERIRS 2 B8
= (ER) #E RN BE 2 FEAEAEE
RARBZHBHRTERSELE

IR RAPERE

(aa) BEAEA L

related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the

Group’s parent.

the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related

to the others);

(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or

an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member);

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(aa)Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

(a);

A person identified in (a)(1) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the
parent of the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's
accounting policies

——e 124

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has

made the following accounting judgements:

0]

(ii)

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Since the initial adoption of HKFRS 9, the provisioning policy for trade
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of the risk of default
and the expected loss rate. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
which include the current creditworthiness, the past collection history,
the realisation of any repayment pattern promised as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of which
are as set out in Note 6(b). As at 31st December 2018, the aggregate
carrying amounts of trade receivables amounted to HK$315,007,000
(net of loss allowance of HK$9,417,000).

Before the adoption of HKFRS 9, the provisioning policy for trade
and other receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of the
collectability of those receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer and the realisation of
any repayment pattern promised. If the financial conditions of these
customers were to deteriorate, additional provision may be required.
As at 31st December 2017, the aggregate carrying amounts of trade
receivables amounted to HK$275,952,000 (net of provision for
impairment of HK$5,685,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which the Group
operates. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
year in which such determination is made.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. E K55 R H B )
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The

resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

0]

(ii)

Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 3(u), the Group
uses the cost-to-cost method to estimate progress towards completion
for revenue recognised over time from sales of goods and services (other
than installation service and maintenance services). The progress is
measured by reference to the actual costs incurred up to the reporting
date as a percentage of total estimated costs of completion. When
the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it will be
probably recoverable.

Valuation of investment properties, land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
values estimated. In making its estimates, the Group considers the
information from the valuations of investment properties and land and
buildings performed by external professional valuers by using the market
comparison approach. The market comparison approach is referenced
to recent sale price of comparable properties on a price per square foot
basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the quality and
floor of the Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales.

Had the Group used different valuation techniques, the fair value of the
investment properties and land and buildings would be different and
thus may have an impact to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At 31st December 2018, the carrying amount of the Group’s land
and buildings and investment properties carried at revalued amount/
fair value were HK$280,700,000 (2017: HK$271,950,000) and
HK$54,000,000 (2017: HK$52,300,000) respectively.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

——0 126

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Estimated impairment of interests in associates

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

The value in use was determined based on the estimated present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by i-Sprint
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“i-Sprint Group”), including cash
flows from the operations of i-Sprint Group and estimated terminal
value. Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of i-Sprint
Group is lower than its carrying amount. Hence, an impairment loss
of HK$11,900,000 (2017: HK$4,400,000) on the interests in i-Sprint
Group was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year ended 31st December 2018.

Recognition of share-based compensation expenses

The Company has approved and adopted the subsidiary share option
scheme on 21st December 2018 and share options were granted to the
subsidiary’s management and employees during the year ended 31st
December 2018. The directors, with the assistance of an independent
professional valuer, have used the Binomial Option Pricing Model to
determine the total fair value of the options granted, which is to be
expensed over the vesting period as appropriate. Significant estimate on
assumptions, such as share price volatility and dividend yield, is required
to be made by the directors in applying the Binomial Option Pricing
Model. Details of share-based compensation expenses are set out in
Note 37.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group determined whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis, while for the acquired intangible assets, technical know-
how and customer relationship with finite useful lives, they are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill and the acquired
intangible assets are allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
present value of those cash flows. Details of goodwill and intangibles
assets are set out in Note 21.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE

JU DG EM ENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(vi) Valuation of contingent consideration payable

For acquisitions accounted for under HKFRS 3, future anticipated
payments to vendors in respect of earnouts are based on the
management’s best estimates of future obligations, which are
dependent on future performance of the interests acquired and assume
the operating companies improve profits in line with management’s
estimates and are included in liabilities greater or less than one year as
appropriate. These estimates will likely differ from future actual results
of operations and cash flows, and it is possible that these differences
could be material. Changes to earnouts are recorded in the profit or
loss. Details of contingent consideration payable are set out in Notes
6(d) and 38.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors of the Company prepare the annual budget taking into
account of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed annual budget, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the management of the
Group, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues, bank borrowings and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

As at 31st December 2018, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 39.7% (2017:
44.9%), which was calculated as follows:
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2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHIT

Borrowings B 481,715 492,982
Total equity T AREE 1,212,877 1,097,818
Debt-to-equity ratio BEEAERIL R 39.7% 44.9%

There are no changes on the Group’s approach to capital risk management
during the year.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The

— 128

Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

(a) Market risk

0]

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and United
States dollars (“USD"). Foreign exchange exposure to USD of the Group
will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to peg the HKD to the
USD remains in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations in
exchange rates, and therefore no related hedging financial instrument
was applied during the year ended 31st December 2018 and 2017.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation in relations to variable interest rate on bank balances and
bank borrowings. The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments including bank
balances and bank borrowings, at the reporting date and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the reporting period in the case of instruments that
have floating rates. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31st
December 2018 would decrease/increase by approximately HK$443,000
(2017: decrease/increase by approximately HK$565,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
bank borrowings and bank balances.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. BiiEREE R A REBES
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) B

(b) Credit risk (b) EERBS

Credit risk arises from bank balances and cash, restricted bank deposits,
contract assets and finance lease receivables, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions.

Credit risk was managed on a group basis. The Group’s policy is to deal
only with credit worthy counterparties. Credit terms are granted to new
customers after a credit worthiness assessment by the credit control
department. When considered appropriate, customers may be requested to
provide proof as to their financial position. Where available at reasonable
cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers are obtained and
used. Customers who are not considered creditworthy are required to
pay in advance or on delivery of goods. Payment record of customers is
closely monitored. It is not the Group’s policy to request collateral from its
customers.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating
e external credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to
the debtors’ ability to meet its obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the
debtors;

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the
same debtors;

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of
the debtors, including changes in the payment status of debtors and
changes in the operating results of the debtors.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

—= 130

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring ECL which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
assets using a provisional matrix.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that receivables with credit
terms are made to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and
management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the counterparties.
The credit period granted to the customers and the credit quality of these
customers are assessed, which takes into account their financial position,
past experience and available forward-looking information. Management
considers that the loss allowance inherent in the Group’s outstanding trade
receivables within one year and contract assets are not significant while loss
allowance was made in full on the Group’s outstanding trade receivables
over one year.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates
for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

ECL loss rates are based on past actual loss experience. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. BiiEREE R A REBES
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) B

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) SERR (&)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of trade receivables was assessed based on the incurred loss
model. Individual receivables which were known to be uncollectible were
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. The other receivables
were assessed collectively to determine whether there was objective
evidence that an impairment had been incurred but not yet been identified.
For these receivables the estimated impairment losses were recognised in a
separate provision for impairment.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation to trade
receivables and contract assets with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The Group applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime ECL for
finance lease receivables that results from transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

For other receivables and deposits, management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records, past experience and
available forward-looking information. Management believes that the credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding other receivable balance is not
significant. Besides, management is of opinion that there is no significant
increase in credit risk on these other receivables and deposits since initial
recognition as the risk of default is low after considering the factors above.

While restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the Group only places deposits
in reputable banks and financial institutions, the identified impairment loss
was immaterial.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk
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Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board,
which has built a liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’'s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The Group relies on its operating cash flows as a
significant source of liquidity.

The table below shows the Group’s financial liabilities analysing into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.
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On demand Over 1 year
or within  but within
1 year PACELS Carrying
BRERY HBE—F Total amount
R—FR ERWER st BREE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET THET FHET
At 31st December 2018 R=ZB-N\F+=HA=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities HFTETASRBE
Trade payables ERTE 558 258,940 - 258,940 258,940
Other payables and accruals HAhFETFIE R ERHE A 139,415 - 139,415 139,415
Borrowings &
— Bank borrowings (Note (i)) — BRITEE (P () 224,290 - 224,290 224,290
— Convertible bonds — AR 25 - 273,182 273,182 257,425
Contingent consideration payable FERTSARE
(Note (ii)) (B & (i) 70,483 - 70,483 69,565
693,128 273,182 966,310 949,635
At 31st December 2017 RZZE—+tF+-A=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities HTETASHMEE
Trade payables FERTE 5538 175,802 - 175,802 175,802
Other payables and accruals HAhFEATFIE R EFHE A 153,904 - 153,904 153,904
Borrowings BE
— Bank borrowings (Note (i)) - IRITEE (B () 247,800 - 247,800 247,800
— Convertible bonds - AR ESH - 273,182 273,182 245,182
Contingent consideration payable FERTSKARE
(Note (ii)) (BI=E (i) 70,346 70,346 140,692 136,691
647,852 343,528 991,380 959,379
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE

6. MBEREERER QX AEEG

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Notes:

@

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on
demand or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31st
December 2018, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of such bank
borrowings amounted to HK$224,290,000 (2017: HK$247,800,000). Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the banking facilities.

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank borrowings with
repayment on demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set out
in the bank facilities. The amounts include interest payment computed using
contractual rates.

=
B (&)

(o) mBMERPE (#)
Bt -

0]

B 75 2 22 SR R (AR D SR 1T 18 SR AE _E 3 B ER
BAET A [BEIRERKRR —F A | HEE %
BRN - RZZE—N\F+-A=+—H %=
FITERMARMIBA S 4L A 224,290,000 %
JL(=Z—t4 : 247,800,000787T) - EEE
AEEBNF BRI - ARREZHERTR
A BEATIE RIS KA ER - NARIES
s ZERTERABBERITREZEE
A AT TR B HIE R -

TS SR 4 B SR B IR (R RT B R
RIRTT R AT 15 YR SRR RO E H 15
RAMN - ZESHBERABEOFIRAED

FIBHEK -

On demand Over 1 year
or within but within
1 year 2 years Over

BRERR BiB—F 2 years Total

R—FR BRRER BEWE by

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FEx FEx FExT

At 31st December 2018 R=Z-NF+=A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITIEE 132,676 100,663 - 233,339
At 31st December 2017 R=ZE—tF+=A=+—H

Bank borrowings RITIEE 33,808 131,004 100,518 265,330
Depending on the upcoming financial performance of Grid Dynamics (i) 48 - Grid Dynamics International, Inc & % K}
International, Inc and its subsidiaries (the “Grid Dynamics Group”), the contingent J& 2 7] ([ Grid Dynamics % B |) # 2 #) B1 7
consideration payable for this acquisition may range from nil to USD18,000,000. KAME  RERENENKARENTE
As at 31st December 2018, financial liabilities of approximately USD8,883,000 %£18,000,000%( 7t R=ZZE—\F+=A
(equivalent to approximately HK$69,565,000) (2017: USD 17,488,000 (equivalent =+—H ' ERGRAEVBHRARATESSK
to approximately HK$136,691,000)) was recognised in the consolidated statement AREA R BERER LA E4 8,883,000
of financial position for the fair value of the contingent consideration payable. The Zt (FHE R 469,565,000/ 7T) (ZF—+
Group expects to settle this financial liabilities based on the payment schedule as 4 : 17,488,000 7T (18 E 7 49 136,691,000
specified in the corresponding sales and purchase agreement within one year (2017: BIT)) c AR EEHIREREEHRIEE L
ranging from one to two years.) NREBR—FRN(ZE—+F : BH—ZEW

F)EEHeRmEE -
(d) Fair value measurement (d) AREEE

Financial instruments and non-financial assets measured at fair value

in the consolidated statement of financial position are categorised into
the three level fair value hierarchies as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair Value
Measurement”:

Level 1: Fair value measured only using level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement dates.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB R & E R AR
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE —T—\F+_A=+—HILtFE

6.

——o 134

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

e Level 2: Fair value measured using level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet with Level 1, and not using unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available.

e Level 3: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

6. BEREER QX AEEG

=
==4¢)
(d) 2REEFE®)

e FE:UE_EBMABEAEZARE
B BEBAEZAIBRETRINE—
B#AE  EBEHAELMERTAE
RZEE - TABRE 2B ABRILED
BEEAE2EZHAE

o FZ[E: ERATAEEEBFEEERRA
BEUATEZAREE -

() zHEEREHREZALEE

At 31st December 2018
R=ZB-N\FE+=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B =B B=E st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FTEx Tz TExT FTEx
Recurring fair value measurement &¥E M A A EEH 2
Financial asset at FVOCI RAABEEEBHEMEE
WEHFRNERMEE
Equity investment (Note 23) IR & (It 23) - 598 - 598
Financial liability at fair value RAABEZEBERIIRN
through profit or loss tHasE
Contingent consideration payable ~ FEffEiAR(E
(Note 38) (Pff=E 38) - - 69,565 69,565

Recurring fair value measurement && M A R EETE

Financial liability at fair value RAARBEEBERIIRN
through profit or loss THaE
Contingent consideration payable — FEfFEkAR(E
(Note 38) (PtE38)

At 31st December 2017
R-ZE—+F+—A=+—H
Level 2
E_E
HK$'000
FHET

Total
HRET
HK$'000
FHT

Level 3
HEE
HK$'000
FHT

Level 1

£—E
HK$'000
TATT

136,691 136,691

The fair value of equity investment is determined by using the adjusted
net assets value method. The effects of unobservable inputs are not
significant for equity investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HZ=ZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

The valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs of the fair
value of contingent consideration payable are as follows:

Significant

Valuation technique

RERR

unobservable inputs

EXTUBEGARE

Probability-weighted Probability of achieving the projected

payout approach revenue and profit before tax of

TR A S 50K Grid Dynamics Group for the year
ending 31st March 2019

REBEE-_T-NF=A=1+—HILEE
# % Grid Dynamics & B 785K A K&

R BTS2 A A OB =R

Discount rate

RS

The reconciliation of the carrying amount of the Group’s contingent
consideration payable classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
is as follows:

R PSRRI

—NF+ZA=+—HILLFE

6. UK EEEER X AEBER

- {C)
(d)

D[ABETE@
() EBEEREHEEZ AL EEE)

ERSAREAAREENGEEIRARE
ERUBRGABENT ¢

Sensitivity relationship
of unobservable inputs to fair value

TABRRAMBRA AEEZRRERR

The higher of the probability, the higher
of the fair value, and vice versa

RS - AR EELS K2R

The higher of the discount rate,
the lower of the fair value, and vice versa

HHEEYR  AREBEYE  RZTA
RARBERBRE=ZEADENTES

FENRAREREELRDT

Contingent
consideration
payable
EBARARE
HK$°000
FHER
At 1st January 2017 R=ZF—+F—HA—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38) W aET B A =] (FizE38) 132,670
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss RERERN AR EEED 3,221
Exchange difference EHER 800
At 31st December 2017 and 1st January 2018 R=F—tF+=-A=+—HR=Z—\F—H—H 136,691
Payment of contingent consideration S SRARE (70,623)
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss RIEEERN AR EEEE 3,093
Exchange difference EHER 404
At 31st December 2018 R=ZE-—\F+=A=t—H 69,565
During the year ended 31st December 2018, there were no transfers REZEZ /\¢+ A=+—HItF
between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2017: Nil). g ”*—Ig —ERE=EENE
HE (= t$ ) o
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial EERRNGEMBRAERA - Hihe

assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE —T—\F+_A=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(if) Fair value of non-financial assets

The following table presents the Group’s properties measured at fair
value on a recurring basis categorised into the three level fair value
hierarchies:

Recurring fair value measurement && M A R EEE

HK$'000

6. AMREER N AEBES
=@
(d) 2REEE@®E)
(i) HEBEERAEE

TREJNAEEREEEEEUARAE
ErtE2ME  BERAAEBEN=E
=N

At 31st December 2018

R=ZB-N\F+=A=+—H

Total
et
HK$'000
FHET

Level 3
£=E
HK$'000
THET

Level 2
F=E
HK$'000
FHExT

Level 1

F—E

Investment properties (Note 20) &Y% (5 20) - - 54,000 54,000
Land and buildings (Note 19) +3h AT (K 19) - - 280,700 280,700
- - 334,700 334,700

At 31st December 2017
R=2—tF+=A=+—H
Level 2
-
HK$'000
FHEIT

Total
st
HK$'000
FHT

Level 3
=B
HK$’'000
FHT

Level 1

£
HK$'000
TATT

Recurring fair value measurement & EMH AR EETE

Investment properties (Note 20) &Y% (FI5E20) = = 52,300 52,300

Land and buildings (Note 19) 43 R8T (K 19) - = 271,950 271,950
- - 324,250 324,250

The Group's investment properties and land and buildings were stated at
valuations made at 31st December 2018 and 2017 by an independent
professional valuer at market value basis which is determined by
reference to market evidence of recent transactions for similar
properties.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuation performed by the
independent valuer for the financial reporting purposes. Discussion of
valuation processes and results are held at least once every year, which
is in line with the Group’s annual reporting date.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d)

(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

The valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs of the fair
value of investment properties and land and buildings are as follows:—

Valuation techniques

HEERR

6. MBEREERER QX AEEG

=
B (&)

AREEE@E)

(i) FEREELEE(F)

REMER L FBFRABENMGE
FTHEREETAERRABIENT

Unobservable input

TAIBER AHE

Investment properties Market comparison approach
- Hong Kong
REME
- &

M5 LLEYE BTEAETE

Land and buildings
— Hong Kong
T REF
- &8

Market comparison approach

ML EOA BFEEE

The fair value of investment properties and land and buildings located
in Hong Kong is determined using market comparison approach by
reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on a price per
square foot basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
quality and floor of the Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales.
Higher premium for higher quality buildings will result in a higher fair
value measurement.

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the Group’s investment
properties and land and buildings classified within level 3 of the fair

value hierarchy is as follows:

Discount on quality of the buildings

Discount on quality of the buildings

0% to 15%

0% %= 15%

0% to 15%

0% £ 15%

UNEEZREMER L EEBFZA
REBEDERMSLEEZLE ARG
R BME ST R Z HEER
BEE Wi AEENEE SN -
SEENENEER=HE  WrAELE
BENAAEBERNE -

RARBEERE=ERSENAEE
RE W N L i 8 F AR TE (B %1 BR 40
T

Investment Land and

properties buildings Total

REWHE T REF st

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TET TET

At 1st January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H 50,600 262,500 313,100
Depreciation charge ek - (8,606) (8,606)
Fair value gain AR EERE 1,700 - 1,700
Revaluation surplus EhAH - 18,056 18,056
At 31st December 2017 R_ZE—+F+-A=+—H 52,300 271,950 324,250
At 1st January 2018 R=ZTE—N\FE—H—H 52,300 271,950 324,250
Depreciation charge FrEMR - (9,219) (9,219)
Fair value gain R EEKE 1,700 - 1,700
Revaluation surplus EHAR - 17,969 17,969
At 31st December 2018 RZZB—\F+=-A=+—H 54,000 280,700 334,700
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6.

7.

——= 138

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(if)  Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

Fair value gain of investment properties is recognised under line item “fair
value gain on revaluation of investment properties” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Revaluation surplus of land and buildings are recognised under line
item “revaluation surplus of land and buildings” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, there were no transfers
between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2017: Nil).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue is analysed as follows:

6. BERERER LD

R~ S EER
- {C)
(d) AAMEE ()

(i) HBREERS HE ()

REMEN R A BERSENGAERR
ENTEGEREMEZ AR BER: ]

T8 B AR RER
THREF 2 EHBHBREE 2 ERE
FREN[THREFEHRERIBASR
TR o

REEZ —A¢+:HE+—H¢¢
B F—E F_EBRF-EZEITE
EE (=T — t¢ 7)o

7. BARDEHBER

REBHWADHTIT

2018 2017

=E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FAxT

Sales of goods HEEm 818,641 743,382
Revenue from service contracts RERBE L ZIA 1,525,816 1,174,071
2,344,457 1,917,453

The Board has been identified as the chief operating decision maker. The Board
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess the performance and
allocate resources. The Board has determined the operating segments based on
the Group’s internal reporting.

The Group is currently organised into two (2017: two) operating divisions —
Information Technology Products (“IT Products”) and Information Technology
Services (“IT Services”). These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information to the chief operating decision maker. The
business nature of each segment is disclosed as follows:

IT Products

Being the business of information technology in supplying of information
technology and associated products.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems integration,
software and consulting services, engineering support for products and solutions
and managed services.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R D EEER @

(Continued)
Segment information about these businesses is presented below: REEB 2 DEERZTAT ¢
Year ended 31st December 2018 BE-E-\F+-A=1t—-HLFE
IT Products IT Services Total
EMBRER BB RS et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FET
Revenue from external customers REINDE 2 A 818,641 1,525,816 2,344,457
Intersegment revenue D EPFEUHA 5,699 27,890 33,589
Segment revenue AEUA 824,340 1,553,706 2,378,046
Reportable segment profit Al BB A 67,332 311,461 378,793
Reportable segment assets ARESHEE 323,664 1,372,065 1,695,729
Reportable segment liabilities ARENHEE 263,940 204,845 468,785
Segment depreciation DEITE 2,245 14,239 16,484
Segment amortisation B EESH - 11,057 11,057
Additions to property, NEWE
plant and equipment BB k&t 59 14,662 14,721
Additions to intangible assets AREETEAE - 9,582 9,582
Year ended 31st December 2017 HE-ZT—+tF+-A=1T—HBItFE
IT Products IT Services Total
BB E BB RS #eEt
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHAIT FHT FHT
Revenue from external customers FEIMNBER ZUA 743,382 1,174,071 1,917,453
Intersegment revenue 2 EBREIUA 6,847 26,815 33,662
Segment revenue AEBUA 750,229 1,200,886 1,951,115
Reportable segment profit AR 5 3 A 57,532 186,795 244,327
Reportable segment assets ARESHEE 220,038 1,318,279 1,538,317
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE 184,594 206,377 390,971
Segment depreciation DEITE 3,037 14,660 17,697
Segment amortisation 7 EREESH = 7,304 7,304
Additions to property, NEWE -
plant and equipment BB K& 50 9,586 9,636
Additions to intangible assets BRI AE - 57 57
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HHE T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R D EER @)

(Continued)

(a) B BEFFBE

(a) Segment accounting policies

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3(d). Performance is measured
based on segment profit that is used by the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance. Income tax expense is not allocated to reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated
based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segment profit is profit before income tax, excluding unallocated
other income, unallocated other loss, net, share of results of associates,
unallocated depreciation for property, plant and equipment that are used for
all segments, fair value gain on revaluation of investment properties, finance
costs and unallocated corporate expenses (mainly include staff costs and
other general administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates, deferred income
tax assets, tax recoverable, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and
cash and unallocated corporate assets (mainly include property, plant
and equipment and investment properties that are used by all segments,
prepayments, deposits, other receivables and equity investment).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax liabilities, deferred
income tax liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly include
accrued charges of the head office and borrowings).

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,

profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are
reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

AR E 2 BPATER A By & BT IR SR TS B M 5E 3(d)
Pt A5 By &5 BERARR - RIIRIEE
BRERRERNDEER KD AIRR

D EENFE - TR T TEDEER

HiEHH -

REBMWA - 855 - BERBETDESE
PV RTEEEDRL

AR E ) BRROE N BRI ATER -
FEARDEEAMBA - KD EEEW&@E&'TE - JE
HE R R RRA  RAA S EMER 2!
BE MR RIBNE - EfREMEZ
@ﬁf’fﬁﬂ&lm - BTSRRI ERR 2 R

AR (EEBHEE ITRAREM K
ﬁftk;%'ﬁﬁﬁ) @

ﬂiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁ??\@%ﬁ#%@ At R
EFSHEE » AIRERIR - ZREERTTF
B RTEREBREERARDRAREE (£
ERFEMED LR ZYE - BE RRENA
REBEEWE - BNRE - & - EtEER
BN R E) o

Tiﬁ%ﬁj‘ﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬁT@ﬁEﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ SHAE -
BERSHABRASEARAB(ZER
ERMER BT ER &%E) @

(b) AIHE 2T BBA - Bt - BER

B ENEIR

AEZDHRA - B  BERABER
SEHEERBEERBEEYROT

follows:

Revenue 2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Reportable segment revenue AIFRE D HUA 2,378,046 1,951,115
Elimination of intersegment revenue #iEH 7 BPEUA (33,589) (33,662)

Revenue per consolidated statement of REREBRERIHR
profit or loss HIA 2,344,457 1,917,453
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R D EEER @

(Continued)

(b) AIHEZDEBBA - B - EER
BENYHER®)

7 BB PR AR AR A DO R R 4B ©

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Intersegment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage of profit mark-

up.
Profit or loss 2018 2017
—E-N\F =5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
Reportable segment profit Al$RE 9 EDm 378,793 244,327
Unallocated amounts: ROBLHKIE
Unallocated other income RO BLE AW 7,349 4,008
Unallocated other loss, net RO BLE M FEIE (15,686) (8,216)
Fair value gain on revaluation of BHEEMEZ
investment properties A EERE 1,700 1,700
Unallocated depreciation KOFITE (4,422) (3,067)
Share of results of associates JE(RERE DRI ZEE (5,428) (7,111)
Finance costs R IR (22,726) (17,205)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBARIFS (212,245) (144,688)
Profit before income tax per consolidated RERE BmERYIHRE
statement of profit or loss R PAS Bt A A 127,335 69,748

2018 2017

=t - Tt

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

Reportable segment assets ARESHEE 1,695,729 1,538,317

Unallocated assets: ROBAE :

Interests in associates /NS 27,662 46,948

Deferred income tax assets RIEPTISHE EE 5,384 4,017

Tax recoverable CIEEEzE 3,588 41,334

Restricted bank deposits ZRAIRITER 762 4,168

Bank balances and cash RITERER S 292,183 286,771

Unallocated corporate assets ROBARIEE 355,724 343,338
Total assets per consolidated statement RERE BT IS AR RS R

of financial position BERE 2,381,032 2,264,893
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HHE T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R D EER @)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) AIHEZDEWA - B - BER
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BENHERE®
Liabilities 2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE 468,785 390,971
Unallocated liabilities: ROREE :
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFFIS T B & 10,083 6,262
Deferred income tax liabilities BREFTS T B & 76,420 74,723
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEARIAE 612,867 695,119
Total liabilities per consolidated statement — H4RE BFISAR LRSI =R H
of financial position BEEE 1,168,155 1,167,075
The following table sets out information about the geographical segment TREINEEAEEREINDE P 2 WA K
location of the Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-current FRBEE (SR ITAERREMSHEER
assets (other than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets). SN 2B EDE - BP ZMRAIE THE
The geographical location of customers is based on the location at which RAER ARG E HEY 2 FiE - BEH
the services were provided or the goods were delivered. The geographical BERDEEZHRUBEMS W KE
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location BB R EYMETIRIBZEAE 2 B2 Fh
of the asset in the case of property, plant and equipment and investment i - M AERSBABERSEFELZ
properties, the location of the operations to which they are allocated in the FRr et - i Bk & A 7] i 2 Bl H5 H 2 A PR 7E
case of the intangible assets and goodwill, and the location of operations in Hh, o

case of interests in associates.

Place of domicile ] Revenue from external customers  Specified non-current assets
REIMBES ZWA EEERDEE

2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF —Z2-N\fF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET THET FHET
Hong Kong B 1,514,300 1,421,800 342,060 332,603
United States of America (“US”) EFBREE ([£E ) 720,045 411,446 885,091 890,827
Russia Rz HT - - 10,417 4,751
Ukraine S - - 5,331 2,163
Poland R - - 3,808 845
Singapore g - - 26,776 45,660
Mainland China LHETPN 5,622 5,924 312 610
Macau P 37,365 32,441 954 1,367
Thailand =B 48,831 32,249 124 130
Taiwan = 18,294 13,593 29 169
Serbia ERgED - - 481 =
2,344,457 1,917,453 1,275,383 1,279,125
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R D EEER @

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) AIHE 2D EWA - B - BER
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BENHER )
Information about major customers FTEEFPREH
The Group has a large number of customers, no revenue from any individual rEEHRAEAERR  HE-T—)\FR=
customer exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue during the years ended T—tF+-A=T—HLFE  BHEX
31st December 2018 and 2017. B EREA TP WA & E AR
10% °
(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () REEFEHNZBADE
customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time AEER—BRRESNE —RREMEBRERSK
and at a point in time, details of the Group’s timing of revenue recognition RIGASTERA - REBHEZE=T—/\F
during the year ended 31st December 2018 were as follows: T2 A=+ —BIEFEZWRARERER W
T~
Total
#st
HK$'000
FExT
2018
Timing of revenue recognition  Yg ARERRS 5
At a point in time F—ErrEE 1,677,528
Over time —ER B 666,929
Revenue from external REINDE P 2 WA
customers 2,344,457
Revenue relates to performance obligation that are unsatisfied as at 31st RZZE-—NFT+_A=T—HE@ERTHE
December 2018 amounted to HK$1,128,248,000 are expected to be HFEFEZ WA E1,128,248,000 % T T &
recognised with one to five years. R—ERFAER
8. OTHER INCOME 8. EAthlx A
2018 2017
—E-N\E 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TP
Interest on bank deposits BITIF R E 785 137
Rental income from investment RETEMHE 2
properties (Note 20) e A (FF7E20) 3,708 3,651
Rental income from sublease REEHE 2B HA 366 326
Waiver of consideration payable HMEEMNANRE 2,355 -
Others Hih 765 1,572
7,979 5,686
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9. OTHER LOSS, NET

bR B 18

2018 2017

SRR

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWIE - BE K&k #E 2 &8 (22) (800)
Changes in fair value on contingent ERSAREN AR EEED

consideration payable (Note 38) (Pt 38) (3,093) (3,221)

Provision for customers’ claim BERERE - (3,642)

Impairment loss recognised on interests B N Bl R R (B BT 1R

in associates (Note 22) (Fff&E22) (11,900) (4,400)

Exchange (loss)/gain, net [E X (&518) /W 2 FE (671) 3,847

(15,686) (8,216)

10. FINANCE INCOME

Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon initial

recognition of finance lease receivables to their fair values.

11.FINANCE COSTS

10. B B WL A

MIBRAIEI AR
FRIRTR HER HORE TR L HN

1. BT R B2

2018
—E-N\E

HK$'000
FET

REEEIELREES

2017
—ZT—t5F
HK$'000
T

Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFS 10,436 7,284

Interest on liability component of AR ESBERD
convertible bonds 2B 12,243 9,910
Other interest expenses EAbFI 2T 47 11
22,726 17,205
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12.PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration:
Audit services
— Current year
— (Over)/underprovision in respect of prior year
Non-audit services
Bad debt expenses
Depreciation and amortisation:
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 19)
— Intangible assets (included in cost of services
rendered) (Note 21)
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14)
Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’
emoluments) (Note 13)
Transaction costs for acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 38)
Operating lease rentals in respect of:
— Office premises and staff quarter
— Computer equipment
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(Note 26)
Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables (Note 26)
Provision for impairment of other receivables
Provision for obsolete inventories, net
Write off of inventories
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ZEEME S -

ZH RS

- AFE

- BAFE (RERE) BETR
IR BN ARTS
SRR R
T S

- W% - BB Rk (FieE19)
- B A E (BEERERIE ZKA)
(MfaE21)

BEME (HizE14)
EEEABAZ (TRIEESHE)
(P7E13)

WEE B A RIHR S
(P 38)

RETHERS
-WAEMEREIES

- ERERE

U B 5 SRIER B B
(MF7E26)
FEWE S50 2 R ERERE
(Ff7E 26)

H U R IE 2 R E RS
MREFEREFE

12. BRFr S B AT

BRPAASTUADE A T AEHRR, (REA) THIEIA -

2018
—B-NF

HK$'000

FExT

3,280

(120)
1,922
14

20,906

11,057
8,823

932,726

32,585
463

4,254

(289)
832
43
98

2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
FHT

3,212
113
1,253

20,764

7,304
7,907

717,519

9,025

19,970
426

541

(107)

78

13.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

BEEEIRAXX(TEBEES
<)

2018 2017

—g-N\F | T tF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FHBxT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 810,898 645,261
Performance related incentive bonus FRIRA M2 RENIEAL 89,171 57,937
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR D AERE S 2 X 21,544 3,214
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIREHFTEIE R 11,113 11,107
932,726 717,519
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE —T—\F+_A=+—HILtFE
14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS BEEME
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of RIE_ETARR - FBCRFHESINEE 383 (1) 1EA
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure RAAR (HERESZRmER) A HIE 2 BRER
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: FEZMeWT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Fees e 596 543
Other emoluments: Hibfig -
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 3,092 2,851
Performance related incentive bonus FIBHRE 2 HEITEAL 3,596 3,428
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RONERFTEI 50 - =
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR (D B S 2 s 1,539 1,085
8,823 7,907
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2017: eight) directors AARBENIENEA(ZZ—+F : \f)ES
were as follows: 2 N

Year ended 31st December 2018
BZ-Z-\E+-A=1t-HLFE

Performance
related Equity-settled
incentive  Retirement share-based
Salaries bonus benefit payment
and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits ~ &REEZ contributions D3
Fees ek RETA BAER RERXM Total
Name of director ik HitgH (GiET)) SRR ZHX “m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET BT BT TERT TET
Executive directors HITES
Wang Weihang T#fm 55 - - - - 55
Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer) T2 ({7HH) - 2,612 3,596 - 1,275 7,483
Non-executive directors FHTES
Li Wei (Chairman) FR(ER) 7 480 - - 132 689
Cui Yong 35 55 - - - 132 187
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Pan Xinrong BRE 134 - - - - 134
Deng Jianxin Life 154 - - - - 154
Or Siu Ching Rerina (Note b) fi/)\& (i) 121 - - - - 121
596 3,092 3,596 - 1,539 8,823
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14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) BVEENE

Year ended 31st December 2017
HE_Z—+t&+-A=t—HItFE

Performance
related Equity-settled
incentive Retirement ~ share-based
Salaries bonus benefit payment
and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits ~ &EEBZ  contributions PARRED
Fees Hek SEENEAL RGN  REESA Total
Name of director A H e Hiia7 (FizEa) AR ZRx Bz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THET THET THET THET THET
Executive directors HITES
Wang Weihang T 55 - - - - 55
Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)  EBE5 (7B &) = 2371 3,428 = 691 6,490
Non-executive directors FHTES
Li Wei (Chairman) FE(EE) 77 480 - - 197 754
Cui Yong BB 55 = = = 197 252
Independent non-executive directors B FHITES
Pan Xinrong BN 121 - - - - 121
Deng Jianxin oo 134 - - - - 134
Or Siu Ching Rerina (Note b) fi/)\E (i) 68 - - - - 68
Ye Fang (Note ¢ 5 (Mo 3 = = - - 33
543 2,851 3,428 - 1,085 7,907
Notes: Fff%E
(@)  The performance related incentive bonus are determined as a percentage of profit for (@) RRAEMZEBTEADERASEFERNZED
the year of the Group. LLETE -
(b) Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of (b) FNEZTEZERARRBIIENTES &
the Company with effect from 1st April 2017. —T—tFNA—BRER
() Ms. Ye Fang resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company with 0 EFZIBAEARRBIUIBNTEST B=F
effect from 1st April 2017. —tFMA—HEBER -
During the year ended 31st December 2018, no remuneration has been paid by HE-_ZT—\E+_A=1t—HILFE  A&H
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group WERAFESMAREEMZ N ZME - WEH
and no directors have waived any remuneration (2017: Nil). EEREEAME (2T —tF &) -
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15.FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS B.EEREHZES

EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included one (2017:
one) director, details of whose emoluments are set out in Note 14 above. The

FALERSHLEERFE B (ZF—tF:
—R)EF REZMSFBER LM 145
B SRERIE(ZT—1F : OF) 2&SHF
BEZMEFHBNT

emoluments of the remaining four (2017: four) highest paid individuals for the

year were as follows:

2018 2017

—B-N\F —T—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

Salaries and other benefits Fre REMET 4,802 5,018
Performance related incentive bonus FIRE 2 BEEAL 13,245 8,587
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIREFIFTEI R 177 175
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses AR D RERE SN 2 A 502 889
18,726 14,669

BEZMENFTIIEE

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Number of individuals

BAH

2018

——0 148

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000

2,000,001 %7 % 2,500,000 87T
2,500,001 #7T % 3,000,000 47T
3,500,001 #7T % 4,000,000 47T
4,000,001 77T 2 4,500,000 7T
4,500,001 # 7% 5,000,000 47T
5,500,001 7 7T % 6,000,000 7 7T
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16. FT 5B <

16.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2018 2017
—EBE-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Current taxation: BNEARIR -
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH 14,123 10,316
Overseas taxation BN 32,538 19,260
(Over)/Under-provision in respect of prior years:  s8{E4FfE (FBEARME) /BB
Hong Kong profits tax BBNEH (829) 109
Overseas taxation THNRIE (149) 110
45,683 29,795
Deferred taxation (Note 36): EIERTE (FI7E36)
Current year REE (2,681) 2,802
Effect of change in US tax rate ERB R 2 e - (15,428)
(2,681) (12,626)
Income tax expense FriS itz 43,002 17,169

On 21st March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-
tiered profits tax rate regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28th March 2018
and was gazetted on the following day.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
qualifying entities will be taxed at 8.25%, and the profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at 16.5%. For the year ended 31st
December 2018, Hong Kong profits tax of Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime.

For the year ended 31st December 2017, Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated
at a flat rate of 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB R & E R AR

R-ZE-\F=ZA=—1—H BBELEZBET
ZEEFERBUSRINE 75) REIE 5 ([ 5
ER]) ZEPIERSIAT MRS SR
B - ERN - N\F=ZA_T N\BEELS
ER WX AERBRTIE

BEFAHFIEBBESE - A EREEERY
&2 F M T I 8.25% MBt - TABB2
TR FIBVEIR 16.5% Bt o 74 MRS
RIS BBk I 0 B ARG 812 16.5% KV E
EHEMH - HE-F—\F+-A=t+-AL
F - AAAN—FHBATNEBER(BE)E
RA L2 ARG HE R ERBHIFIEBRR )
R -
HE-T—tF+-F=+—BILFE B
(BB (3 AR B R 2 BB 16.5%
& o
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16.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

——= 150

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits

of the consolidated entities as follows:

16. TEFRHEX @

AERERRPAIS T ADE A 2 BRI RER RN & 5
EREMZIMEFARE G 2 EReEIER
LN

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Profit before income tax bR PS8 Al g A 127,335 69,748
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% REBFEHHEER165% T E2HE
(2017: 16.5%) (ZFB—+t%F :16.5%) 21,010 11,508
Tax effects of: TR -
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose TERL TS 5 BN AT R 2 H 13,169 9,914
Income not taxable for tax purpose TER T 7 E SRR 2 WA (841) (1,748)
Effect of different tax rates of overseas operations Z/&/NEEATER 2 TR R 2 & 13,095 7,857
Tax losses not recognised REERR < T IEE 1R 391 3,370
(Over)/Under-provision in prior years BEFE (HBEEE) BETR (978) 219
Effect of two-tiered profits tax rate regime MARGIRST R R G E 2 2 (165) -
Others Efth (2,679) 1,477
43,002 32,597
Re-measurement of deferred income tax BHEEETERGE D
due to change in US tax rate (Note) IRIERIE (FI7E) - (15,428)
Income tax expense FriSfiA s 43,002 17,169

Note:

Following the enactment of the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act on 22nd December 2017 which
amongst other measures, reduced the US federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to
21%, the Group has re-measured its deferred income tax as at 31st December 2017 and
recognised a reduction of deferred income tax of approximately HK$15,428,000.

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 33.8% (2017: 24.6%).
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17.DIVIDENDS

Dividend approved and paid during the year:
Final dividend in respect of the year ended

31st December 2017 of 1.0 HK cent per share
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17.RE

REFZHAER T RS

HE-ZT—tF+t-A=+—HILFE

Z AR S AR08

2018 2017
—B-NE 5
HK$'000

THT

HK$'000
TExT

6,707 =

Dividends proposed:

Final dividend in respect of the year ended
31st December 2017 of 1.0 HK cent
per share (Note a)

FORARE.
HE-_T—tF+=-A=1+—H
IHEFEZRBRE
& 1.0780L (HizEa)

- 6,705

The directors did not recommend the payment of the final dividend for the year
ended 31st December 2018 (2017: 1.0 HK cent per share).

Note:

(@)  The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2017, as referred to
above, is calculated on the basis of 670,544,804 ordinary shares in issue as at 31st
December 2017 and at a final dividend of 1.0 HK cent per share. The actual amount of
final dividend payable in respect of the year ended 31st December 2017 was subject to
the actual number of ordinary shares in issue on the record date, which was 29th May

2018.

18.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company is based on the following data:

EFYTRBERBE-T—\FTA=T—
AIEERZ RBRE(ZE—£4  SR1.0%
) -

FE -

@ LiBzE=—T—tF+-_A=t+—HIEEZH
EARBARERIER=_Z—t&+=-A=+—HE
472 670,544,804 B I i@ A% R AR 1.08(L 2K
HREAE -HE-ZT—tF+=-A=+—HL
FEZEREMNRPRERIEZCEA BB ET
TERERBEET oA A=-Z—/\Fh
A=+hB-

18. B8R EF

RRAFRATEE NG BRERLESER T T
NIBIERTE

2018 2017
—Z2-N\E —ZE—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings R E GREARZF
per share 2 &7 84,333 52,579
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BN s BT BR R
— Interest on convertible bonds (Note (i) — AT AR B 5 2 F B (3 Giii)) 12,243 9,910
Earnings for the purpose of diluted earnings ARG E SR EE & T
per share 2B 96,576 62,489
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P
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18.EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

——o 152

18.8RER =

Number of shares

R EE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F B —+F
‘000 ‘000
TR FAR
(Restated)
(#sE51)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R EBRERET 2
for the purpose of basic earnings per share LRI T I £
(Note (i) (BEE () 805,004 702,073
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BHpaE s B BR B
— Share options (Note (ii)) — BERRAE (BIEE (i) 2,074 98
— Convertible bonds (Note (iii)) — AIHRRR(E F (B & (i) 274,725 263,014
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RAESRETERT 2
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share TR IR T 2L 1,081,803 965,185
Notes: Fff%E
(i)  The 805,004,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number of () E@AX805,004,000KER =T —/\FFRE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ordinary shares in issue during year 2018 after taking into account the effects of bonus
issue (Note 31(v)) being completed during the year ended 31st December 2018.

The 702,073,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during year 2017 after taking into account the effects of rights
issues (Note 31(ii)) and bonus issue (Note 31(iii)) being completed during the year
ended 31st December 2017 and bonus issue (Note 31(v)) being completed during the
year ended 31st December 2018.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st December
2018 assumed the exercise of the share options of the Company granted in March and
May 2012, March, April and December 2017.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st December
2017 assumed the exercise of the share options of the Company granted in March and
May 2012, but not on the share options granted in March, April and December 2017
which are considered as anti-dilutive as the average market price of the ordinary shares
of the Company is less than the exercise price of these share options.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st December
2018 and 2017 is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company,
adjusted to reflect the interest of the convertible bonds issued by the Company. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of the diluted earnings
per share for the year ended 31st December 2018 and 2017 have taken into account
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed conversion of the convertible bonds into ordinary shares
for the year.

The dilutive effect of the share options granted by the Company’s subsidiary was
insignificant for the year ended 31st December 2018.
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(iii)

(iv)

BT E B AR B thqu&EAESZi_
E—N\F+ZA=+—HIEFEHTARE
3V ZHE -

AR 702,073,000 R RER T —tFFAE

BAOLTRBRNNETHE  YEARRBEE=Z

—t &+ A=+ —AILFEERETHR(H

FE31(i) RBEITAR (I E3GH)) RREBEE=T

—N&+=A1 *Jrf B IEFE FEp B TAL AR (P
31(v) &

HEZ /\$+ A=t+—BLLFEZ58#
%@*‘JE{E"“ ARARZBE——F=AREAR
—E—+E=f HARTZARBZERED
HETTIE
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ST Y
19.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19.903% - BERRZE
Furniture Computer
Land and and and office
buildings fixtures Motor equipment
it HBRK vehicles ERK Total
REgF £E RE WAERE @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THIL
At 1st January 2017 R-Z-t5-A—-A
Cost or valuation A fE 262,500 26,858 1,579 125,115 416,052
Accumulated depreciation ZENE = (21,889) (902) (116,929) (139,720)
Net book amount REFE 262,500 4,969 677 8,186 276,332
Year ended 31st December 2017 BE_Z—tFt-A=1T-HLEE
Opening net hook amount HAAREFE 262,500 4,969 677 8,186 276,332
Additions hE - 569 102 9,932 10,603
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38) NG I L) = 1,239 = 5,643 6,882
Disposals HeE - (829) - (13) (842)
Depreciation and amortisation charge  #7TE& K& # 1k (8,606) (2,041) (285) (9,832) (20,764)
Exchange realignment B H 3% - 34 - 754 788
Revaluation surplus AR 18,056 = = = 18,056
Closing net book amount BRERTE 271,950 3,941 494 14,670 291,055
At 31st December 2017 REB—tF+=A=t-H
Cost or valuation Ak E{E 271,950 28,363 1,961 149,985 452,259
Accumulated depreciation 25hE = (24,422) (1,467) (135,315) (161,204)
Net book amount REFE 271,950 3,941 494 14,670 291,055
Comprising: B
At cost A - 28,363 1,961 149,985 180,309
At valuation e 271,950 - - - 271,950
271,950 28,363 1,961 149,985 452,259
At 1st January 2018 R-B-N\§-A—-H
Cost or valuation A EE 271,950 28,363 1,961 149,985 452,259
Accumulated depreciation 2EtHE - (24,422) (1,467) (135,315) (161,204)
Net book amount HRAFE 271,950 3,941 494 14,670 291,055
Year ended 31st December 2018 BE-E-\¥+-A=1t-HLEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 271,950 3,941 494 14,670 291,055
Additions B - 1,944 119 14,327 16,390
Disposals & - (71) - (O] (75)
Depreciation and amortisation charge ~ #7& #8540k (9,219) (1,719) (362) (9,606) (20,906)
Exchange realignment fEH B - (8) - 70 62
Revaluation surplus BHAE 17,969 - - - 17,969
Closing net book amount BAREETE 280,700 4,087 251 19,457 304,495
At 31st December 2018 RZB-N\E+=A=+—-H
Cost or valuation AR EE 280,700 29,745 1,763 159,742 471,950
Accumulated depreciation 25thE - (25,658) (1,512) (140,285) (167,455)
Net book amount HREFE 280,700 4,087 251 19,457 304,495
Comprising: '
At cost A - 29,745 1,763 159,742 191,250
At valuation 158 280,700 - - - 280,700
280,700 29,745 1,763 159,742 471,950
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19.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

——o 154

The Group’s land and buildings were stated at valuations made at 31st December
2018 and 2017. The land and buildings were last revalued by an independent
professional valuer, at 31st December 2018 and 2017, at market value basis
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent transactions
for similar properties. The revaluation gave rise to a revaluation surplus net
of applicable deferred income taxes of approximately HK$15,004,000 (2017:
HK$15,077,000) which has been credited to the property revaluation reserve.
Details of fair value measurements are set out in Note 6(d).

As at 31st December 2018, if the land and buildings had not been revalued,
they would have been included in these consolidated financial statements at
historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortisation, of approximately
HK$38,034,000 (2017: HK$40,099,000).

Depreciation and amortisation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment have

been charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

19.9% - BERRZRE®

AEB 2 LHEBFIER_F-N\FR_F
—tEFT A=+ RZMHEDER - D RET
RE-ROABYEEHEMR -2 N\FE=Z
—tEFt A=t ARmERERETER
T2EmMS LRBENFEERR S 2 ERERE -
EfENRERECREHEEESHARY
#%15,004,0007 7Tt (==& —+4F : 15,077,000/&
) XERARMEELRFE - AREEFE
FBHNMIE 6(d) ©

RZZE—N\F+-A=+—8  fHEtREFE
WER - HERFELKRA (F05 2198 Ri#H)
#) /538,034,000 7T (= Z —+4F : 40,099,000
BIT) ST ARSI A MHRE ©

REE 2 W - BB R R TE R (AR
BERERPHBRAT

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —T—tF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FExT FHIT

Cost of goods sold and services rendered SHE RIBERE 2 AR 12,710 12,505
Selling expenses HEEM 2,674 2,544
Administrative expenses THEHA 5,522 5,715
20,906 20,764

As at 31st December 2018, the Group had pledged land and buildings with
carrying amount of HK$280,700,000 (2017: HK$271,950,000) to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group as mentioned in Note 45.
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20.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. IREYE
2018 2017
—E-N\E T+t
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET AT
At valuation fH{E
At 1st January W—A—H 52,300 50,600
Fair value gain A EERE 1,700 1,700
At 31st December W+=—A=+—H 54,000 52,300
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated statement of ATEREE RN RE BanRER

profit or loss:

2017
—-n\F | —Tt&

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THIT

Rental income (Note 8) fFASUWA (H7E8) 3,708 3,651

Direct operating expense arising from investment E£EHSWAZ KBV FEFTEE 2

properties that generate rental income HELERY 359 348
The investment properties of the Group were last revalued by an independent AEBE 2 REMERE —REB L EEGHEMP
professional valuer at 31st December 2018 and 2017 at market value basis, B2 )N\EFRZE—+E+_A=1+—HEWE
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent transactions for REEFRTEMN - DREMS EREMETAR
similar properties. Details of fair value measurement are set out in Note 6(d). S ERETE - AnBEFEFIFHNHEE6)
The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable BB AT REH A S A FE Y 2 KRR R R 4858
operating leases are set out in Note 43. HHNHIFESS ©
As at 31st December 2018, the Group had pledged investment properties with AN EASFREL - RZE—N\F+ZA=+—
carrying amount of HK$54,000,000 (2017: HK$52,300,000) to secure banking B AEERAE$ 54,000,000 T (ZE—+
facilities granted to the Group as mentioned in Note 45. £ : 52,300,000 7T) ZIREMED THEF - LA

RGET REE RITHE -
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21.GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS N.BEBRETEE
Goodwill Intangible assets
e BREE
Deferred
development Technical Customer
cost know-how relationships Total
BREA Al A= EFB% @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THIL THT THT THIL
At 1st January 2017 R=B-t%-A-H
Cost D% = 5,006 = - 5,006
Accumulated amortisation ZEEERAE
and impairment - (4,325) - - (4,325)
Net book amount HREFE - 681 = - 681
Year ended 31st December 2017 BE-Z—tE+-A=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount HAREFE - 681 - - 681
Additions NE - - 57 - 57
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38) WeRg M B AR (Fi3E38) 764,920 - 2,165 122,985 125,150
Amortisation B - (681) (583) (6,040) (7,304)
Exchange realignment B % 4,579 - 11 728 739
Closing net book amount HRARE A 769,499 - 1,650 117,673 119,323
At 31st December 2017 and R-E—t&+-A=t-HR
1st January 2018 “E2-\¥-f-H
Cost A 769,499 5,006 2,234 123,721 130,961
Accumulated amortisation ZEEERAE
and impairment - (5,006) (584) (6,048) (11,638)
Net book amount REFE 769,499 - 1,650 117,673 119,323
Year ended 31st December 2018 BE-E-N\E+-A=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount HRAARE A 769,499 - 1,650 117,673 119,323
Additions NE - 9,582 - - 9,582
Disposal HE - = (30) = (30)
Amortisation i - (1,987) (799) (8,271) (11,057)
Exchange realignment fE B 1,674 (5) 4 236 235
Closing net book amount HRAREFE 771,173 7,590 825 109,638 118,053
At 31st December 2018 R-E-N\§+=A=t-H
Cost B 7711173 14,583 2,209 123,962 140,754
Accumulated amortisation ZEHEERAE
and impairment - (6,993) (1,384) (14,324) (22,701)
Net book amount IREFE 771,173 7,590 825 109,638 118,053
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21.GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2018, amortisation of approximately
HK$11,057,000 (2017: HK$7,304,000) has been charged to “cost of services
rendered” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is attributable to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") of the
Grid Dynamics Group and is allocated to the IT Services operating segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined from value in use
calculations based on cash flow projections from formally approved financial
budgets and forecasts covering a five-year period. The cash flows for the
subsequent years are extrapolated from the fifth year cash flow using 2.1% (2017:
2.2%) growth rate, and discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 20.13%
(2017: 19.45%).

The discount rate reflects current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rate used was based on historical
growth and past experience and did not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the CGU operates.

The recoverable amount has been determined to be higher than the carrying
amount of the CGU, and thus no impairment is required.

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

N.BEREREE

REBEE-ZT—N\E+_A=1+—"HIEE - &Y
#711,057, ooo;‘%ﬁ( — T —+4F : 7,304,000
T0) ERERE B R Z R AR 2 A A IFRF0BR -

722 57 B 5 A58 [ Grid Dynamics £ B A 3R € &=
FBA([REEEEM])  WHREEMBHEER

ﬁ% é?éb&/'\ﬁﬁ ®

G EE A BT 2 AT IR Bl & BB TR IR B IE R BEfERY
PEBEEHNE SRS EEE R FHNE
Al AFEREEFEEE - HEFENRESR
ERAFAFNRESRERA21%(ZT—+t
F:22%) M REHE - WERAKATARX
20.13% (ZZF—+4F : 19.45%) #7784 -

BERERRBR T BRI S H S R EER G A
FREELEMRAENRR - FIRMBIEEXTIR
BESIERELBELRAE  THAREES
BREEEE RPFIgREE -

AREESHEEEERSNREELBN 2 KRE
B WBAFELRE -

2. BE QRIS

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHT

At 1st January n—A—H 46,948 53,458
Disposal of partial interest in an associate R N R 2 DR (336) =

Share of results of associates PRGBS A RIZER (5,428) (7,117)

Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income FE(RE & AR Em 2w (58) IkEs

of associates (431) 1,004

Impairment loss on interests in associates B N Bl R E R 1R (11,900) (4,400)

Dividends received B U S (485) (484)
Exchange realignment (RIS (706) 4,481
At 31st December w+=—A=+—8 27,662 46,948
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2. B N B R

R-B-NFR_F—+F+_A=t—H &
B2 I EHEERRFIBAT -

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December 2018 and 2017
are as follows:

Percentage of nominal value
of issued ordinary share capital
held indirectly by the Company

Country/place
of incorporation
and operations

——= 158

Name of associate AR R AR 2 A EEESE Principal activities
BEAREE BxR 2 ERTEBERETZEHL FEXK

2018 2017

—EB-N\F

iN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau 24% 33.3% Provision of engineering and
BERZGE CRPT) BRAF] JEFT software services
(Note) (F45E) R TR R RS
ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited Thailand 49% 49% Provision of engineering and
e software services
TRt T2 RE RS
i-Sprint Holdings Ltd. (“i-Sprint”) Cayman Islands 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding
FEES REZR
i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited Hong Kong 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing, and
LE (BB B BER DA B implementing technology
risk management products
RS 5 R E R
R E R EmER
Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42% Provision of software
ERTHABERHRAREER R development, distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology
risk management products
RHEIMMRE - 2 Bk
XERMERERERER
i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42% Provision of software
ZHE (b)) B AR EE AR i development, distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology
risk management products
REHBMARE 2 Higk
IR B E TR E RS
i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd Singapore 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding, provision
N of developing, distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology
risk management products
REZR - A% 98
B R ER E R EmER
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22. B N TR )

Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December 2018 and 2017 RZB-N\FERZZ—tF+-_A=+—H &K

are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place

of incorporation

and operations

Name of associate AR R AR 2
i PNCIECY EVE: L

KB I ETHERRFEOT : (8B)

Percentage of nominal value
of issued ordinary share capital
held indirectly by the Company
AATEEEE Principal activities
ERTEBERETZAHL FEEH

2018 2017
—E-)\F :

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia
BRFT

i-Sprint Innovations Inc. The US

EE

i-Sprint Investment Limited Hong Kong

e

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co. Ltd Thailand
e

35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology

risk management products
R - B RSIRRM
b ERERER

35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing and
implementing technology
risk management products
TRt 85 R Bl

B E IR E mE

35.42% 35.42% Investment holding,
provision of distributing and
implementing technology

risk management products
REERL - Rt 88 R E Rl
[\ B B I E e SRS

35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology

risk management products
RMHDH - Bt KRR
[E\B B R T

Note: On 20th June 2018, a subsidiary of the Group disposed one share of iN Systems (Macao) fifzr : RZZE-NFAAZTH AEE—FHHRER
Limited (“iN SYS”) with a par value of MOP$5,600 at a consideration of approximately AJLA4) 346,000 FI Z EELE —REEE

MOP$346,000 to an existing shareholder of iN SYS.

735,600 RPIE 2 BE Z AR ORPT) AR A A
(TBERGDBEN T RBERGIHARE

At 31st December 2018, the management of the Group carried out impairment RZZT—N\E+ZA=+—H FKEEEED
review on the carrying amount of the investment in i-Sprint Group by comparing FERLLERI-Sprint EEIREF AFERAEERED
the estimated recoverable amount using the value in use with the carrying A el S REEAREE - ¥ 0-Sprint & IR & A HR

amount of the investment in i-Sprint Group.

EEEITRER °
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22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. B N TR )
In determining the value in use of the investment, the Group estimated the REERERNEREER - AEBE & E i-Sprint
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by SETEHE A 2 hET KRR & 2 (B 1Fi-Sprint
i-Sprint Group, including cash flows from the operations of i-Sprint Group and SEXBKEEEANRERERKKEB)Z
estimated terminal value. Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of RE - RIEFTE 0 i-Sprint &£ B &Y AT Y B & 581K
i-Sprint Group is lower than its carrying amount. Hence, an impairment loss of REREE - Bt RBEE=ZT—N\F+=A
HK$11,900,000 (2017: HK$4,400,000) on the interests in i-Sprint Group was =+—HIEFE  RiraBmkati-Sprint £ H
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended T SRR B RS 11,900,000 L (= —+4F -
31st December 2018. 4,400,000787T) ©
The financial information of i-Sprint Group, which are material associates KRR EAR 2 EZHE A R]-Sprint & B 2 8
accounted for using the equity method, are as below: HERAT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Non-current assets EMENEE 42,457 38,927
Current assets mENEE 56,550 58,865
Current liabilities mEEE (56,042) (35,918)
Net assets FEE 42,965 61,874
Revenue A 155,341 144,528
Loss for the year FANEE (17,012) (22,696)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income H 2w (E8) U (1,219) 2,835
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEBIREE (18,231) (19,861)
Group's share of: LB
Loss for the year FREIE (5,848) (7,929)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income H v 2E (518) U (431) 1,004
Total comprehensive loss for the year FALEEGIERTE (6,279) (6,925)
Dividend received B AR S - -
The financial information of iN SYS, which is not a material associate of the WHAEBERNZHENRBERRZUEER
Group, is as below: IR
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Group’s aggregate share of net assets AEEELE—FEEE AR
of an associate IFAEREE 886 1,288
Group’s share of: AEE L
Profit for the year FRHEF 420 818
Other comprehensive income Hb 2 EWa= - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FARATER SRR 420 818
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22. B N TR )

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
amount of each of the investments in i-Sprint Group and iN Systems (Macao)

L B E R AR R B i-Sprint &2 K B B AR A
B CRF) AR ARR B 2 RERRE(E 2 HiRkn

Limited is set out below: INE
iN Systems
(Macao) Limited
i-Sprint Group BERGRH
i-Sprint £ E (RFM)BRAE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-N\F =T tF —T-N\F |[=T tF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT TR FHT
Total net assets of associates SN R R AERT 42,965 61,874 3,689 3,865
Portion of ownership interests REEFRFA
held by Group AR D 35.42% 35.42% 24% 33.33%
Group’s share of net assets of associates REEEGEHERARFEAE 15,218 21,916 886 1,288
Others Hith (3.453) (3.681) - -
Goodwill B 31,311 31,825 - -
43,076 50,060 886 1,288
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (16,300) (4,400) - -
Carrying amount of the interests in associates 4R& BITSTREFTR
in the consolidated financial statements B N R s BRE(E 26,776 45,660 886 1,288

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of ASL Automated
Services (Thailand) Limited. The amounts of unrecognised share of results of this
associate, extracted from the relevant management accounts of the associate,

REIZEAEERRB) AT

both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

A& BB KL #RE E(GASL Automated
Services (Thailand) Limited E518 ° FE{E % B2 A
RAIZFEAR BT AEREE ST (BEaH &

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Unrecognised share of profit of an associate FAAREREME —EHE AT
for the year 25 A (22) (1
Other comprehensive income Eih 2 E e - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FARER =BT (22) (1)
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses RETAREREG — R QR
of an associate el = 584 606
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23.EQUITY INVESTMENT

——=o0 162

Available-for-sale financial asset AHHESHEE
Unlisted equity investment, at cost less

impairment losses

Financial asset at FVOCI
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value

FE LRI E - ImARARRRER R

BEARBEEBEMEHEKES R EHEE
LB - IBAR(EE

23. RERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F

—T—tF
HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
TExT

- 598

598 =

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Group entered into the
agreement with Teamsun, Pansky Technology Corporation Ltd. and Beijing
Honggiao Technology Co., Ltd. to establish a company in the PRC, pursuant
to which the Group committed to subscribe for 10% equity interest in the
PRC company with capital contribution of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$11,965,000). As at 31st December 2017, the Group has injected
RMB500,000 (equivalent to HK$598,000) to the investment and classified the
investment as available-for-sale financial asset.

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9, the unlisted equity investment is stated at cost
less impairment losses as the investment do not have quoted market prices in an
active market and the range of reasonable fair value estimates are so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be measured reliably. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group designated its
investment in this unlisted investment as FVOCI, as this investment is held as
long-term strategic investments that is not expected to be sold in the short to
medium term. Available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified to financial
assets at FVOCI (non-recycling) upon the initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1
January 2018.

As at 31st December 2018, the fair value of the Group’s investment in unlisted
equity securities amounted to HK$598,000. Details of the fair value of the
unlisted equity investment has been measured as described in Note 6(d).
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UBRERE T2 EMTH

ERMTAZEFTRREEARTIIREA

24, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line

items below:
2018 2017
—EB-N\E —E—+t5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT F#T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REBERAIEREZERMEE
Trade receivables PR E 5538 315,007 =
Other receivables and deposits HiREBRIERE S 16,845 =
Finance lease receivables FEM R E T E R IE 4,474 =
Restricted bank deposits ZRFIERITER 762 =
Bank balances and cash WITER KBS 292,183 =
629,271 -
Loans and receivables BRRERFE
Trade receivables FEUE 558 - 275,952
Other receivables and deposits H A FEUGRIE Rz e - 8,541
Finance lease receivables el R E TR E FIE - 6,917
Restricted bank deposits PR HIRITIF - 4,168
Bank balances and cash RITEREES - 286,771
- 582,349
Financial asset at FVOCI RAREBEZBEMEZE
(non-recycling) WaFliR SMEE (RAEE)
Equity investment IRHER & 598 =
Available-for-sale financial asset AHHESHEE
Equity investment ARAERS & - 598
629,869 582,947
Financial liabilities SEas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHERARIEZSRMEE
Trade payables FERTE 5508 258,940 175,802
Other payables and accruals E th e~ 50E R BT B 139,415 153,904
Borrowings g 481,715 492,982
880,070 822,688
Financial liabilities at fair value RAXRBEZBERIIR SHAE
through profit or loss
Contingent consideration payable FERTSRARAE 69,565 136,691
949,635 959,379
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25.INVENTORIES B.EF7E
2018 2017
—E2E-N\HF —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Goods held for resale FEEE 2 EY) 80,816 45,662
Goods pending for customers’ acceptance BHREPEMNZEY 97,779 82,419
178,595 128,081

Goods held for resale and goods pending for customers’ acceptance mainly
represent computer equipment and software products.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, the cost of inventories recognised
as expenses and included in “cost of goods sold” and “cost of services rendered”
amounted to approximately HK$699,633,000 and HK$304,881,000 (2017:
HK$635,062,000 and HK$267,202,000), respectively.

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES

FEBEZENREGEPEMZENIERSE
i 5 A B M EE R

HE-_Z-—N\F+-_A=+—HILEEEER
BRAIWEATHERAN] R [BEREZK
K| Z2FEKA 5 B4 A699,633,000% 7T K&
304,881,000 70 (= Z — 4 : 635,062,000
JE M 267,202,000587T) °

26. FEUNE 5 FIB

2018 2017

—EB-)N\F —T—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHIT

Trade receivables — gross JEWE 55078 - 4B%E 324,424 281,637
Less: provision for impairment R E R (9.417) (5,685)
Trade receivables — net JEWE 5 FIH - 5 315,007 275,952

The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for 30 days
and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 6(b).

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade receivables, is as

AEBZMARPEALHZAI0AFEEDR -
AEBRBREEEZELSRABEERRNER
K - SREREH BN FAKBIME L EHE
& o AERENEEBERABI BN E6(b)

REZERE - RKRESTAZRESTAT

follows:
2018 2017
—E-NF =
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAxT
0 - 30 days 0E 30Kk 149,555 136,266
31 - 60 days 31 £60K 96,852 51,806
61 —90 days 61ZE 90K 37,137 43,326
Over 90 days BB 90K 40,880 50,239
324,424 281,637
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE
=h .
26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 26. FEUR B 5 FIH ()
The movement in the Group’s loss allowance (2017: provision for impairment) of R E 5 FIEREN IR B IR REEE 28R
trade receivables is as follows: EOMTLAT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT
At 1st January n—H—AR 5,685 4,781
Acquisition of subsidiaries g )= PG| - 156
Provision for impairment (Note 12) TR ERHE (FIFE12) 4,254 541
Reversal of provision for impairment (Note 12) BB EEE (M 12) (289) (107)
Exchange realignment RS (233) 314
At 31st December RN+=—A=+—H 9,417 5,685
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there ERERNR 2 2E —RNEH TSR EREING
is no expectation of recovering additional cash. RIS o
The Group does not hold any collateral as security. AREEN A AR R IEAER -
The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies: JEWE 5 FIRRE AT IS HEHE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHT
HKD T 197,319 163,423
usb ETT 107,151 97,536
Renminbi (“RMB") AR (TARED 4,769 5,494
Thailand Baht (“THB") TR ([ ) 4,474 2,155
Macau Pataca (“MOP") BPTHE (DRPIE ) 6,625 9,486
New Taiwan dollars (“NTD") maw(Has) 2,830 3,072
Others Efth 1,256 471
324,424 281,637
As at 31st December 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts of trade receivables REZT—N\F+ZA=+—AR=T—+tF+=
approximate their fair values. A=+—H EBRESFEZRRSEEEN R
BERE °
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27.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The total minimum lease receivables under finance leases and their present values

——= 166

at the reporting date are as follows:

2. BB E A

AT AiREREREFIRR IR B 2 RIERKIE

BREkERE:

2018 2017
—EBE-NE —F—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Non-current receivables: e ED FE RIS ¢
Gross finance lease receivables FEW B E M ERIH AR EE 1,185 3,475
Unearned finance income REEUZ BE WA (57) (150)
1,128 3,325
Current receivables: TRENEUFRIE ¢
Gross finance lease receivables FEU R & TR E FOE AR 3,468 3,836
Unearned finance income REREUZ B A A (122) (244)
3,346 3,592
Gross receivables from finance leases: REBERE ZERTIEHALE :
Not later than 1 year —FRA 3,468 3,836
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FRRAFA 1,185 3,475
Gross finance lease receivables FEU B E M ERIH AR FE 4,653 7,311
Unearned finance income RERELZ BE WA (179) (394)
Net finance lease receivables W mERERIEFE 4,474 6,917
The net finance lease receivables are B mEREFUTEERRUT AN -
analysed as follows:
— Not later than 1 year -—FR 3,346 3,592
— Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - —FERAFA 1,128 3,325
4,474 6,917
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28.OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 2. EMEWFIE - €& RFE(

=+
PREPAYMENTS IH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Other receivables E b pE Y RIE 4,258 3,788
Deposits Ze 6,106 4,672
Prepayments TERTFIE 27,751 24,745
Amount due from an ultimate BEEIERR A ARG
holding company 832 -
Amount due from an immediate BEERA R
holding company 1,072 -
Amount due from an associate L = INGIE 5,409 81
45,428 33,286
Less: non-current portion B IEmENED D - (340)
Current portion mENER D 45,428 32,946
Less: loss allowance R (832) =
Net other receivables, deposits HAEWEIE « f2e RN RIBEFE
and prepayments 44,596 32,946
As at 31st December 2018 and 2017, amounts due from the immediate holding RZB-N\FER-Z—tF+-A=+—H B
company and an associate are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BER A TR KR — B E AR R KR EER
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. SEREERER - BARNBREANE  BEZK

EEZEAAEEES

The balances are denominated in the following currencies: EERTIA TSI G EHE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
HKD BT 17,918 21,933
THB TRk 6,439 886
RMB AR 1,514 472
NTD e 908 1,291
usD I 18,298 8,034
Others EAh 351 670
45,428 33,286
As at 31st December 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts of other receivables RZE—-N\FERZFT—tF+-A=+—H H
and deposits approximate their fair values. fthEKRIERIZS 2 RESBEE AR EEE
o
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29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR

CONTRACT WORK/CONTRACT ASSETS

As at 31st December 2017, the balance represented contract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less recognised losses and progress billings. Upon the adoption
on HKFRS 15, amounts previously included as “Amounts due from customers for
contract work” was reclassified to “Contract assets”.

30.RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK

——=0 168

BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31st December 2018, bank balances carry interest at market rates with an
average interest rate of 0.99% (2017: 0.04%) per annum. As at 31st December
2018, restricted bank deposits carried interest at market rates with an average
interest rate of 0.38% (2017: 0.50%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash are denominated in the following currencies:

V.ENIREREFRE &

NEE

REE—tF+-A=+—R  BHRIEMEEZ
B KPR D0 B R AR A B FE SR B 1R M A
R RRMBEBIBIRELANE 15581 - FA0
IR AENTEEKREPKA | KIEH O
E[ANEE]-

ZREIBITERRBRITER
KRz

R-Z—N\FE+-A=1+—8 BI&EHET
BHEGFE - FHFES R ATF0.99% (=T
—tF:004%) c R=ZE—\F+_A=+—
A+ R HIRITERIETISFEGTE - FHH =
AEF038% (ZZF—+tF :050%) °

RITFERRBEATIIEREE

2018 2017
—B-N\EF —F—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FiET

HKD BT 102,849 172,980
RMB AR 19,294 3,457
NTD e 5,995 4,030
usD EIT 145,713 89,000
Others Efth 18,332 17,304
292,183 286,771

As at 31st December 2018, included in restricted bank deposits of approximately
HK$762,000 (2017: HK$772,000) are pledged to secure the performance bonds
of the Group.

Restricted bank deposits are denominated in the following currencies:

RZZE—N\F+-A=+—H  BEEZRHIR
1IENAI 762,000 8L (= —+4F : 772,000
BIT) AEAEEERIRITEARE 2R -

ERHBITFEFATINEEEE -

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTHET Tt

MOP SRPT S 243 3,637
NTD ek 519 531
762 4,168

Annual Report 2018 43k



31.SHARE CAPITAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wRE IS ERAR M

For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE

31. [R A<

Number
of shares

REE

‘000
TR

Amount
&8
HK$'000
FHET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BRMEME.10 Bz EER
Authorised: EERA :
At 1st January 2017 R=E—tF—H—H 600,000 60,000
Increase in authorised share capital (Note (i)) HAETE A (FEE ) 1,400,000 140,000
At 31st December 2017, R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—H8"

1st January 2018 —E2-N\F—A—H

and 31st December 2018 E=—Z-N\F+=-B=+—H 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
At 1st January 2017 RZZE—+F—HA—H 350,789 35,079
Rights issue (Note (ii)) MR (B EE (i) 175,394 17,539
Bonus issue (Note (iii) AT % (BEE Gii)) 52,618 5,262
Issue of ordinary shares upon conversion of AR R E SR AT

convertible bonds (Note (iv)) 2 AR (MEE (iv) 91,743 9,174
At 31st December 2017 R=Z2—tF+=A=+—H

and 1st January 2018 kR=Z—-N\$—HF—H: 670,544 67,054
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of REBIRERI TR BT 2 @R

share options 545 54
Bonus issue (Note (v)) BATALAR (PIEE(v)) 134,135 13,414
At 31st December 2018 R=—Z—N\F+=-A=+—H 805,224 80,522

Notes: PEE -
(i)  Increase in authorised share capital (i)  IIEERA

(ii)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed on 13th March 2017 and 17th May
2017, the total authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$60,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each
to HK$200,000,000 by the creation of additional 400,000,000 and 1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each respectively.

Rights issue

On 27th February 2017, the Company issued and allotted 175,394,450 ordinary shares
of par value HK$0.10 each to qualifying shareholders pursuant to the rights issue
on the basis of one rights share for every two existing shares held by the qualifying
shareholders on 27th January 2017 at the subscription price of HK$1.10 per rights
share (“Rights Issue”), and raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$192,934,000, of
which approximately HK$17,539,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of
approximately HK$175,395,000 (before share issuance expenses) was credited to the
share premium account of the Company.

Share issuance expenses mainly include share underwriting commission, lawyers’
fees and other related costs associated with the Rights Issue. Incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the new shares amounting to approximately
HK$3,816,000 was treated as a deduction against the share premium account arising
from the Rights Issue.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB R & E R AR

(ii)

BER—T—+tFE=A+=BR=_Z—+tFHA
TERBBOLBRER - AREZEAERAE
% 60,000,000 7% 7T (5 A 600,000,000 A% & A%
fB0.10 77T H) L 3BAR ) 3 hNZ 200,000,000 7T +
75 3% B BIEESME 5% 0.1078 7T #9 400,000,000 A%
1%.1,000,000,000 A& 3@A% ©

A%

RZZT—+t&=_A=++tA8 RNARREHER
ME &R 31T R L3 175,394,450 IR B R @
HONOB THL AR EEARSERBRIERZ
T—+tH&—A-+LtHERAEMRRERMER
— R - REEATRERRD1.107%
TC(THEAR D) - I 815 FRIE A #E 49 192,934,000 78
JC * H A 4917,539,000 7 JT 5T A B A if £ 58 49
175,395,000 % 7T (FNBRFSZ AT ) 5E AR R RIR 9
{EER °

BROBTHZEFZRERMDEHEMAS  EMER
PR RR AR RA MY E A A AR AN o BEITHTAR D B R
{E RIS 4] 3,816,000 7 7T A B (AR EE & BB 17 V55
BRI -
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31.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

All

Bonus issue in 2017

On 17th May 2017, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting to approve the bonus issue of shares (2017
Bonus Issue”) of par value HK$0.10 each which was issued on the basis of one bonus
share for every ten existing shares on 29th May 2017. As of that date, there was a total
of 526,183,350 shares in issue, resulting in the issuance of 52,618,335 of bonus shares
under 2017 Bonus Issue.

Conversion of convertible bonds

On 25th August 2017, a bondholder of the convertible bonds has completed the
conversion of Convertible Bond with principal amount of HK$100,000,000 into
91,743,119 shares at the conversion price of HK$1.09 per share. Details are set out in
Note 35(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

Bonus issue in 2018

On 16th May 2018, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting to approve the bonus issue of shares (“2018
Bonus Issue”) of par value HK$0.10 each which was issued on the basis of two bonus
shares for every ten existing shares on 29th May 2018. As of that date, there was a
total of 670,676,804 ordinary shares in issue, resulting in the issuance of 134,135,360
bonus shares under 2018 Bonus Issue.

the shares in issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing

shares of the Company in all respects.

32.TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the reporting date, based on
payment due date, is as follows:

31. R AR ()

fiE - ()

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

SR EFRTAR

R=ZZF—+tFRATLH  NARBRRRBRRE
FRE FFBB—HEBRERT - UBERT
EBREEIETHAKR( T —EFHITA
&) BOTEEAR-_T—tFRA-TNAE
BETRAEERMHER —RAK - B=ZBH -
BE1TID 4885 526,183,350 % * EMRIE=F
—HEFBITAIAREE1T 52,618,335 ARATAZ ©

BRI ES

R-ZZE—+FN\A-+HA HF—LELHEE
1T 4N € %8 100,000,000 7 7T 2 AT #2 i% & 55 F
Bf A5 2 M B A - A AR 1.0078 T 2 R [E 5 iR
91,743,119 R L iAAR - FFIBH R ERE B 5 R T
5 35(i) °

—E N\FBETAR

RZZ—NFRATEB ' AARBRRRBRRE
FAELFRBB—BLBERER - UBERTT
BREEI0E LA — T — NFEBTA
B ) BETEEAR-_E—\ERA-TNAAE
B TIRAARMNEZMARAR - HEZAH
BT EBREEA670,676,804 % - EMARE
T \GFBITALAR M 31T 134,135,360 ARALAR °

REERNETORBE RN EERNRREREST

EHIRA BN Z

R -

LENEZ KA

e B S FIBBREIR B IR IBR KB H A Z BRIk D
Wanr :

2018 2017

—E2-N\EF 2 ehE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Current BNER 185,967 114,418
Within 30 days 30 KA 46,729 39,115
31 - 60 days 31260k 10,688 6,595
61 —90 days 61 £ 90K 3,248 2,711
Over 90 days 3B 90 K 12,308 12,963
258,940 175,802
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RENEZFFIE @

RERTIA TSI’ EHE

32. TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

HKD BT 198,109 137,893
RMB AR 1,340 8,061
usD ET 43,998 19,881
THB ZREK 8,906 6,743
NTD etk 6,170 2,824
Others EAh 417 400
258,940 175,802

REIRA  BNESFAZEMEREAREE
E"'*’ °

At the reporting date, the carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair

>

values.

33.OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

BHMENSKERESER

2018 2017

—E-N\E —T—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT T

Other payables H A FET 58 17,997 57,844

Accruals EEtERA 119,728 95,103
Amount due to an ultimate holding company REASIERR A BI5RIE

(Note (i) (I () 1,208 418

Amount due to associates (Note (i) RE A m) R (B ) 482 539

139,415 153,904

Notes:

(i)  The amounts due to the ultimate holding company and associates are unsecured,

interest free and are repayable on demand.

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

fia -

FEERTIA TSI K EHE ¢

REMEBERR R R E AR Z FORREER - 2
SRBREFEE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F R —+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
HKD BIT 77,057 67,297
usbD x& 55,780 80,159
RMB AR 2,197 3,168
NTD ek 1,185 1,116
Others Eo 3,196 2,164
139,415 153,904

At the reporting date, the carrying values of other payables and accruals REARE - EfhERTEIE KBS & A 2 BRE (A R

approximate their fair values. HARBEESE -
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34.RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 34, FE W W 22

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to delivery FEWREA RN E AT E 2 2R (EREmR
of goods which is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss NEEHFREERmRER) | RIBHREATURER 2
upon the delivery of goods; and provision of service which is recognised in the BR(ENEBREPALFTHANRGEHEESGS
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the service period stipulated in the BmRER) - RENE B BREZERIZE 155%
respective customer contract. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, contract liabilities % ABA 2 TENRIERBREGTEERSMES
arising from billings in advance of performance recognised and from receiving ZERBEATBR 2R -

deposits of orders are reported as receipts in advance.

As at 1st January 2018, receipt in advance amounted to HK$126,711,000, of RZZE-NE-HA-—B BHHKkxEAE

which HK$109,597,000 has been recognised as revenue during the year ended 126,711,000 7T * & 9 £ & 109,597,000 7 7T

31st December 2018. EREEZZ-\F+_A=+—HILFEER
V=L O

35.BORROWINGS B.EE

2018 2017
—g-n% | = i&
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBxT
Current RENED
Bank borrowings, secured (Note (i) BEIEBIRITEE (R G) 224,290 247,800
Non-current IETR BN ER B
Convertible bonds (Note (ii)) AR E S (FTRE (i) 257,425 245,182
481,715 492,982
Notes: B3
(i)  Bank borrowings, secured () BHEPRITEE
The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows: AEBZBITREERPAT :
2018 2017
S 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Within one year or on demand —EPAA IR ER(EE 224,290 247,800
During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Group obtained a banking facility REZE-T—+F+_A=+—RHILFE  F&
in relations to a term loan of HK$250,000,000 to finance the acquisition of Grid [EEN{5 5 B E BiE 7K 250,000,000 T Z SR1TREE
Dynamics Group as detailed in Note 38. The bank borrowings are repayable by five #UEE Grid Dynamics R BRI FTH E & - FF R
semi-annually instalments commencing from 29th March 2018 to 20th February 2020 38 - ZIRITHEEHEB_ZE—/\F=A=TN1H
and bears interest at floating rates. The bank borrowings are denominated in HKD with BAE_T_THFE_A_THEH BEFEE
an effective interest rate of 4.68% (2017: 4.42%) per annum as at 31st December —R - PRHEE - WLAUFFIRETE - RITIEE
2018. UBTEE RZE-A\F+-_A=+—HZE
BREREEL68% (ZT—LF : 442%) °
As at 31st December 2018, the bank borrowings are secured by: RZZE-—N\F+=A=+—8  RITEENUATI
BIAVEHIR -
(1) the legal charges over the Group’s land and buildings with carrying amount of (1) 7% [E B8R fE280,700,000/8 T (=T —+
HK$280,700,000 (2017: HK$271,950,000) (Note 45); 4 : 271,950,000/ 7T ) Z LI RIBF ZIETE
AR (Bt 45)
(2) the legal charges over the Group's investment properties with carrying amount of (2) ANEEBRE(E 54,000,000 ( =T —+4F :
HK$54,000,000 (2017: HK$52,300,000) (Note 45); 52,300,000 7T ) 2 R E WX M2 EEERR
(Bi=E45)
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35 BORROWI NGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@)

(ii)

Bank borrowings, secured (Continued)

As at 31st December 2018, the bank borrowings are secured by: (Continued)

(3) the guarantees given by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group
up to a limit of HK250,000,000;

(4) assignment of rental and sales proceeds from the Group’s land, buildings and
investment properties; and

(5) assignment of insurance of all insurance policies (other than third party liabilities
and public liabilities) over the Group’s land, buildings and investment properties.

The banking facilities of term loan is subject to the fulfillment of certain financial and
non-financial covenants relating to certain subsidiaries of the Group as are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants, is up to the date
with the scheduled repayments of the loans and does not consider it probable that
the banks will exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements.

Subject to repayment on demand clauses which can be exercised at the banks’ sole
discretion, the above bank borrowings are classified as current liabilities as at 31st
December 2018 and 2017.

Convertible bonds

On 21st March 2017, the Group issued HKD denominated zero coupon convertible
bonds of a principal amount of HK$350,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds").

At the issue date, the Convertible Bonds can be converted into 291,666,666 shares
(the “Convertible Shares”) at the initial conversion price of HK$1.20 per share (subject
to adjustment). As a result of the bonus issue on 8th June 2017 as detailed in Note
31(iii), the number of Convertible Shares and the conversion price per share have been
adjusted to 321,100,917 shares and HK$1.09 per share respectively, pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds.

Early redemption at the option of the Company and the Bondholder

The Company and the bondholder have the right to redeem the Convertible Bonds
early in the event that the completion of the acquisition of Grid Dynamics Group
does not take place in accordance with its terms, the Company shall have the right
to redeem and the bondholder shall have the right to require redemption of the
Convertible Bonds outstanding before the Maturity Date (the “Early Redemption
Option”) at its principal amount outstanding plus 6% internal rate of return per
annum. The acquisition of Grid Dynamics Group was completed on 7th April 2017 and
the Early Redemption Option expired on that date.

On 25th August 2017, one of the bondholders, exercised the conversion right
attaching to the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$100,000,000 at
conversion price of HK$1.09 per share. A total of 91,743,119 ordinary shares were
allotted and issued to the bondholder and the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds has been reduced to HK$250,000,000.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5B Z 5B BR A 7

5. EBE @)

fieE - ()

@i

(ii)

BHEPRITEE (B)

RZEB-NF+ZA=+—8  RITEENUT?I
BIREER - (8)

() BARFAEAKREETHEIRIEHZ&S
PR3 250,000,000 BT 2 &R

(4 HBEASEIMEFTRREME 2B MH
Elas - R

(5) HBEASEIMWEFRZEVEMAREZ
R (E=HEERAHKEERI)

EHMERZRTREAGARAASEE TIER
BZETHH R BRAER R AEE M
ZEHE T AR B REBERTL2 (E XL HE © fid
REEERZ @ FARRESRRRRERER

AEBMEHNEREETEHBER BBEZA —
BRFTEEEET  AARERREASEEE
MRZEZRNBERT - RITTAAIRETRED
TBREESEN -

FERITA 2B TERIRERE B ERAER
T RZBE-—NER_FT—t&E+-_A=+—
B UERITEESEARBAR -

AR (R 5

REZF—+tF=A=+—8  RNEBHETUSET
AEN ~ N4 %84 350,000,0008 L Z B A%
&% ([ATRRRES]) -

REH A - ATRARESR IRER1.208 89088
RSB (7] T3 ) 835 291,666,666 A% L 3@AL ©
AR =T —+tFNANBBTAR - RIEAREK
EH ZIGR RGN - ARRRMHEE RIAREDE
2 R E 321,100,917 & R F A% 1.098 7T 5
BHEEE 31Giii) ©

A RAREFIFEA TEFEIE R

fisi U B Grid Dynamics & B 37 AR AR 5 E A& K 5ERK
A|AA RIS AREEE REFFE ABEEE KR
FHEAT([IREEEREE ) REREERSE
B 6% 2 A HB U e 3 8 B K (8 AT AR (E 55 o
U 88 Grid Dynamics EBIER =T —+FMA+AH
TRERRBIREFFBAZIRTEEEEZER
ZBEm °

R-ZB—+FENA-+THB  HEF—ZEHEFH
A v 1TEARE%E A 100,000,000 87T 2 AT A ES
FTR 5 2 3R R4 - LAEAR 1.09 78 T 2 R AR (B #8 1R
TEAT o A £91,743, 119 E B E AL % K 31T
FTHEFFAEARTBRRESR 2 ASBERE
250,000,000 7T ©
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35 BORROW' NGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(i) Convertible bonds (Continued)

As a result of the bonus issue on 8th June 2018, the number of Convertible Shares and
conversion price has been further adjusted from 229,357,798 shares with conversion
price of HK$1.09 per share to 274,725,274 shares with conversion price of HK$0.91
per share.

The Convertible Bonds are convertible during the period commencing from the 90th
day after the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds and ending on the 5th business
day prior to the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds on 21st March 2020 (the
“Maturity Date”). Unless previously purchased or converted for Conversion Shares, the
Company shall on the Maturity Date redeem the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds together with the accrued return of 3% internal rate of return per
annum.

The conversion option embedded in the Convertible Bonds meet the definition of
equity instrument of the Company, and is classified as equity and included in the
convertible bonds reserves. The liability component was initially recognised at its fair
value and was subsequently measured at amortised cost. As at 31st December 2018,
the Convertible Bonds contain two components i.e. liability and equity.

The carrying amount of liability component of the Convertible Bonds recognised in the

B.EE @

fiE - ()
(i)  AIHBRRES ()

AR=ZZ—N\FRNANBBTAR  BFRER
BT 2 IR B RIRAREE 5 5lli 229,357,798 ik
N1 .09 TTHHRRE 274,725,274 88 K &% 0.91
BT ©

ARRESFNELTRRESE A% FE0RH
MEABMBRESSSHE - E-—SF=A—+—H
(MEF2HB DTS AEEER L2 R T8
o BRIEFTIRARAR (D oAl B RS I sk #8 4k - T H
ANATEREIE A BB M ARITE 2 ATRRESRZ
AEFE - EREREZIREF 3% 2 AEh et Rt
2 RS -

AR ESARABRET S AR RS T AN
EF UoBRARaRATRRESFE - &
R D VI FER BT IR A A ME - RIRIRIE SR A AT
E-RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H WTRRES
BIRA ARSI -

REFE BSIRR R AR 2 AR ES 2 AEH

consolidated statement of financial position is calculated as follows: MEREEFTEWT -

HK$'000

FRT

Nominal value of Convertible Bonds AR ESEE 350,000
Less: Derivative component (Note) W STET A (M) (16)
Equity component Em e (15,536)
Transaction costs RHEAR (4,053)
Liability component on initial recognition YIATER 2 A EEH S 330,395
Imputed interest expense HEF SR 9,910
Conversion of Convertible Bonds AMRARE S 2 EiR (95,123)
At 31st December 2017 and 1st January 2018 R=E—tF+-_A=1+—HR=ZT—/\F—HF—H 245,182
Imputed interest expense HERNERX 12,243
At 31st December 2018 R=TF-—N\F+=A=+—H 257,425

Note: The derivative component at initial recognition represents the Early Redemption
Option, which was recognised as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss.

Imputed interest expense of the Convertible Bonds is calculated using the effective
interest method by applying effective interest rate of 4.99% per annum to the liability
component.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, there was no conversion or redemption of
the Convertible Bonds.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE

36. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The components of deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movement during the year

are as follows:

36. dEFEFTTS

MBANR TR ZBLEFAEH (B
B) BEZHIREBBFIRMAT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHT

At 1st January m—A—H (70,706) (44,946)
Acquisition of subsidiaries YRR A A - (35,209)
Tax charged to other comprehensive income BE M2 EEHRTIE (2,965) (2,979)
Tax credited to profit or loss (Note 16) B8zt ABIIE (Mi7E 16) 2,681 12,626
Exchange realignment Rk (46) (198)
At 31st December R+=ZA=+—8 (71,036) (70,706)

The investments in the PRC, Thailand and the US incorporated operations give
rise to taxable temporary differences arising from the distribution of profits by
way of withholding tax.

As at 31st December 2018, no deferred income tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are
subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Thailand
and the US. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investment
in a subsidiary in Thailand and the US for which deferred income tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately HK$214,922,000 as at 31st
December 2018 (2017: HK$163,272,000).

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31st December 2018, the Group had total tax losses
of approximately HK$46,994,000 (2017: HK$48,922,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred income tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$22,159,000 (2017: HK$18,965,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining approximately
HK$24,835,000 (2017: HK$29,957,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
streams, of which approximately HK$17,882,000 (2017: HK$20,235,000) will
expire within 1 to 5 years, approximately HK$6,853,000 (2017: HK$9,622,000)
will expire within 6 to 10 years and approximately HK$100,000 (2017:
HK$100,000) with unlimited expiry date.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB R & E R AR

RENPE - FEREBKLZ A FEERRT
TREER - RESAEMBTT A 5 0KE P
B o

RZB-N\F+-RA=+—H AEELELR
R KRB 2 B AR 2 RE L B A FELE
ZTAMBHEREIESH - RRRIEERR &
EHE R RN RS RA KA D KB &R -
RZB-NF+ZA=+—0 BERFEEE
BHHERARREFENEREZERESHOAR
214,922,000 70 (ZF —+ 4 : 163,272,000
7C) WERERIEE IS A (E

AR IBER IR A B IBFREA Al LB B A
RPEFRT AN T AR IR E BRERAIETEFTEH
BE W=/ \F+=—A=+—80 £5@%5
FHIAE B4 546,994,000/ L ( — T —+H4F :
48,922,000 78 7T ) A FAYEH S AR AR FI o IEAEAT
BHEED B REE422,159,000 8L (=%
—-+4F : 18,965,000 7T ) FERR ° A KRALTEA
R A3 F AR - B R B8R T 2 #924,835,000
B IL( =T —H 4 : 29,957,000 7T ) HERIE T
FISf&RE  EHh417,882,0008 (= —t
£ 120,235,000 7T) R —ZRHFERNEE - M
#76,853,0007% 7T ( = T — + & : 9,622,000
T0) RS2 N EHI K& 49 100,000 87T (= F
—-% : 100,000 7T) BERE o
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36. ELEFTER

EAEAKAMTIRE ERHERHTRRENA
FEMTHER - AZFEERAERER—HBE
RIS HA R - RS E A SUEAE
FfSHBETREE - RFR - BIEMSHEE
KB E (PRIER—TIRE R AR T

36. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The

movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:

——0 176

Temporary
difference of
Temporary  share-based
difference of payment
Accelerated intangible expenses
tax  Revaluation assets DARGDAER
depreciation of properties =~ EFEE2z  INEAZ Tax losses Total
RBERE WEER  EREER  ER#HEZR b o | )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 1st January 2017 R=E—+F—F—H (5,134) (40,708) - - 896 (44,946)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38) e EINGIGRER)) (551) = (43,803) = 9,145 (35,209)
Charged to other comprehensive income BEM2ERGET MR - (2,979) = = = (2,979)
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss REEA (%) /ETA
(Note 16) (Ftst16) (221) - 19,015 - (6,168) 12,626
Exchange realignment i3S (5) - (258) - 65 (198)
At 315t December 2017 RIB—+#+-A=1-H
and 1st January 2018 k=F-\&—-A—-H (5,911) (43,687) (25,046) - 3,938 (70,706)
Charged to other comprehensive income BEM2ERETNR - (2,965) - = = (2,965)
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss RBEA (%) /EA
(Note 16) (Wit 16) (561) - 1,905 628 709 2,681
Exchange realignment [E R 2) = (50) = b (46)
At 31st December 2018 RZE-NF+ZA=t+-H (6,474) (46,652) (23,191) 628 4,653 (71,036)

The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows:

BIEFASHZ DT

2018 2017

—E-)\F —ELEF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

THT F#T

Deferred income tax assets REFTISTREE 5,384 4,017
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHRAaE (76,420) (74,723)
(71,036) (70,706)
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBItFE

37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme which was adopted on 8th August 2002 (the
“2002 Share Option Scheme”) was expired and a new share option scheme was
adopted by an ordinary resolution passed at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 13th March 2017 (the “2017 Share Option Scheme”).

Upon the expiry of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, no further option can be
offered thereunder but any options granted prior to such expiry but not yet
exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable.

(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme

Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares of the Company. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer,
upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general
requirement that an option must be held for any minimum period before
it can be exercised but the directors of the Company are empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the directors of the Company at its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted.

The exercise price is determined by the directors, and will not be less than
the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant of the options; (b) the average of the closing prices of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal value of a
share. The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on 7th August 2012.

37. B RAERTE

ARRNR-TEF)\ A\ BERGEREE
BER ([ — 22 - FRRERE ) - FiERE
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BRI RREMRG ([ — 2 F g
£
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R R TE B BB AR TR 8 R I T AR AR T o

() =T -_FBEKREE
RE-ZT_FBEEEE - ARREERT
MEEREES (BRARARENBRARZ
ER)REBREABERRFRND < BI5
"R FRERERE - AR 2 ]
R B BE - TEBEARRRIMEMES
B2 BBETRGZ10%  RERMFERT
EALZBREN BB RNER - ~%
FRBAR RIAME IR 2 B 3T 2 1% °

ER B CAN H B 528 KA
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1B - R E AT ZRKERESB AT
158 8 B A 40 ZB 5 B B A 2 (] s 1K
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HEE T B — A S R H B HEEH 10
FR/RITME -

TEETAAAREREE @ EF T g IR
UT=FFRz&EE : @BRNNRBRER
i EER AT 2 (B ¢ (b) B R R R
AR A AR R AR 5 B AR R T2
BWHE: ROROHEE  —ZZ_FF
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37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 37. BB RERT &l o)

(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —==-FHERETE W)

TREBEABEREERA ST _FEEE
AEZBREMNEBE_Z-N\FR-_ZF

The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and movements in such holdings

—0 178

during the years ended 31st December 2018 and 2017:

—tFE+ A=+ —AIHEERERA S

B -
2018 —EB-N\F
Number of options
BREHA
At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised Adjusted At 31st
Exercise price January during during during during December
per share 2018 the year the year the year the year 2018
RZ2-NE R=B-N\%
Grant date SRITEE —-B-H FREL EREH FRTE Fh#E +-A=t-B
(Note (b)) (Note (b))
(B3 (b)) (i3 (b))
19th March 2012 “Z2-“EZBthA HK$0.704 464,253 - - - 92,847 557,100
0.704 87
2nd May 2012 “-ZERACH HK$0.728 141,857 - - - 28,371 170,228
0.728 787
606,110 - - - 121,218 721,328
Weighted average METAFRTEE HK$0.852 - - - HKS0.710 HKS0.710
exercise price per share 0.852%7 0.710%7% 0.710%7
Number of options R=2-NF
exercisable at tZA=t-H
315t December 2018 ATENERESR 721,328
Weighted average RZB-N%
exercise price per share TZR=1-H
of options exercisable AfTENEREN HK$0.710
at 31st December 2018 MEFABRTER 0.710%%
Weighted average TR 3.2 years
remaining contractual life ~ AHEH 328
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE

37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

37. RS R

() —SZT=-FEREFE@®

2017 e
Number of options
ERkiEZA
Granted Lapsed Exercised Adjusted At 31st
Exercise price during during during during December
per share the year the year the year the year 2017
T
Grant date BR{IEE ER%kin ERfife FRAE +t-A=T-H
(Note (a)) (Note (a))
i) (FzE @)
19th March 2012 —Z-—#=f+hA HK$0.845 396,000 = = = 68,253 464,253
0.8457570
2nd May 2012 “Z--FRAZH HK$0.873 121,000 = = = 20,857 141,857
0873770
517,000 = = = 89,110 606,110
Weighted average MEESERTER HKS$1.00 - - - HK$0.852 HK$0.852
exercise price per share 100787 0852757 0852757
Number of options RZE—+E
exercisable at tZA=t+-H
31st December 2017 ATRAERENRR 606,110
Weighted average RIB—t%
exercise price per share TZR=1-H
of options exercisable AfTEREREN HK$0.852
at 31st December 2017 MEFIERGEE 08527
Weighted average IETSRIER 4. years
remaining contractual life AHEH 4%

Note:

(@) The number of outstanding share options and exercise price per share have been
adjusted as a result of the Rights Issue (Note 31(ii)) and were further adjusted
as a result of the 2017 Bonus Issue (Note 31(iii), details of the adjustments are
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 24th February 2017 and 8th
June 2017, respectively.

(b)  The number of outstanding share options and exercise price per share have been
adjusted as a result of the 2018 Bonus Issue of the Company (Note 31(v)), details
of the adjustments are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 8th June
2018.

The options granted on 19th March 2012 and 2nd May 2012 were vested
equally on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB R & E R AR
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RARNZZE— N FRITARIEDE (FIRE
31(v) - ABRFBRERAARAHA-Z
—RNERANBZRE °

T——F=-A+hBER-ZT——FFHA

" HERHMBRESSNEHBHNE—
F_RFEZRFEREENERE

179 &——



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R I RARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE —T—\F+_A=+—HILtFE

37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

—= 180

(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme

2017 Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 13th March
2017 and is valid and effective for a period of ten years from 13th March
2017.

The purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Company and/or its subsidiaries. The Board may,
at its discretion, grant options to any eligible employee, executive or officer
including directors of the Company or its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2017 Share Option
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at 13th March 2017, the date of approval of
the adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme. Unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board may at its absolute
discretion impose any minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must be
achieved before the option can be exercised. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the options; (b)
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options; and (c) the nominal value of a share of the Company.
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37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B ERRMET
For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE
37. B HESTEl )

(i) Z=—tFHERETE (@)
FERRE > B RIS T

Grant date Number of options outstanding
31st March 2017 Exercise period at 31st December 2018
B B RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H
“T—+tF=A=+—H (T4 m AT TR IS
— Tranche 1 31st March 2017 — 30th March 2027 2,790,150
i —E—+F=ZA=+—HE-ZT=-tF=HF=1H
1st April 2018 — 30th March 2027 1,424,775
—E-N\FNA-HBE-_ZE-_+tF=A=1+H
1st April 2019 — 30th March 2027 1,527,075
—E-NFEMA-BE-ZE-_+F=A=1H
— Tranche 2 28th March 2018 — 30th March 2027 2,849,550
E_Ht - N\F=ZAZ+N\REZZE=_tF=A=1+H
1st April 2019 — 30th March 2027 1,527,075
—E-AFNA—BE_ZE-_+F=A=1+H
1st April 2020 — 30th March 2027 1,527,075
—E-RFENA-HE-_E-_+F=A=1+H
—Tranche 3 20th March 2019 — 30th March 2027 3,054,150
E=4t —E-NFZA-tHE-Z-_+tF=A=+H
1st April 2020 — 30th March 2027 1,527,075
—ECEFNA-RBETEF=A=1+H
1st April 2021 — 30th March 2027 1,527,075
—E-—FNA—BE_E_+F=A=1+H
— Tranche 4 Date of 2019 annual results announcement —
FErit 30th March 2027 3,054,150
RAABIZ T NFEFEEANSEHE—T - tF=HA=1H
1st April 2021 — 30th March 2027 1,527,075
T —ENMA-RAE-ZE-_t&E=A=1+H
1st April 2022 — 30th March 2027 1,527,075
R —FNMA-—HE-ZT-_+F=A=1+H
23,862,300
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HHE T — \F+_A=+—HItFE
37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 37. BB IR HERT &l )
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) = =—tFBERETE ()
Details of specific categories of options are as follows: (Continued) MEARE 2 R SR RIFHE T - (8)
Grant date Number of options outstanding
28th April 2017 Exercise period at 31st December 2018
B H RZT—NF+=A=+—H
ZE—+FMA=-TNR  {7(EH m AT TR ISR
— Tranche 1 1st June 2018 — 27th April 2027 907,500
—t —E-N\FARA—HEZZ=_+FMA=++tH
1st June 2019 — 27th April 2027 453,750
—NFAA—BE=T-tFWA=1++H
1st June 2020 — 27th April 2027 453,750

T FRNA—HEZZTtFMA=1++tH

— Tranche 2 1st June 2019 — 27th April 2027 907,500
—it —E-NFRA-BEZE_+FMA=+T+H

1st June 2020 — 27th April 2027 453,750
—ETFEXNA-HBE_ZE_tFMNA-++tAR

1st June 2021 — 27th April 2027 453,750

—E-—FXRA-—BHE_ZE_t+FMNA_-_F+H

—Tranche 3 1st June 2020 — 27th April 2027 907,500
E=Ht ZECTFRNA-HBHET+FMA=++tH
1st June 2021 — 27th April 2027 453,750
—F—— i/\ﬂ Hf:_?_timﬂ +‘tE|
1st June 2022 — 27th April 2027 453,750

—E-—FAA—HE_E_t+FWNA-_F+H

— Tranche 4 1st June 2021 — 27th April 2027 907,500
£tk R FRNA-RAEZE-tLFMA=1++H

1st June 2022 — 27th April 2027 453,750
—ECCHFRA-HE-ZT-+FMA=++H

1st June 2023 — 27th April 2027 453,750

=FRA-HE-T_+FMA-—++H

7,260,000
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 HZ=ZF

37. RS R

37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: (Continued)

Grant date

13th December 2017

B B
—T—tF+A+=H

— Tranche 1

—#t

— Tranche 2

—#t

— Tranche 3

E=H#t

— Tranche 4
FErit

Exercise period

171

1st April 2019 — 12th December 2027

—E-NFHA-BE_Z_+F+_A+_H

1st April 2020 — 12th December 2027

T _ZFNA—HRAE_ZT_tF+=-A+=AH

1st April 2021 — 12th December 2027
T FMA-HE_Z

1st April 2020 - 12th December 2027
1st April 2021 — 12th December 2027
T —FMA-—BECZ
1st April 2022 — 12th December 2027

—E-__FpNA—HE_ZE_tF+_-_A+=H

1st April 2021 — 12th December 2027

R —HFMA-HE-T-+F+-A+=H

1st April 2022 — 12th December 2027

T —FNA—HE-_ZT_tF+_-_A+=H

1st April 2023 — 12th December 2027

T —FMA—HE-_ZT_t+tF+-A+=H

1st April 2022 — 12th December 2027
“E-_HFMA-HBE-E
1st April 2023 — 12th December 2027
R =FMHA-—HEC=Z
1st April 2024 — 12th December 2027

“ENA—HE-T_+F+-A+=H

—tF+=A+=H

—tE+-A+=H

—tF+=A+=H

—tE+=-A+=H

—tF+=A+=H

(i) Z=—tFHERETE (@)

—NF+ZA=+—HILLFE

BRRZREERFENT - (8)

Number of options outstanding
at 31st December 2018

RZZE—NFE+=A

=+—E

HATTE AR

208,200

104,100

104,100

208,200

104,100

104,100

208,200

104,100

104,100

208,200

104,100

104,100

1

,665,600
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37. BB RERT &l o)
(i) —FT—LFHERETE ()

TREZAERES (RREF)HHE_F
—tFEREAE CEBRERNEBE-Z
—N\ER=F—tF+=A=+—HIEFEZ

37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees
(including directors) under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and movements

——0 184

in such holdings during the year ended 31st December 2018 and 2017:

SHE 2 R

2018 —EB-N\F
Number of options
BREHA
At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised Adjusted At 31st
Exercise price January during during during during December
per share 2018 the year the year the year the year 2018
RZ2-NE R=B-N\%
Grant date SRITEE —-B-H FREL EREH FRTE Fh#E +-A=t-B
(Note (c)) (Note (c))
() (M (0)
31st March 2017 “Z-t£=f=1-A HK$0.970 20,834,000 - (522,500) (544,500) 4,095,300 23,862,300
097087
28th April 2017 “E2-tEMA=TAR HK$0.909 6,050,000 - - - 1,210,000 7,260,000
0.909787
13th December 2017 “E2-tF+ZAT=R HK$0.867 1,388,000 - - - 277,600 1,665,600
0.867787
28,272,000 - (5225000 (544500) 5582900 32,787,900
Weighted average METHERTEE HK$1.142 - HK$1.019 HK$1.050 HK$0.951 HK$0.951
exercise price per share HKS1.14287 101987 1.050 A7 0.951387 0.951387
Number of options RZB-NF
exercisable at TZA=1-H
315t December 2018 ATENBRESR 7,971,975
Weighted average R=2-NF
exercise price per share T-A=1-H
of options exercisable ATENBREN HK$0.963
at 31st December 2018 METABRTER 0.963 /87
Weighted average TR 8.20 years
remaining contractual life ~ AHELH 820 %
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-
37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 37. IR AEETE )
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) ==—tFERETE )
2017 —T—+fF
Number of options
iRERE
Granted Lapsed Exercised Adjusted At 31st
Exercise price during during during during December
per share the year the year the year the year 2017
i tF
Grant date BR{IEE R ERKkiR ERfie EREE
(Note (a)) (Note (a))
(M @) (FzE @)
31st March 2017 —Z—+f=h=1-H HK$1.164 - 19,140,000 (220,000) - 1,914,000 20,834,000
1164870
28th April 2017 (Note (b)) “TEMAZTAR(MED)  HK$1.091 - 5,500,000 - - 550,000 6,050,000
10917
13th December 2017 “T—t#+-A+=H HK$1.040 - 1,388,000 - - - 1,388,000
10407
- 608000 (220000) - 2464000 28272,000
Weighted average MEFSERTEE - HK$1.250 HK$1.164 - HK$1.148 HK$1.142
exercise price per share - 125057 116457 114857 118571
Number of options RIB—t%
exercisable at T-A=1-A
31st December 2017 A ERER A 2,604,250
Weighted average RIB—t%
exercise price per share +-A=t-H
of options exercisable afTEREREN HK$1.164
at 31t December 2017 MERSERTER 1164557
Weighted average IETRIER 9.3 years
remaining contractual life RNES 93%

Notes: B &E -

(@) The number of outstanding share options and exercise price per share have (@) MARTTEZERESE RSRITEEEEE
been adjusted as a result of the 2017 Bonus Issue (Note 31(iii)), details of the — T F BT (M EE31G) (EFAE -
adjustments are disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 8th June 2017. FARFEEBRAARBHAZZT —LEFX

ANBZRAE -

(b) The offers for a total number of 6,500,000 options were made to eligible (b) #EEMHESA6,500,000/0  HELEFAEE
participants, in which an offer of 1,000,000 options was not accepted by an & 22 125 #9 1,000,000 f% i A% HE K 457 3% 4R -
eligible participant, pursuant to 2017 Share Option Scheme, the offer of these BIE-T - FHERETE  ZEREZELN
options was automatically lapsed and became null and void. BEEKRM - W RER -

(0 The number of outstanding share options and exercise price per share have (0 WMARTTIEZEREZE RERITEERRE
been adjusted as a result of the 2018 Bonus Issue (Note 31(v)), details of the =T \FBITAR (FIFE31(v) (EFHE -
adjustments are disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 8th June 2018. BHBERERARAIBHA=Z—/\F<A

NBZRE -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited E &) R &5 E AR A A 185 ——



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE —T—\F+_A=+—HILtFE

37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2018, there was no share options
granted under 2017 Share Option Scheme. In respect of the share options
granted during the year ended 31st December 2017, the estimated fair

37. BB RERT &l o)
(i) —FT—LFHERETE ()

RBE_Z—N\FE+-_A=+—HIFE -
WRE T FREBREE T R
HemhEgz—_ZE—+F+-_HA=+—H

IFFERBRBRET S - PR B S

values of the options on the dates of grant were calculated using the

binomial lattice model. The estimated fair values were ranging from WEREAABEDEAZEAMBEER
HK$0.286 to HK$0.450 per share. The inputs into the model were as TE - BHAABENTER0286BTE
follows: 0.450/8 7T ° ZBEAH T BRAZIRMAT
Granted on Granted on Granted on
31st March 2017 28th April 2017  13th December 2017
RZTE—+F RZZE—+F RZZE—+F
=RA=+—HB#&H MAZ+N\BEH
Share price at grant date R B BRI RR(E HK$1.25 HK$1.08 HK$0.90
1.25787C 1.08787T 0.90/87T
Exercise price at grant date R B BATEE HK$1.28 HK$1.20 HK$1.04
1.28 7T 1.207T 1.04% 7T
Expected volatility TEEDR I8 50% 50% 50%
Option life A% #E 4 HA 10 years 10 years 10 years
104 104F 104F
Risk-free rate R | =R 1.49% 1.41% 1.76%
Expected dividend TEEARR S 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company for the closing share price for the period of 7 to 8 years before
the date of grant.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, the Group recognised total
expense of approximately HK$3,221,000 (2017: HK$4,299,000) in relation
to equity-settled share-based payment transactions under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme and included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

TR R AR B AT EENFHEAR
AR T E 2 BEKIREE °

RBE-_T—\GE+-A=+—HItFE "
AEENGEBRSRTERE_FT—LFH
AR HERT 81T LA B £ A5 B0 32 {5 2 48 B 32 4
3,221,000 7% (= F — 4 : 4,299,000

with a corresponding credit to the share-based payment reserve. 70) W BARR 1D R B S (A RE R AR ©
REE—ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILEFE "
from grantees for taking up the shares under the options amounted to AR A BLER AR BB S IR T 2 Bt i < H RO 48
HK$72. RERT72ET

The total consideration received during the year ended 31st December 2017
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37. B RERT 8l e
(iii) GDI BB R RSt &l

37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(iii) GDI Share Option Scheme

The adoption of the share option scheme (“GDI Share Option Scheme”)
of a subsidiary of the Company, Grid Dynamics International Inc. (“Grid
Dynamics”), were approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting on 21st December 2018 (the “Adoption Date”).
The GDI Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years
from 21st December 2018 or until its termination by the board of directors
of Grid Dynamics (“GDI Board”), whichever is earlier.

The purpose of the GDI Share Option Scheme is to advance the interests
of Grid Dynamics and its shareholders by providing an incentive to attract,
retain and reward persons performing services for Grid Dynamics and any
entities that Grid Dynamics designates as within Grid Dynamics, its parent
companies or subsidiaries (the “Participating Company Group”) and by
motivating such persons to contribute to the growth and profitability of Grid
Dynamics.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the GDI Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of Grid Dynamics which, unless otherwise permitted under
the Listing Rules, must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of Grid Dynamics's shares in issue as at 21st December 2018, the date of
approval of the adoption of the GDI Share Option Scheme. Grid Dynamics
may seek approval by its shareholders and the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting to refresh the 10% limit such that the total number of
the Grid Dynamics’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the GDI Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of Grid Dynamics under the limit as “refreshed” shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of the Grid Dynamics's shares in issue as at
the date of approval to refresh such limit. Grid Dynamics may seek separate
approval by its shareholders and the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting for granting options beyond the 10% limit above, provided that the
options in excess of such limit are granted only to participants specifically
identified by Grid Dynamics and the Company before such approval is
sought.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 5B Z 5B BR A 7

R-ZB—NE+-A-+—HB([HFHRA )8
T2 BRREFR RS B ERM AR A B A
7] Grid Dynamics International, Inc. ([ Grid
Dynamics]) 2 f A% 4 &t & ([ GDI % A% # 51
)  HERRBRPH=_Z—\F+=A
—+—HF T 3L E £ Grid Dynamics &=
F2((GDESE DRILFE REERE -

GDIBE IR #E 5t 21 & 12 35 1B 17 (1 M B A IR
5l - #% B K %% E) A& Grid Dynamics X Grid
Dynamics 5 7E A2 EQ Al E A E AR
BOAT([2EARSE])WEBHEER
At AGrid Dynamics#)iE & & B FItEEEf -
W MR HE Grid Dynamics N AX R B9 FzS

AR ¥ GDI 88 f% #& 51 2] X Grid Dynamics {E a]
H bR AT 2118 T 1% O FT B RE AR 1T
ERF AT THIR DB S - A HTFHBNRZ
T N\FE+ZAZ+— B (BMHEZRMAGDI
BIREAEIZER) B BITRMAEHER 10% °
Grid Dynamics A = 3K H IR 3R R AR A B AR R
MIRERARE FHEEF10% ER - B
[#& B3 | EIRBIE GDIBE R 5T & & Grid
Dynamics {3 {a] EL fth 5 A& 1 5 &1 8 T 4% H &Y
Fr 78 R AR A T (RS AT A TV AR (D 4B B - 1
SHRBIEENZ FRE B2 BITRMNER
#910% ° Grid Dynamics A] 55775 K HL A& 3
BRARBRRNIRRAG EHE - AR
W10% FRREVEEARKE - BB Z FREVEE
Ji% 1 {£ 7] #% F Grid Dynamics & KA Al Z= 3K
BEE R IR 28 o

187 &——



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VAN
7 N =]

B RS Rk Byt

For the year ended 31st December 2018 HE—_ZT—\F+_-_A=+—BILtFE

37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
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(iii) GDI Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the aggregate
number of Grid Dynamics’s shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
Grid Dynamics’s shares in issue (the “Single Participant Limit”).

Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
participants and to have taken effect when the duplicate of the stock option
agreement comprising acceptance of the offer has been duly signed by the
participants within 28 days. No payment is required to accept an offer.

The GDI Board shall have the full and final power and authority, in its
discretion, to determine any minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must
be achieved before an option can be exercised.

The options will be exercisable until the expiration of ten years after the
effective date of grant of such option, or such other applicable date (i.e.
no incentive stock option granted to a person who, at the time an option
is granted to such person, owns stock possessing more than ten percent of
the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Participating
Company Group, shall be exercisable after the expiration of five years after
the effective date of grant of such option, and with the exception of (i) an
option granted to an officer, a director of the Participating Company Group
(the “GDI Scheme Director”) or a consultant, a person engaged to provide
consulting or advisory services (other than as an employee or a GDI Scheme
Director) to the Participating Company Group and (ii) an option that is
exercisable based on the accomplishment of specific performance-based
milestones, no option shall become exercisable at a rate less than twenty
percent per year over a period of five years from the effective date of grant
of such option, subject to the participant’s continued service).

The exercise price for each option will be determined by the GDI Board
and shall be not less than the fair market value of a Grid Dynamics’s
share, as determined by an independent third party valuation company
engaged by Grid Dynamics, on the effective date of grant of the option.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, an option may be granted with an exercise
price lower than the minimum exercise price set forth above if such option
is granted pursuant to an assumption or substitution for another option in
a manner qualifying under the provisions of Section 424(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986. However, the exercise price of options to be granted
after the Company has resolved to seek a separate listing of Grid Dynamics
on any stock exchange and up to the listing date of Grid Dynamics must be
not lower than the new issue price (if any).
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(iii) GDI B B #E 5+ 8 (&)

BREERRER LS - REM 12 18 A B N E
RTBuaER2EENERE(BFEET
158 R 1w AR AT (50 O RS AR ) JE 7T 168 T 28 4T IS
F 31T # Grid Dynamics K i {5 & - 18
HBIBE 217H Grid Dynamics BN BEE) 1%
(MERI2EEPREE])

BRI I 2 B A (RIERMEL) K20
ER2B8RAEANRE - AIBRERERS
ERHIWESEERAARER - BAREK
MERINK -

GDIEFSHA BB T2 RREENMER
REBRRETENMARE Z&EHIR
N/ RAELTIE AR AR AT B /RE S A (Ef] 348
BiR e

BRAERA TITEEEAMBERELN A S
‘EFEW XEREMERBREN WA
7 2 T IR R B B R R A
R H PR AFREMETSITRE @ MR
TERRS () BRELETERABE - 2
HENREEzES ([GDIFHEIES |) M
(KR EEHGDIF B ERIERERSE
AFEEREHERR KA AREA L) K (i)
BN BITRDEN TR ERNRERRE
MME @ E2EEEERERGHBEILT -
B A BB B A A B R FHRAE
MBRENMFAEREFAED Z Z T X
T Bk -

BOERENITEEERGD ESSRIEE
E A BRENERITEETESER
Grid Dynamics B9 B% 10 74 5% 1 f AR 48 A 2 B
B ATmE - @EH LMHAE - BiRE
RIEZFE—NNANFEBRBAFYBES
424(a) FIRENF I - IRIES —ERRESN
BRRFIBERK L - AIZERAE R AMER £
Bt 2 SRARATEE BRI TRER D - AW - B
AN B B R = 3K Grid Dynamics B ME (A &
£ 5B LT & EZ Grid Dynamics
£ B ERER R R B IR A T R B NFIER
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37. BB FEST &l ()
(iii) GDI B A 81 (1)
B MRS T

37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(iii) GDI Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Grant date
21st December 2018
R A

Exercise period

Number of options outstanding
at 31st December 2018
R=ZB-N\F+=A=+—H

ZE-N\F+=H=+—H TS i RAT RS IR R B
Grid Dynamics Senior ¥ Grid Dynamics 2R EEE
Management Grant (MizE (a) & (<)
(Note (a) and (c))
— Tranche 1 12th November 2018 — 11th November 2028 531,875
—#t —N\F+—A+=ZHBE=Z=-N\F+—A+—H
— Tranche 2 1st January 2019 — 11th November 2028 531,875
FHE —NF—A—RAE=T-)\F+—A+—H
— Tranche 3 1st January 2020 — 11th November 2028 531,875
E=4t —E-TF-A—HEZZ-/\F+—A+—H
— Tranche 4 1st January 2021 — 11th November 2028 531,875
FErt B F—-A-HEZZE-N\Ft+—HA+—H
Grid Dynamics ¥ Grid Dynamics E&
Employees Grant (FfE (b) % (c))
(Note (b) and (c))
— Tranche 1 12th November 2018 — 11th November 2028 30,625
i T2 N\FEt+—A+t=-RAE_Z-_/\FE+—A+—H
— Tranche 2 12th November 2019 — 11th November 2028 30,625
F ik —hE+—A+=-AZ=Z-_/\F+—A+—H
— Tranche 3 12th November 2020 — 11th November 2028 30,625
F=# —ECRF+ A+ ZBREZ-/\F+—A+—H
— Tranche 4 12th November 2021 — 11th November 2028 30,625
£tk B —F+—A+t=-RAE=Z2=-)/\F+—A+—H
2,250,000

Notes:

(a)

Immediately prior to the consummation of a change in control of Grid Dynamics

(including ownership change event as defined in the appendix to the Company’s
Circular dated 3rd December 2018 or the liquidation or dissolution of Grid
Dynamics), all the unvested options shall automatically vest in full.

Immediately prior to the consummation of a change in control of Grid Dynamics

(including ownership change event as defined in the appendix to the Company’s
Circular dated 3rd December 2018 or the liquidation or dissolution of Grid
Dynamics), the vesting of options shall accelerate by an additional twelve months.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB R & E R AR

P

(@) B Grid Dynamics#EHIEE S (BER
RAIRZT—N\F+A=BEL 2 BRI
P57 2 G 1 2 B 4 SlOB B Sk iR AK Grid
Dynamics) Al + P78 7 55 & fE AR B BB 2L
58 -

(b) E#EEFEAK Grid Dynamics#EHIEE S (BIER
RAIRZT—N\F+A=BEL 2 BRI
P57 2 G 1 2 B 4 SO B SR AK Grid
Dynamics) A * BT # T Grid Dynamics {& 8
ZBBIE BB S IMERT T =@ A
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37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(iii) GDI Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

Notwithstanding the foregoing vesting schedules, certain options may be
exercised by the participants for issuance of both vested and unvested Grid
Dynamics’s shares. In the event a participant elects to exercise the unvested
options, the unvested Grid Dynamics’s shares issued thereunder shall be treated as
restricted stock are entitled to the same rights as vested Grid Dynamics's shares,
including rights to receive dividends or other distributions to shareholders of Grid
Dynamics as well as the right to vote the shares, save that, the holder shall not
transfer, assign or dispose of any interest in the unvested Grid Dynamics's shares,
which is subject to a right of repurchase in favor of Grid Dynamics in the event
the participant (i) ceases to provide services to Grid Dynamics or (ii) attempts
to dispose of such restricted stock which are issued pursuant to the exercise of
unvested options. The restricted shares will continue to vest in accordance with
the above vesting schedule and the transfer restriction and Grid Dynamics’s right
of repurchase shall lapse in accordance with the above vesting schedule.

The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees
(including directors) of Grid Dynamics under the GDI Share Option Scheme
and movements in such holdings during the year ended 31st December

37. BB IR REEH Bl e

(iii) GDI BB IR g =t & ()
B : (40

(c)

BEAMLEBRER 28NS
THEAR R 1TE 558 &R B8 Grid Dynamics
B&1h o 2 EEEBITHRARBBEERE B
1 1T B 2K 83 /8 Grid Dynamics % {5 & 1 47
REBRFIRD - =6 EE EE Grid Dynamics
LARBRE S, BIEERKERR B E
MR RS IR KR DI (EFE ATGE
% ok i & (£ 1] K 5% /& Grid Dynamics % 17 #
# ) MM ER A TIESR - Bl Grid Dynamics
5 18 [ K 57 BB /9 Grid Dynamics A& 1% © (i)
22 E1 25 48 |1 [ Grid Dynamics 2 £ AR 75+ 3k
(N2HEREEZEARGEERERT
M 21T R R HIAR(D o PR HIARD 1§ 1R IR
FBERERRERRTMEERE - &
Grid Dynamics 5] 842 Fi| FEAR & L it 57 8 <y
EJES

TER 5 Grid Dynamics BB (BIEE )
BGDIERENECERERNBE=Z
—\Ft+-A=+—ALEEZSHEZE
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2018: RS -
Number of options
BREHR
Exercise At Granted Lapsed Exercised At
price 1st January during during during 31st December
per share PUNE] the year the year the year PUNE]
R=B-N\F
Grant date BRITHEE FREH FREH FRfE T=A=1-H
21st December 2018 “E-\ft=A=t+-H UsD7.54 - 2,250,000 - - 2,250,000
Weighted average MEFIERITHE
exercise price per share - UsD7.54 - - UsD7.54
Number of options RIZ-N\E
exercisable at T=H=r=0
31st December 2018 ATRNERERE 562,500
Weighted average RZB-N\F
exercise price per share +=B=1+-8
of options exercisable AT ENEREN
at 31st December 2018 MEFHERITHRE UsD7.54
Weighted average MEFHHBENER
remaining contractual life 9.9 years
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37.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(iii) GDI Share Option Scheme (Continued)

In respect of the share options granted during the year ended 31st
December 2018, the estimated fair values of the options on the dates
of grant were calculated using the binomial option pricing model. The
estimated fair values amounted to USD2.16 per share. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

Share price at grant date AR B EAROAR(E
Exercise price at grant date IR B B TE(E
Expected volatility TEHRIR 1R

Option life N E ER
Risk-free rate A [ B R 2
Expected dividend TEHARR 2

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the comparable companies of Grid Dynamics for the closing share price for
the period of 10 years before the date of grant.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, the Group recognised total
expense of approximately HK$19,862,000 (2017: Nil) in relation to equity-
settled share-based payment transactions under the GDI Share Option
Scheme and included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss with a
corresponding credit to the share-based payment reserve.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB R & E R AR

37. B RERT 8l e
(iii) GDI i IR RE =T &l ()

FRZZE—N\F+ZRA=1+—HIFEHMH
R F - R B A0 ER
BARBETRA-BNEEERNGE
BARAREBEAFR216ET « ZEAE
TERABBOT :

Granted on
21st December
2018

R-ZB—N\F
+=—A=+—A8H

UsD7.90
uUsD7.54
39.28%
9.9 years
2.79%
4.0%

& HA K 8 73 LA X B HA A1+ 4F 8 Grid
Dynamics 2t 82 A A AR 4 W 7 (B 2 38 7 0K
TBEETE °

REBEE-Z—\E+-_A=+—HI=FE
REBERERE Bk P R GDI R ET 2
TLARR D R EGE 2 4875249 19,862,000
BIL(ZZT—CF - 8) TR ARG AERS
HREEAR
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

——= 192

On 16th December 2016, the Company, GDD International Holding Company
and GDD International Merger Company, indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, entered into an agreement and plan of merger (“Merger
Agreement”) with Grid Dynamics and BGV I, LP, the representative of the
holders of the shares or vested options of Grid Dynamics (the “Securityholders
Representative”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to acquire the entire share
capital of Grid Dynamics Group (the “Acquisition”). Details of the Acquisition are
set out in the Company’s circular dated 6th March 2017 and the Acquisition was
completed on 7th April 2017 (the “Completion Date"”).

The transaction was made as part of the Group’s strategy to provide third
platform technologies, including cloud, mobile, big data and analytics and social
business and to expand the Group’s geographical coverage beyond Asia Pacific.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the total consideration for the
Acquisition (the “Purchase Consideration”) are as follows:

(a) Cash consideration

A purchase price of approximately USD100,000,000 plus certain
adjustments based on the net asset value on Completion Date, to be paid
by the Company in cash, USD2,000,000 of which will be paid on or before
the first anniversary of the Completion Date; and

(b) Contingent Consideration

An earnout payment in the sum of up to USD 18,000,000 to be paid by the
Company in cash and in two instalments with each instalment to be paid no
later than 10 business days following the date upon which the determination
of the earnout payment for each earnout period becomes final and binding
upon the Company and the Securityholders Representative, subject to Grid
Dynamics Group meet with the agreed revenue target and profit before tax
target in respect of each relevant earnout period.
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38. WEE T 2 B )

R 5ERK B 5t U B Grid Dynamics & @ ] 3% 51 & &

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Grid Dynamics Group

acquired at the Completion Date is as follows: BBz ARBENT :
HK$'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment LER &G 6,882
Intangible assets mRAE 125,150
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTIS T E EE 9,145
Trade receivables FEWE 578 73,300
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAibfEUEIE « 24 RIENFRIE 6,694
Amount due from customers for contract work A4 TIREWE P KIAE 10,433
Tax recoverable AL EI R TR 36,679
Bank balances and cash BITERRIES 48,651
Other payables and accruals HAhFEFIE R EFTE R (34,057)
Receipts in advance TEY s (1,088)
Income tax liabilities FrissiatE (934)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTSHAE (44,354)
Net identifiable assets acquired BEESAHEBIEEFE 236,501
Goodwill (Note 21) R (st 21) 764,920
1,001,421
Purchase Consideration satisfied by KEREZAAR
— Cash (including cash acquired at -Be (PEETKBEREZHE)
Completion Date) 868,751
— Contingent consideration payable, - ERSARENARE
at fair value 132,670
1,001,421

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of Grid Dynamics B RAUEE Grid Dynamics EBIR &R 2 A HTa0 T -

Group is as follows:

HK$'000
THET

BEfREeNRE 819,985
EEEReRREEEY (48,651)

Cash consideration paid
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

Cash outflow in respect of the acquisition AU EE Grid Dynamics 2@ 2 38 £ 7 H
of Grid Dynamics Group 771,334

EREBAHELZBHERAHRA - BIEES
HE o A AN ZRBERBLERES
FATRER S R « WASE N ~ RIRTH 53R K B
BEBHFIEEEZ SR - ZEF DL EEEE

Goodwill arose in the above business combination as the cost of combination
included a control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of expected
synergies, revenue growth, future market development and the assembled

workforce. These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because D RHER - IR EN ARES IR A E T
they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. None RIEAE - TEFT = THE 4 2 BT A B EHIRR

of the goodwill arising on the Acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax MIEA®E -

purposes.
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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The Group incurred transaction costs of approximately HK$14,600,000 for
the Acquisition. The transaction costs of approximately HK$9,025,000 have
been expensed and are included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31st December 2017, and the
remaining portion of approximately HK$5,575,000 are included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31st
December 2016.

Since the Acquisition, Grid Dynamics Group contributed approximately
HK$411,446,000 to the Group's revenue and profit before income tax of
approximately HK$74,130,000 to the Group for the year ended 31st December
2017.

Had the Acquisition been effected at the beginning of the year, the total amount
of revenue and profit before income tax of Grid Dynamics Group for the year
ended 31st December 2017 would have been approximately HK$2,052,922,000
and HK$93,971,000, respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
the operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed at the beginning of the year, nor is it intended to be
a projection of future results.

Depending on the upcoming financial performance of Grid Dynamics Group,
the contingent consideration payable for the Acquisition may range from nil
to USD18,000,000. The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments
that the Group could be required to make under this arrangement can be up
to USD18,000,000. The fair value of the amount payable of approximately
USD17,075,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$132,670,000) was recognised
as contingent consideration payable at the Completion Date. The amount
was estimated based on an assumed probability weighting in fulfilling the
performance requirements, using a discount rate of 3.18%. During the year
ended 31st December 2018, fair value change of approximately USD395,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,093,000) (2017: USD413,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,221,000)) was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the contingent consideration.

As at 31st December 2018, the purchase consideration for cash and
contingent components of approximately USD1,103,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$8,639,000) (2017: USD6,276,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$49,057,000)) and approximately USD8,883,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$69,565,000) (2017: USD17,488,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$136,691,000)) remained unpaid, of which HK$8,639,000
(2017: HK$49,057,000) was included in other payables and accruals and
HK$69,565,000 (2017: HK$69,429,000) and nil (2017: HK$67,262,000) was
included in current and non-current portion of contingent consideration payable,
respectively.
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39.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39. A& A BB #EA R &
THE COMPANY

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B RE 385 628
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AR ZIEE 1 1
Prepayments Tt RIE - 340
Deferred income tax assets REFTIS R EE 102 241
488 1,210
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAbFEWEIE - Re RIERRIE 440 5,854
Amount due from ultimate holding company IR A RIR R - 2
Amount due from immediate holding company — EIZEEE A EIRZR 1,072 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries {R)EENCIDNEN 895,217 816,971
Amount due from a related company — [ERAE A B R 64 61
Tax recoverable AT e B IE 416 =
Bank balances and cash RITER MBS 2,125 12,845
899,334 835,733
Total assets BEE 899,822 836,943
Equity attributable to equity holders EATRAIFE AEGER
of the Company
Share capital &N 80,522 67,054
Share premium B = B AR 377,146 376,464
Reserves (Note) fE (B =E) 115,110 119,267
Total equity AR 572,778 562,785
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Borrowings B8 257,425 245,182
Current liabilities wREAE
Other payables and accruals H AN FIE R EFHE R 7,059 11,738
Amount due to ultimate holding company = ¢ SUT NG 88 =
Amount due to a subsidiary R—HEM B A RIFIE 62,472 17,238
69,619 28,976
Total liabilities HefE 327,044 274,158
Total equity and liabilities BERRAE 899,822 836,943
Net current assets BN E R R 829,715 806,757
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBESE 830,203 807,967
Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 20th March EEEgR T - NF=ZA= T+ BHEWEET
2019. o
LI Wei WANG Yueou
= TEB
Director Director
EF EE
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39.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39.7 2 BB #AR R 3R )

TH E COMPANY (Continued)

Note: The movement of the Company’s reserves are as follows:

MisE : ARBREFHESHMAT

Share-based

Convertible payment
bonds reserve reserve Retained
Special reserve AR AR B ER earnings
HRlfRE BHEE X tktE REEF
(Note (i)
(BFEE (i)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT FTHT
At 1st January 2017 R=ZE—+F—F—H 95,513 - 126 (438) 95,201
Profit for the year F R F - = = 13,932 13,932
Recognition of equity-settled RUAR D AER S 2%
share-based payments - - 4,299 - 4,299
Issue of ordinary shares on bonus issue BITAR TR T2 SRR = = = (5,262) (5,262)
Equity component of convertible bonds ARREFERDD - 15,536 - - 15,536
Issue of ordinary shares upon conversion AR EHFEIAR 31T
of convertible bonds LiEik - (4,439) - = (4,439)
At 315t December 2017 R-E—tF+-A=+—H
and 1st January 2018 k=Z-\F—HA—H 95,513 11,097 4,425 8,232 119,267
Profit for the year FREH = = = 12,924 12,924
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise EBRER R T TBR
of share options - - (183) - (183)
Issue of ordinary shares on bonus issue BTART T2 ERR - - = (13,414) (13,414)
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividend RIARERS - - - 2 2
Recognition of equity-settled BRURD AERR T2 HAX
share-based payments - - 3,221 - 3,221
Lapse of share options transferred BRERBRAMNZ
to retained earnings R E = = 37) 37 =
Final dividend for the year ended REEZE-_T—tF+-R=1—H
31st December 2017 LFEZ RS = = = (6,707) (6,707)
At 31st December 2018 R=B-N\E+=A=t—-H 95,513 11,097 7,426 1,074 115,110

(i)  The special reserve of the Company represents the difference between the par
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the issued share capital
of the subsidiaries and the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired in prior
years. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus shall not be distributable if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(2)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

(i) As at 31st December 2018, in the opinion of the directors, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$96,587,000 (2017: HK$103,745,000).
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(ii)

ARBZFHIFEEENEEFEARR R AR
AR BITRAMET 2RO EEE
kBB AR EEFEZEZHE - REBEER
E-NAN—FRRDE(KER]) HBEERE
BRAAETIIEE - ABABBTAHS
I

(1) ARBERERIMEL N RREERER
REHR SN RE - X

Q) ARABREZAEREESENIRE
BEREBETRAARBROEERZ
#A o

R-_TE—NE+-_A=+—"H EFR
B AR TFARRARBRAEEAAZHE
5B 4 596,587,000 T(—Z T — L & ¢
103,745,000587T) °
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> M TAY
40.CASH FLOW INFORMATION 40. BT REEH
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REEKZREWA
2018 2017
—Z2-NE —E— 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Profit before income tax R PAS 35 Al g A 127,335 69,748
Adjustments for: KRR
— Share of results of associates (Note 22) — PRGBS A R AR (7R 22) 5,428 7,111
— Amortisation of intangible assets -\ AR (MEE21)
(Note 21) 11,057 7,304
— Depreciation and amortisation of - % - BERBRETER
property, plant and equipment B (FI5E19)
(Note 19) 20,906 20,764
— Loss on disposal of property, plant - HEMHE  BERZREZ
and equipment (Note 9) E518 (Ffi3E9) 22 800
— Loss on disposal of intangible assets - HERTEEZERE 30 =
— Impairment loss on interests in - B N al R REER
associates (Note 22) (B=E22) 11,900 4,400
— Fair value gain on revaluation of - BEREMEZ AREE
investment properties (Note 20) Wezs (FiEE20) (1,700) (1,700)
— Provision for obsolete inventories, - REFERE2FE (ME12)
net (Note 12) 43 78
— Interest income (Note 8) - FIBUA (FI=ES) (785) (137)
— Interest expenses (Note 11) - MEZ M (FEE11) 22,726 17,205
— Equity-settled share-based payment - UM BERI N2 X
expenses 23,083 4,299
— Provision for customers’ claim - BPRERE - 3,642
— Provision for impairment of - B E 5 BRI B
trade receivables (Note 26) (MtE26) 4,254 541
— Provision for impairment of — Bt FEMGRIE 2 R (B R
other receivables 832 -
— Bad debt expenses — AR N 14 =
— Reversal of provision for impairment - RYE 5 IR R E R
of trade receivables (Note 26) (Ff=E26) (289) (107)
— Transaction costs for acquisition &) EYNG o
of subsidiaries RGN - 9,025
— Write off of inventories - FEMEH 98 -
— Changes in fair value on contingent - ERNSAREZ AR EEE
consideration payable (Note 6(d)) (M 6(d)) 3,093 3,221
Changes in working capital: LEESEE)
— Inventories -FE (50,653) 255
— Trade receivables - W E 5 5/0E (41,469) (39,160)
— Finance lease receivables - EWEE R ERIE 2,443 1,382
— Other receivables, deposits - HiEWFIE ~ e Rk
and prepayments SEERE/ O (4,838) (5,605)
— Amounts due from customers for - AN IREREFHE
contract work/contract assets BHEE (56,023) 29,255
— Restricted bank deposits - ZIRHIRITER 3,388 (3,247)
— Trade payables - BN E 558 81,069 (14,652)
— Other payables and accruals — Bt R R FEET B 18,508 (1,795)
— Receipts in advance — TEB 5,019 (1,407)
Cash generated from operations KEEB 2R BA 185,491 111,220
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40.CASH FLOW INFORMATION 0. REREEHR
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RIEETEBELENEBWEHIER
activities
The table below set out the reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing TREIEE_Z-NF+-A=+—HI
activities for the year ended 31st December 2018: FERMERDEENABHEE
Bank Convertible
borrowings bonds Total
RITEE ARRES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
(Note)
(PH=E)
At 1st January 2017 R=E—+tF—HF—H 10,008 - 10,008
Cash flows Heng
— Net proceeds from bank borrowings - RITEEMEHIEERE 246,546 - 246,546
— Repayment of bank borrowings - BRRITEE (10,000) - (10,000)
— Interest paid -BRHE (5911) - (5,911)
— Net proceeds from issuance of - BT RRES 2
convertible bonds PG HORFE - 345,947 345,947
Non-cash changes FRLEH)
— Finance costs (Note 11) - B AR (BIEE11) 7,284 9,910 17,194
— Conversion of Convertible Bonds - B[R ES - (95,123) (95,123)
— Equity component of Convertible Bonds - AIRRES 2 R - (15,536) (15,536)
— Derivative component of Convertible Bonds - Al &% 2 $74E T AZSH - (16) (16)
At 31st December 2017 RZZ—+E+-A=+—H
and 1st January 2018 k=Z—-NF—HA—H 247,927 245,182 493,109
Cash flows Heng
— Repayment of bank borrowings - BRRITEE (25,000) - (25,000)
— Interest paid - BRHE (9,044) - (9,044)
Non-cash changes FEHRLH
~ Finance costs (Note 11) — BAERCA (Bt 11) 10,436 12,243 22,679
At 31st December 2018 R=Z-N\E+=A=+-H 224,319 257,425 481,744
Note: Bff%E
The following table shows the breakdown of the bank borrowings and interest TREIVR-ZE-NER_T—+F+-_A=1+—HE
payables as at 31st December 2018 and 2017: TEERERFISZH4A :
2018 2017
—2-N\E —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Bank borrowings (Note 35(i)) RITIEE (PifaE 35()) 224,290 247,800
Interest payable (included in RS (BEEEMENTERETEAA)
other payables and accruals) 29 127
224,319 247,927
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41.OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31st December 2018, the Group had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of certain of its

office premises, staff quarter and computer equipment which fall due as follows:

M. EEBNAE

For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE—T—\F+_A=+—HItFE

R-F—\F+_A=+—0  AEERETA
HEHEFENAN T BB E THOEDE
BTHEEREMZB I ARRSEROSTAED

T
2018 2017
—Z2-N\E —FT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Within one year —FR 19,890 19,895
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FERAFA 2,123 15,137
Later than 5 years hF% 7 1,897
22,020 36,929

Leases for office premises, staff quarter and computer equipment are negotiated
for an average term of one to five years (2017: one to five years) and the rentals

are fixed over the terms of the leases.

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

42, 8 A A

MAEYR  BIEEREMRRELEOTHR
—ERFEH-R(ZE—tF: —=0F) H

2018 2017
—E-N\F ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Contracted but not provided for: [EHESEE R
Capital expenditure in respect of property, Y% - B KRB EARRS
plant and equipment 654 208
Capital expenditure in respect of BHTAZRE 2 EARRE
investment in equity instrument 10,816 11,367
11,470 11,575

43. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

At 31st December 2018, the Group had contracted with tenants and an associate

in respect of office premises under operating leases as follows:

43. R EFBE R

RZZE—N\F+ZA=1+—H XEEEHHQ
Y2 EFERLEME P kS AR R0
T

2018 2017

—Z2-N\E —FT—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHIT

Not later than one year —FR 4,716 2,574
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FERAFA 4,304 11
9,020 2,585

Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of one to five years
(2017: one to two years) and the rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

MAEMEZBOFHE-—ERFER R (=

T—tF: —E=2F) HERBEORREE
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44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES M. HAREE

As at 31st December 2018, the Group had approximately HK$726,000 (2017:
HK$772,000) restricted bank deposit held as security for performance bonds. As
at 31st December 2018, performance bonds of approximately HK$68,536,000
(2017: HK$63,299,000) have been issued by the bank on behalf of the Group to
customers as security of contracts.

45.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December 2018, land and buildings with carrying amount of
HK$280,700,000 (2017: HK$271,950,000) (Note 19) and investment properties
with carrying amount of HK$54,000,000 (2017: HK$52,300,000) (Note 20) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31st December 2018, the Group’s restricted bank deposits of approximately
HK$762,000 (2017: HK$772,000) were pledged to secure the performance
bonds of the Group (Note 30).

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

——= 200

As at 31st December 2018, Hong Kong Teamsun own 56.54% (2017:
56.58%) of the Company’s shares. The remaining 43.46% (2017: 43.42%) of
the Company’s shares are widely held. The ultimate holding company of the
Company is Teamsun.

(a) Transactions with related parties

Nature of transaction REMHE

Ultimate holding company: BAERAR :
Expenses charged to the Group AERS N ZHAZ
Fellow subsidiaries: ERMEQR :

Service fee charged to the Group* REB T HHRGE
The associates: BERNT

Sales by the Group AEBHE

Purchases by the Group AEBERE

Staff costs charged by the Group AEEGRZBIHAY
Rental income charged by the Group REE Rz U

RZZE—N\F+—A=+—8  AEBZZREH
SRITTF 3 #) 726,000 70 (ZZ —+ 4 : 772,000
BIT)EREBANRBZER - R=ZT—N\F
+ZA=+—8  RIIREAEBLTRFPIEA
A HIEIR 2 B AIRTE #97568,536,000 7L (=T
—ti-&z%ﬁm%n>

EERH

R=ZZF—N\F+—A=+—8 AEEZ L+
K F 2 B M % 58 4280,700,0008 T ( =
—t4F 1 271,950,000 70) (KizE19) RI&EE Y
% 2 BRME 4 %8 /454,000,000 L (=T — £ :
52,300,000787T) (Mi7E20) B AIEALE 2 $R1T
BE 2 A o

#—::—)\¢+—HZ+—E C RNEE 2 ZRF

1T1F %) 762,000 T (= ZF—+H4 : 772,000
ﬁém)EﬁHf’EZK%IZEi’Jﬁ 2 WA (I E
30) °

46.BAEATRS

R-ZZ—NE+_A=+—H8 K EBEHX
REBARRARMLD 256.54% (=T — & :
56.58%) ' #2 N 43.46% (ZF—+F : 43.42%)
DB EMATFIEE - ARRIRKIERAR A
EREBRAK -

(a) HRABEA T ZXR S

Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at normal
commercial terms that are consistently applied to all customers and vendors.

Rental income was transacted with reference to the rental rates prevailing in
the market.
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2018 2017
=E-N\E =T
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
20 100
244 339
3,281 -
4,170 7,389
123 122
367 363
EmkBEERRAMAEFRER —RERAZE
FBRRGTETRS -
MERATLETSE AR EKFERE -
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 16.BBEALTRZ )

(b) The Group’s balances with related parties are set out in Notes 28 and 33. (b) AEERETE A+ 2 B ERREN M 28
K33

(c) Key management personnel remuneration are disclosed in Notes 14 and 15. (c) =ZEBBAEMESNHFE 14 & 15 NIKREE -

Note: Bfi5E

*  The related party transactions in respect of sales to and purchase from the ultimate * BEHETMBEARKERAFAREE SRR
holding company and purchase from fellow subsidiaries above constitute connected BAR 2 FEEA TR S EKEER SR
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the AERXS(ERR EMAREI14AE) - EMmRA
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided FEVAEFREZ KBRESSREP M -

in the directors’ report.

47.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR 4. EEMB AT ZF1E
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2018 and RZBE-N\FE-ZE—tF+-_A=+—H &
2017 are as follows: RRAIZEEMBARFEWT :
Country/place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Percentage of
establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held
ML L ERTR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg BERE PN Principal activities
i) PGS EE98: ks &R BRTRAEIL TEEH
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
BE RS (FA)BRAR B8 55,350,000 products and solutions and
non-voting provision of hardware services
deferred shares" (including installation and
HK$55,350,002 maintenance services) and
2 BB R software services (including
55,350,000 fi% software development, consulting
EREREEER" and professional services)
55,350,002 7T REZER  HEEMERNBRLTR

RRER IR (RELERRE
FRT%) R AR (B AEE AR g -

BRI R EERE)

ELM Computer Technologies Hong Kong 12,000,000 100% 100% Sale of computer products and
Limited B ordinary shares solutions and provision of hardware
BMREREHRER AR HK$12,000,000 services (including installation and
12,000,000 f% maintenance services) and software

Tk services (including software

12,000,000 7T development, consulting and

professional services)

THE B m MR R R
EHRY (BELERRERS) X
RS (BEEMHE  BERK

BER)

ASL Softwing Investment Holdings Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares 100%" 100%" Investment holding

Limited AL HK$10 REER
HIPRERRER AT 10 A& SRR
1077
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47.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR

——= 202

SU BS'D'AR' ES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2018 and

2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
AR F

kgEz
BR/ %

Name of subsidiary

) NG R

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited Macau
BEZ45CRM) BRAR RF
ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited Thailand

Bl
Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited The PRC
BENMREEEESRRERAR #

Annual Report 2018 43k

4. T EMB AR ZHE @

n=

yNC]

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Percentage of
issued share

2 N\ER-F—LEFT=A=+—8 &
2 EBHBATFENT : ()

Principal activities

TEEH
2017
—t 5

100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
products and solutions and provision
of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting
and professional services)

REER - HEEMERMRT R
RREEM RS (B R R LRE
RS BB AR (B HERF R 3

B R EERD)

100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
products and solutions and provision
of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)

RERR  SHEERERRBATR
RREEH RS (DR R LRE
PR ) Rt RS (AR B
R R EERE)

100% Sale of computer products and
solutions and provision of hardware

services (including installation and

registered capital capital held
ERTR by the Company
BERE ENSTig S
&R BERTREBEIH
2018
—B-N\F ==
Registered capital 100%
MOP$10,000
T ER
SRPIH 10,000 7T
500,000 100%
ordinary shares
THB50,000,000
500,000 A& &A%
Z=4£50,000,000 7T
Registered capital 100%
HK$40,000,000
AR
40,000,000 77T

maintenance services) and software
services (including software
development, consulting and
professional services)

THE BIME M RBR S R RIRME
EHRY (BB ERRERS) X
IR (BAER R - BRIk
HER)
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47.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR 4. TEMB AT Z2FE®

SU BS' DlARl ES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2018 and RZEF-N\FERZFT—tF+-A=+—H &
2017 are as follows: (Continued) RRIZ EFEMBRRFELT : (8B)

Country/place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

Percentage of
issued share
capital held

MBS, ST BRTR
#RBRE
CEVE:t &R

by the Company
NG Principal activities
BRTREEIE TEEH
2018 2017
“E-NE T t&F

Name of subsidiary kg2

ME AR A

ASL Security Solutions Limited Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding
HEHS HK$0.1 REZER

1 RE AL

0.1387T
ASL Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%*  Investment holding, sale of computer
RBRIHFS! UsD1 products and solutions and provision
1 IRE B of hardware services (including

(= installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting

and professional services)

REZR - SHEBRKERMBAT R
RBEHE RS (BRRERRE
RS ) BB RS (B R R 2

BERREERE)
ELM Technologies Holdings British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding
Limited RERUHS usD1 REZER

1Bk

(E
Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
RBRIHE usD2 MERE

2 B E AR

e
Express Returns Limited British Virgin Islands® 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
KBRELES usD2 YESSEE]

2R AR

2ETT
Express Profits Development British Virgin Islands* 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
Limited EBEAES usb2 ESSTE]

2 s AR

2ET

Automated Systems Holdings Limited E &) R &5 E AR A A 203 o———



——=o 204

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R ISR R MG

For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE —T—\F+_A=+—HILtFE

47.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR
SUBS'D'AR'ES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2018 and

2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

) NG R

Automated Systems Fortune
Investment Holdings Limited

GDB International Investment
Limited

GDD International
Holding Company

Grid Dynamics
International, Inc.

Tonomi, Inc.

Grid Dynamics DOO Beograd
— Novi Beograd
(Note 1) (Fif&E1)

Limited Liability Company
“Cometera Russia”

(Note 2) (K3 2)

Annual Report 2018 43k

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

AR F
kgEz
BR/ %

British Virgin Islands*
EERIHS

British Virgin Islands
RBRIES

The United States
ESE

The United States
ESE

The United States
ESEd

Serbia

Russia

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
EBTR
BERAK
EfER

1 ordinary share
usD1

1R B
(EH

1 ordinary share
UsD1

1B AR
(E

100 common stocks
USD54,650,100
100 A& Z @Ak
54,650,100 37T

12,000,000

common stocks
USD6,382,891.19
12,000,000 A% & i A%
6,382,891.193 T

1,000 common stocks
USD1,948,585

1,000 &A%
1,948,585 % 7T

Registered capital
RSD30,000
AR

30,000 ZE /R4
EEal

Registered capital
RUB10,000
AR

10,000 & i
B

4. T EMB AR ZHE @

RoE-\FR-F—tF+-A=+—A &
REZEENBARENT : (8)

Percentage of
issued share

capital held
by the Company
AR R
ERITREFESL
2018 2017
“E-NE T tF
100%* 100%*
100%* 100%*
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% N/A
TNEA
N/A 100%
TEA

Principal activities

FEEL

Investment holding, international
trading, fund investment and
treasury management

EoEl

Investment holding

BREZK

Investment holding

REER

Provision of service in Information
technology (“IT") engineering
il ([ &R ) TRR%

Provision of service in IT engineering

BARMRIRRE

Provision of service in computer
programming

B TR R

Provision of service in software
development, consulting and
related professional services

R - BRRABREERS
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47.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR 4. TEMB AT Z2FE®

SU BS' DlARl ES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2018 and RZEF-N\FERZFT—tF+-A=+—H &

2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

yNC]

Percentage of
issued share

ZTEMBARFRBNT : (8)

and operation registered capital capital held
SEMASLFRAL BRTR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 BERAK b NG Principal activities
) YNGR EYE: 1] EfEAR BRTREEIE TEXRK
2018 2017
—B-N\E T {F

Limited Liability Company Russia Registered capital 100% 100% Provision of service in software
“Grid Dynamics Russia” AT RUB10,000 development, consulting and
EMEAR relating professional service
10,000 fiZ& &7 R - R REEEERE

B
Grid Dynamics Poland Spétka z Poland 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% Provision of service in software
ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia g PLN5,000 development, consulting and
100 R & i A% relating professional service
5,000 % M Zk &2 R - BREREEEERE
Limited liability Company Ukraine Registered capital 100% 100% Provision of service in software
“Grid Dynamics Ukraine” SR UAH2,500 development, consulting and
AR relating professional service
2,500 MFE - BERBEERRY

S LS
Limited Liability Company Ukraine Registered capital 100% 100% Provision of service in software
“Cometera Ukraine” En UAH1,000 development, consulting and
&R relating professional service
1,000 R - BE RABEERRY

S miEE R
Limited Liability Company Ukraine Registered capital 100% 100% Provision of service and support
“GD Ukraine” 5r UAH1,000 on behalf of Grid Dynamics
AR and its customers
1,000 5525 R - BEREEEERE

S
Limited Liability Company Ukraine Registered capital N/A 100% Provision of service and support
"Questora Ukraine” SRE UAH2,500 TEA on behalf of Grid Dynamics
(Note 3) (FfizE3) AER and its customers
2,500 5% # MFE - BERBEERRS

EEP S
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47.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR

48.

——= 206

SUBS'D'AR'ES (Continued)

Notes:

1. Grid Dynamics DOO Beograd — Novi Beograd (formerly known as Grid Dynamics DOO
Novi Sad) was incorporated in the Republic of Serbia on 11th June 2018.

2. Limited Liability Company “Cometera Russia” was liquidated on 12th December 2018.

3. Limited Liability Company “Questora Ukraine” has merged with and into Limited
Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Ukraine” on 22nd March 2018.

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company, carry practically
no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the Company nor to participate in any distribution on winding up.

# These companies operate in Hong Kong.
* Subsidiaries held directly by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the reporting
period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 25th January 2019, GDD International Holding Company (“GDD"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a stock
transfer agreement with a director of Grid Dynamics (“GDI director”) whereby
GDD agreed to transfer to the GDI director, and the GDI director agreed to
received and hold from GDD, 342,500 transfer shares, representing 2.85% of
the total number of issued shares of Grid Dynamics, at the consideration of
USD2,055,000. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
25th January 2019.
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4. TEMB AT 2FHE @

B -

*

BEERR LRAIIARRNNBAREIEZE
AEEEBEIARAEREEFENEEZHND -
ESZRAFINEMMELRNFECREBN

o

Grid Dynamics DOO Beograd — Novi Beograd ( il
/% Grid Dynamics DOO Novi Sad) A == — A& X
A+—BEERgD AN MK -

Limited Liability Company “Cometera Russia” B4
—E-N\FT=AtREE-

Limited Liability Company “Questora Ukraine” &
R=Z—)\&F = A =+ = H #Limited Liability
Company “Grid Dynamics Ukraine” & 6 & 6 A 7%
NS

ERRERERILIFAARRBFE - EBEMT
*ﬁﬂxg B AR RMEM R R A B @S R il

FEERAGNRE LIRE - 2EFRRELEMA
DIRKE BRI

EEINLS
AATERRAZHBAT -

488

JT

RAFELEER - BEMNEARRTEAREE

% o

48. B EHAREIE

m=

T-NF-—AZTHA ARFHEHERZE

Ki B X & GDD International Holding Company
(TGDDJ) £2Grid Dynamicsz — % % = ([GDI
EE DT —EHROEREGH  BIULGDDRA
EMGDIES=HE  MGDIES=R B Wit
¥ A B GDD# 3% 2 342,500 # & ik 15 - 14
Grid Dynamics 2 2 17X {5 #2812.85% * KB
2,055,000% 7T - BRAFIE - F2HALQEH
BT NF—AZt+RBAZASL -



Particulars of Investment Properties
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For the year ended 31st December 2018 BE T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties at 31st December 2018 are as follows: R=_Z—/\F+_A=+—08 A"EBZEEW*EF
BT

Location Gross floor area (sq.ft)

i B 2EERCFAR)

Units 1 to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor 11,744 sq.ft Commercial
Topsail Plaza 11,744 F R [EES
11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

B

R

WM

OB 1157

=22

NREIZE7HKE 15221 5FEMN

Car parking space No. P4 on Ground Floor 125 sq.ft Commercial
Topsail Plaza 125 FAR [EES
11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

BB

R

WH

22 11 5%

E|8ES

R P4 E AL
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Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers

BBRGEBEERAR - TEME

HONG KONG

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
16/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2541 9900

Fax: (852) 2541 1338

i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited
Room 6-7, 10/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2608 6226

Fax: (852) 2645 8069

Automated Center of Excellence (ACoE)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Service Center

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936
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B N B AR /O

&E
BEIRG (BB BRAR
HEMADH

ZIOE 1158

E|EES 1518

3% 1 (852) 2601 6998
{EH : (852) 2601 6936

WM EEEHRAERA
BEHALHE
ZOE 1157
E|EES 1612
: (852) 2541 9900
%E (852) 2541 1338

ZalF (B8 BHEER AR
EBTADE
T 1158
EEES10186-7E

: (852) 2608 6226
fEH : (852) 2645 8069

BB RF A0 (ACOE)
FHALH

T 1158

#|BES 1518

T3 1 (852) 2601 6998
{8H :(852) 2601 6936

AR5 0
HEMADH

ZOHE 1157
HE|EES 1518
E3E 1 (852) 2601 6998
fEH : (852) 2601 6936

ZEREER L+ (SOC+)
BEHALHE
LT 1155
E|EES 1512
: (852) 2601 6998
%E (852) 2601 6936

5%
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BBRAEERRAR - TEWE - BE QR RAEETLER

MAINLAND CHINA

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
Unit 1402A, 1403A

No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China
(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 20 2203 8111

Fax: (86) 20 2203 8000

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
Unit 1402A, 1403A

No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 20 2203 8111

Fax: (86) 20 2203 8000

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd

P E A it

BINREZEE SRR AR AR
P E M TS R

TS 1859

1402A  1403A BT

(BB4% : 510100)

3% 1 (86) 20 2203 8111

B : (86) 20 2203 8000

YGHNE AR AR (ODEC)
B E M T TSR
S 185 %%

1402A  1403A BT
(Eb4% : 510100)

3% 1 (86) 20 2203 8111
{EH : (86) 20 2203 8000

ERLAERZEREEAT]

Room A1509 Shougang International Tower IR TEER
No.60 Xizhimen North Street A PR 60557

Haidian District, Beijing, China
(Postal Code: 100082)
Tel: (86) 10 8273 6009

i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd

bR B K= A1509 F
(Eb4% © 100082)
E:% ¢ (86) 10 8273 6009

ZAkE (L) BB R AT AR

Room A1509 Shougang International Tower LR R
No.60 Xizhimen North Street AL ARE 605

Haidian District, Beijing, China
(Postal Code: 100082)
Tel: (86) 10 8273 6009

i-Sprint Innovations China (Zhuhai, CoE)

R BB KEAI509 E
(B4 : 100082)
T © (86) 10 8273 6009

A RHRIRE E i d O

4/F, Block B-2 wEm

Southern Software Park BEREHEE 158
No.1 Software Road e E
Zhuhai, Guangdong, China B2 iR MmiE

(Postal Code: 519080)
Tel: (86) 75 6632 2668
Fax: (86) 75 6632 2660

(Eb4% © 519080)
T © (86) 75 6632 2668
{EH : (86) 75 6632 2660

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 Z 5B BR A7
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BBRAEEERAR - TEWE - BE QR RMEETLER

MACAU

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao, No. 180
Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

iN Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D'Assumpcao, No. 180
Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

THAILAND

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207
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B

BB R 5 CRP) BRAA
SRPIR £ A ES 180 9%
REREERD
14#0-RE

3% 1 (853) 2878 6392
{BHE : (853) 2878 6390

BERGRHE CRP) AR AR
RPIR £ A E5 180 %%
REEEERDL
141 0-RE

: (853) 2878 6392
%E (853) 2878 6390

2 El

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13) Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

BEE ¢ (662) 185 3206

{8 H : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

% ih 0 (662) 185 3206

{BH : (662) 185 3207

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
EiE ¢ (662) 185 3206

fEH : (662) 185 3207
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BBRAEERRAR - TEWE - BE QR RAEETLER

SINGAPORE

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Lobby 1 Chai Chee Road
#08-01 Viva Business Park
Singapore 469 004

Tel: (65) 6244 3900

Fax: (65) 6244 8900

MALAYSIA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 3 7932 5688

Fax: (60) 3 7931 5688

POLAND

Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Poland”
Aleja 3 Maja 9, 3rd floor

Krakow, 30-062, Poland

Tel: (48) 12 380 1616

SERBIA

Grid Dynamics LLC Beograd - Novi Beograd
115 Bulevar Mihajla Pupina,
Belgrade, 11070, Serbia

RUSSIA

Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Russia”

SA Rentgena street., Saint-Petersburg, 197101, Russia
Tel: (7) 812 640 3876

Fax: (7) 812 313 9640

Representative Office in Saint-Petersburg

22 liter A Petrogradskaya embankment
Saint-Petersburg, 197046, Russia

Tel: (7) 812 640 3876

Fax: (7) 812 313 9640

Branch Office in Saratov

38/114 Vavilova street, Saratov, 410012, Russia
Tel: (7) 8452 67 4878

Representative Office in Saratov

145 liter A Rabochaya street, Saratov, 410012, Russia
Tel: (7) 8452 67 4878
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3R

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Lobby 1 Chai Chee Road
#08-01 Viva Business Park
Singapore 469 004

BEE ¢ (65) 6244 3900

{#H : (65) 6244 8900

FSRA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

& &h ¢ (60) 3 7932 5688
{#E : (60) 3 7931 5688

R
Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Poland”
Aleja 3 Maja 9, 3rd floor

Krakow, 30-062, Poland
EaE 1 (48) 123801616

o
EW#ET
Grid Dynamics LLC Beograd - Novi Beograd

115 Bulevar Mihajla Pupina,
Belgrade, 11070, Serbia

AT

Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Russia”

5A Rentgena street., Saint-Petersburg, 197101, Russia
Tel: (7) 812 640 3876

Fax: (7) 812 313 9640

EERSENRKRRZRE

22 liter A Petrogradskaya embankment
Saint-Petersburg, 197046, Russia

E5E : (7) 812 640 3876

BH : (7)812 313 9640

HERENIERNT A F

38/114 Vavilova street, Saratov, 410012, Russia
E:h 0 (7) 8452 67 4878

ERARRNRERPEE

145 liter A Rabochaya street, Saratov, 410012, Russia
Tel: (7) 8452 67 4878
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UKRAINE

Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Ukraine”
6 Danilevskogo Street, Kharkiv,
61058, Ukraine

Representative Office

5 Vesnina St., Kharkiv, 61023, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 057 728 5233

Representative Office

26 Rynok Square, Lviv, 79000, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 032 242 0475

Representative Office

15 Valova str, Lviv, 79000, Ukraine

Limited Liability Company “GD Ukraine”
54 Pushkinska Street, Kharkiv, 61057, Ukraine

Representative Office

5 Vesnina St., Kharkiv, 61023, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 057 728 5233

Representative Office

72 Velyka Vasylkivska str., Kyiv 79000, Ukraine

UNITED STATES

Grid Dynamics International, Inc.
5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 520
San Ramon, CA 94583

Tel: (1) 650 523 5000

Grid Dynamics International, Inc.
5345 Towne Square Drive
Suite# 275, Plano

TX 75024

Tel: (469) 353 6279

i-Sprint Innovations Inc.
197 Route 18 South
Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816
Tel: (1) 201 604 3545
Fax: (1) 732 422 0178
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Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Ukraine”
54 Pushkinska Street, Kharkiv,
Kharkiv region, 61057, Ukraine

REMEE

5 Vesnina St., Kharkiv, 61023, Ukraine
E:h 1 (38) 057 728 5233

REPEE

26 Rynok Square, Lviv, 79000, Ukraine
F5E ¢ (38) 032 242 0475

Representative Office

15 Valova str, Lviv, 79000, Ukraine

Limited Liability Company “GD Ukraine”
54 Pushkinska Street, Kharkiv, 61057, Ukraine

REWPEE

5 Vesnina St., Kharkiv, 61023, Ukraine
E&E 1 (38) 057 728 5233

REWEER

72 Velyka Vasylkivska str., Kyiv 79000, Ukraine
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Grid Dynamics International, Inc.
5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 520
San Ramon, CA 94583

E5E : (1) 650 523 5000

Grid Dynamics International, Inc.
5345 Towne Square Drive
Suite# 275, Plano

TX 75024

Tel: (469) 353 6279

i-Sprint Innovations Inc.
197 Route 18 South
Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816
FEih 0 (1) 201 604 3545
BE :(1)732 4220178






Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BEHRAGEBERAA

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936
Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
ERDEROE 11 REIEES 1548

B35 (852) 2601 6998 K : (852) 2601 6936
3k : http://www.asl.com.hk
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